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AGENDA 

A. Disposition of Minutes for Meeting 

8 . Old Business 

C. Subcommittee Items 

C.1.a. = Tab 1 

C.1.b. = Tab 2 

C.1 .c. = Tab 3 

C.1.d. = Tab 4 

C.1.e. = Tab 5 

C.l.f. = Tab 6 

C.2.a. = Tab 7 

·1. Discussion Items 

a. Required Communication with the Board of Trustees 
Plante & Moran, PLLC will reporL 

b. FY25 First Quarter Internal Audit Plan Update 
Michel le Dilu llo, S taff Auditor, wil l report. 

c. Audit Matrix Open Audit Recommendations Update 
Th is matrix tracks the progress of the implementat ion of recommendat ions for 
improvement or correction made by internal and externa l auditors. 
Michelle DiLu llo, Staff Audito r, wil l report. 

d. Inventory Control Audit Report 
Michelle DiL ullo, S taff Auditor, wi ll report. 

e. Audited Financial Report for Fiscal Years 2024 and 2023 
Neal Mc Nally, Vice P resident fo r Finance and Business Operations, and Steve Hoffmaster, 
Associate Vice President for Finance and Controller, w ill report. 

f. Ohio Senate Bill 6 Financial Ratio Analysis for Fiscal Year 2024 
Neal McNally, Vice President for Finance and Business Operat ions, wi ll report. 

2. Action Items 

a. Resolution to Renew and Amend the Internal Audit Charter 
Sarah Gampo, Di rector of Internal Audit at Kent State University, w ill r port. 



C.2.b. = Tab 8 b. Resolution to Renew and Amend the Audit Subcommittee Charter 
Sarah Gampo, Director of Internal Audit at Kent State University, will report. 

D. New Business 

E. Adjournment 
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To the Audit Subcommittee of the Board 
of Trustees 

Youngstown State University 

October 11 , 2024 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 
Suite 100 

250 S. High Siren! 
Columbus, OH 43215 

Tel: 614.849.3000 
Fwc 6 14.22.1.3535 

plantemoran.C0<11 

We have audited the financial statements of Youngstown State University (the "University") as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2024 and have issued our report thereon dated October 11, 2024. Professional 
standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit. 

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 30, 2024, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with 
your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your 
responsibilities . Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the University. Such considerations were solely 
for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such 
internal control. 

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibil ities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are 
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters. 

Our audit of the University's financial statements has also been conducted in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Under Government Auditing 
Standards, we are obligated to communicate certain matters that come to our attention related to our audit 
to those responsible for the governance of the University, including compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; certain instances of error or fraud; illegal acts applicable 
to government agencies; and significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
Toward this end, we issued a separate letter dated October 11 , 2024 regarding our consideration of the 
University's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our 
meeting about planning matters on August 19, 2024. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with 
the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting 
policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the University are described in 
Note 1 to the financial statements. 
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To the Audit Subcommittee of the Board 
of Trustees 

Youngstown State University 

October 11, 2024 

As described in Note 1, the University changed accounting policies related to the adoption of GASS 
Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, which impacted financial statement 
disclosures in Note 1, specifically relating to scholarship allowances and student aid. 

We noted no transactions entered into by the University during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. 

We noted no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different 
period than when the transaction occurred. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected. 

The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was as follows: 

• Net Pension and OPEB Liabilities - Management's estimate of the unfunded liability for the pension 
plan and the OPEB plan was calculated by multiplying the University's portion of the contributions made 
to the respective plans by the total pension liability of the plans provided by an independent actuary. 
The independent actuary used a number of assumptions to determine the overall unfunded liability of 
each plan. 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate described above in 
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in performing and completing our audit. 

Disagreements with Management 

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant 
to the financial statements or the auditor's report. 

We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 

The attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements that were 
requested to be recorded. Management has determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually 
and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. However, uncorrected misstatements 
or matters underlying those uncorrected misstatements could potentially cause future period financial 
statements to be materially misstated. 
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To the Audit Subcommittee of the Board 
of Trustees 

Youngstown State University 

Significant Findings or Issues 

October 11, 2024 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, business conditions affecting the University, and business plans and strategies that may affect 
the risks of material misstatement, with management each year prior to our retention as the University's 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship, and 
our responses were not a condition of our retention. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October 11, 2024. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a second opinion on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of 
an accounting principle to the University's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the audit subcommittee of the board of trustees and 
management of the University and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 

Keith S. Martinez, CPA 
Partner 
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Attachment 

Client: Component Unit of Youngstown State University 
Y/E: 6/30/2024 

Ref # OescnpI1on ot Mis siatemem 

!FACTUAL MISSTATEMENTS: 
Al AdJUS lmenl lo record aCll\rtly oflhe Penguin Club 

Inc as a d1screI~y presented componenI unn of lhe 
Um~rs11y 

I JUDGMENTAL ADJUSTMENTS : 

81 None 

!PROJECTED ADJUSTMENTS: 
c1 None 

To1a1 

SUMMARY OF UNRECORDED POSSIBLE ADJUSTMENTS 

The etrect of mIssIa tements and class1ficat100 errors 1denM&d would be to mcreasc (decrease) the reportea amcunIs m 
the financial staiement categones 1deri11ficd below 

Long-lerm Current Long-term 

Cwrenl Assets Assets 

3,47•1 000 5 28d 000 

S 3,474,000 $ ~ !..,___ 

Rc'"1?nuc E.xpct'JSCS 

tmpacl to NeI 

Assets 

3,072,000 S 3 153 000 S 3 035 000 S 118 000 

3,072,000 3, 153,000 J,oJs,ooo _s __ 1_1_s_.o_oo_ 

!PASSED DISCLOSURES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION ISSUES: 

01 None 

4 



Project Area 

Current Year Audits: 

Facilities & Building Access 

Inventory Control Aud it 

International Programs Office 

---
Athletics Ticket Office 

---
Conflict of Interest 

Youngstown State University 

Quarterly Inte rna l Audit Plan Update 

FY25 Ql July 1, 2024 - September 30, 2024 

Projects 

Risk Category Risk Lever• Status •• 

Financial, Operational, High Completed 

!Compliance 

I Financial, Operational, I High In Progress 

Compliance 

Actual 

Ql 
Hours 

15 

176 1 
----

Operational & High Planned 

Compliance 

I Operational, Financ ial, & I High I Planned 

Compliance 

Operat ional & High Planned 

Actual 

Q2 
Hours 

Complrance 
---- ! __ 

I"" KSU-0,visional IT Appl ication Risk Assessment : 

Student Affaris & Institutional Effectiveness 

Consulting & Advisory 

Consulting & Advisory/ERM 

Continuous Auditing Analytics 

Payroll 

Accounts Payable 

EthicsPoint Hotline Monitoring 

Follow-up on Open Audit Recommendations 

•Risk level 
Assessment of potential impac l of risks and 
likelihood of risk even ls occurring; rating 
drives Internal Audit plan priorities : 

High - significan t risk area, high priority for 
Internal Audit coverage 

Medium - moderate risk area, moderate 
priority or Internal Audit coverage 

IT & Compliance 

I 
Var ious 

Financial, Operat ional, 

Compliance 
Financial, Operational, 

lrnmnl iance 
various 

Various 

Non-Project Hours 

Category 

Planned 

I 
I 

Moderate Ongoing 

Moderate Ongoing I 20 

Moderate Ongoing 40 

High Ongoing 3 

Various Ongoing 58 

Total Project Hours ___1g 

Actual 

Ql 
Hours 

low - less significant risk area, low priority 
for Internal Audit coverage Professional Deve lopment I 5 

Administrative: 

.. Status Definit ions 
Planned - as per audit plan, schedu le to start in current FY 

In Process - in progress at quarter end 

Complete - audit procedures concluded and results communicated 

Deferred - moved from cu rrent FY plan per updated m k assessment 

Ongoing - performed on ongoing, periodic basis 

211 

Total Administrative Hours _ill 

Total Hours 528 

-I 
I 

I 

-

-

Actual 

Q2 
Hours 

Actual Actual Actual Audit Plan 
Q3 Q4 YTD Budgeted 

Hours Hours Hours Hours 

15 0 

I I 176 75 

i 250 
-

250 

250 -

~I 
I 

25 
I 

-

I 
I I 

I 100 

I 
I 

I 20 120 
-

40 120 

- - 3 70 

58 70 

----1.!1 1,330 

Actual Actual Actual Audit Plan 
Q3 Q4 YTD Budgeted 

Hours Hours Hours Hours 

I 5 50 

I I 211 700 
750 

528 2,080 



Audit Recommendations Status- FY2025 Ql 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Stat us Comment 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit N 2023-01 Student Bill Evaluate developing script to Discussions have occu rred and The Bu rsar office and IT staff have The Bursar office and IT staff have 

Presentation combine charges for more meetings are schedu led with Kent met with Kent State and have made changes to the bil l presentat ion 
Dated Issued 8/10/2023 simplified, condensed State to explore opportunities for YSU made some of the desired changes but are still in the testing phase. - -- --
Risk Category Operational Student Bil ling, presen tat ion on stu dent bills. to ut ilize and modify existi ng scri pt to t he fo rmatted bi lls. Since bill s Implementat ion is st ill on t rack for 

Collections, & used by Kent State. An IT work order are sent to students through year end. 
Risk Level Medium Accounts Receivable has been established to move forward Touch Net we have reached out to 

Finance/Business Audit to simplify and conde nse the them for guidance and ass istance Division Operat ions 

Deadline 6/30/2024 
presentation of the student bill s. The on making the desired changes. 

implementation depends on IT 
New Deadline 12/31/2024 resources and the complexity of the 

Current Status Deadline Revised scrip t needed. 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit II KSU 2023-105 7 Job Change Report & An annual, centrally facilitated A new process will be implemented to A new process wi ll be The HR Job Transfer project will start 

Annual Review for review should be com pleted by update Banner access and incl ude a implemented to update Banner at the end of August (i t was de layed 
Dated Issued 11/17/2023 Banner Access all Data Custod ians to co nfirm new change job report when a person access and include a new change in part due to EGCC and matern ity 

Risk Category IT access is appropriate . changes jobs. This process will provide job report when a person changes leave) and it is expected to be 

Risk Level High Ba nner Access Audit Data Custodians with visibility to ljobs. This process will provide complete Dec -January. 

Oiv1s1on of IT, 
ident ify any inappropriate Banner Data Custod ians with visibili ty to 

Division Appl1cat10n Services access. Work w ill begin in April 2024 identify any inappropriate Banner 

I 
and will work towards a defined 

I 
access. Work will begin in April 

Deadline 6/30/2024 
approach by 6/30/24. 2024 and w ill work towards a 

New Deadline 6/30/2025 . defined approach by 6/30/24 . 

Current Status on Schedule I I 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Stat us Comment Current Status Comment Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit tt KSU 2023-1057 SOP fo r Annual Review A standard operat ing procedure An access review process will be An access review process will be 

of YSU Banner Access for Banner user access review identified and formalized over time, as identified and formalized over time, 
Dated Issued 11/17/2023 should be created and used by YSU is in the process of forming a new as YSU is in the process of forming a 

Risk Category IT Data Custod ians. Da ta Governance/Data In tegrity team. new Data Governance/Data Integrity 
-- -- Data owners will be identified, team. Data owners will be Banner Access Audit Risk Level High 

standards enforced, and policies will identified, standards enforced, and 
DMston of 1T, 

I Division Aoplication Services be reviewed by 12/31/24. policies wi ll be reviewed by 

Deadline 12/31/2024 
12/31/24. 

New Deadline 6/30/2025 

I I Current Status On Schedule 
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Audit Recommendations Status- FV2025 Ql 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit# KSU 2023-105 7 Access for Terminated Banner access to sensitive Mitigations are in place at multiple 

I 
Mitigations are in place at mult iple 

Users in YSU Banner tran sactions should be removed levels to ensure no te rmi nated levels to ensure no terminated 
Dated Issued 11/17/2023 from a user's account when an employee gains access after employee gains access after 

Ris~ Category IT employee is terminated to termination . Removing user's securi ty termination. Removing user' s 

Banner Access Audit prevent fraudulent activi ty . classes is another layer of security and security classes is another layer of 
Risk Level Medium 

YSU will work towards develop ing a security and YSU will work towards 
Division of IT, 

Division Infrastructure Services 
new process where this can be developing a new process where this 

Deadline 12/31/2024 
accomplished in an automated way. can be accomplished in an automated 

Th is approach is to be identified by way. Th is approach is to be 
New Deadline 12/31/24 by the Director of identified by 12/31/24 by th e 

Current Status On Schedule 
Infrastructure Services. Director of Infrastructure Services. 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit# KSU 2024-105 7 Software & hardware Testing of a sample of users Agree. Information Security Engineer Agree . Information Security Engineer 

is appropriately showed inappropriate computer will implement appropriate computer will implement appropriate computer 
Dated Issued 2/26/2024 safegua rded safeguards on devices using the safeguards for all YSU managed devices safeguards for all YSU managed 

Risk Category IT application. All devices of users by 12/31/24. devices by 12/31/24, 

ITGC Audit-WEI __Jl with elevated access should be 

I I 
Risk Leve l High 

YSU managed devices and have 

Division Academtc Affa irs appropriate comput er 

Deadline 12/31/2024 
safegua rds. YSU firewall is 

configured to protect university 

I I 
New Deadline resources. 

I Current Status On Schedule 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit II KSU 2024-1057 Business Continuity Data backups and data center Agre e. The application administrator 

I 
Agree. The application administrator 

Plan controls are provided by the will complete a Business Continuity will complete a Business Continuity 
Dated Issued 2/26/2024 vendor. Business Continuity Plan Plan to ensure proper procedures are Plan to ensu re proper procedures are 

Risk Category IT was not completed . Recommend in place should a system failure occur in place shou ld a system failure occur 

Risk Level ITGC Audit-WEI completing a Business by 12/31/24. 

I 

J by 12/31/24, 
Medium 

Continuity Plan to document 

Division Academic AHa1rs steps required to cont inue 

Deadline 12/31/2024 
business processes in the event 

of a system failure. 

I 
New Deadline 

Current Status On Schedule 
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Audit Recommendations Status- FY2025 Ql 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit~ KSU 2024-1057 Change Management Upgrades to the application are Agree. The application administrator Agree . The application administrator 

Controls performed by the vendor. wi ll complete Standard Operating wi ll complete Standard Operating 
Dated Issued 2/26/2024 Communica t ion of changes to Procedures for the application and wi ll Procedures for the application and 

Risk Category IT application users should be ensu re there is proper communication will ensure there is proper 
-- --- implemented. Standard regard ing application updates/changes comm unication regarding applicat ion ITGC Audit-WEI Risk Level Medium 

Operation Procedures (SOP) by 12/31/24. updates/changes by 12/31/24. 

Division Academic Affa,r$ should be developed. 

Deadline 12/31/2024 

New Deadline 

Current Status On Schedule I I 

I I 
Recommendation Summary of 

Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 
Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit/I 2024-01 
Documented 

I 
Develop and implement STEM-WEI : Sharepoint folders have Sharepoint folders have been Sharepoint folders have been crea ted 

Procedures procedures throughout the been created that contain procedures created that contain procedures that contain procedures that pertain 
Dated Issued 4/17/2024 department to ensure the that pertain to the that pertain to the to the opera t ions/programs offered 

Risk Category Operational !transfer of knowledge during 

~

operations/programs offered in th e operations/programs offered in in the ETC and ITWA. 
--- -- staff transitions . ETC and ITWA the ETC and ITWA. Workforce Education Risk Level High 

The Tressel Institute has developed I CLOSED 
& Innovation Audit --- - -

Division Academic Affairs TILT: Development and 

implementation of wr itten procedures written and implemented 
Deadline. 5/1/2024 for TILT and timely expense processing documented procedures. CLOSED 

New Deadline is currently underway and will be 

completed on a monthly basis. 

I Current Status Pending Vahdat ion I 

I 
I 

Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit# 2024-01 Reconciliations Develop and implement a STEM-WEI: The Pl of each grant is the The Pt of each grant is the fi nancia l The Pl of each grant is the financia l 

monthly reconci liation process financ ial manager for th eir grant. Each manager for their grant. Each manager for their grant. Each 
Dated Issued 4/17/2024 to ensure all revenue is collected financial manager will reconcile their financial manager will reconcile financial manager will reconcile their 

Risk Category Financial, Operationa l and expenditures correspond respective grants monthly. the ir respective grants monthly. respective grants monthly. 
-- with Banner. 

Risk Level High Workforce Education 

& Innovation Audit ~ -- --- -- ---
Division Academic Affairs TILT: Yes, will implement for TILT developed and implemented TILT developed and implemented a 

expend itures and revenue. Current 
I 
a monthly reconciliation process to monthly reconciliation process to 

Deadline 5/1/2024 source of revenue is from gifts made ensure al l revenue is co llected and ensure all revenue is collected an d 

New Deadline through the YSU Foundation for expenditures correspond with expenditures correspond with 

I 
endowed accounts. I Banner. Banner. 

Current Status Pending Valida tion 
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Audit Recommendations Status- FY2025 Ql 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit# 2024-02 Billing Process Enhance controls over the billing STEM-WEI: Before workforce students Before workforce students take a Before workforce students take a 

processes to ensure registration take a class, a SOW, MSA, and quote class, a SOW, MSA, and quote are class, a SOW, MSA, and quote are 
Dated Issued 4/17/2024 fee revenues are billed are provided to the company and provided to t he company and provided to the company and signed . 

Risk Category Financial, Operational accurately and timely. signed . Personnel at the ETC have signed. Personnel at the ETC have Personnel at the ETC have always 
--- --- always prepared paperwork for non- always prepared paperwork for prepared paperwork for non-student Workforce Education Risk Level High 

student billing for the workforce non-student billi ng for the billing for t he workforce classes & Innovation Audit 
Division Academic AHa,rs classes taught in the ETC in a timely workforce classes taught in the ETC taught in the ETC in a timely manner. 

Deadline 2/1/2024 
manner. in a timely manner. 

New Deadline 

Current Status Pending Valida tion I 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit# 2024-01 BOT Financial Develop a standard financial STEM-WEI: As WEI is part of STEM IWEI will have a quarterly WEI will have a quarterly 

Reporting report that can effectively College, the re will be no more direct presentation to BOT subcommittee presentation to BOT subcommittee 
Dated Issued 4/17/2024 communicate crucial financial reporting to the BOT, rather a monthly and the Board of Trustees. and the Board of Tru stees . 

Risk Category Financia l, Operal 1onal I information. reporting to the Provost, by the Dean 

Workforce Education I 
of the STEM College . 

Risk Level High 
& Innovation Audit ---

IT1 LT has developed a standard 
-- --

DivisiM Academic Affairs TILT: Ass igned the development of a TILT has developed a standard 

I 
standard financial report to provid e financial report that will provide fi nancial report that will provide 

Deadline 5/1/2024 transparency for the financial activities ongoing transparency for activities ongoing transparency for activities 

New Deadline of the TI LT. associated with TILT. associated with TILT. 

Current Status Pf ndmg Va lidation I I 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit U 2024-01 BOT Programmatic 

I 
Continue develop and document STEM-WEI: As WEI is part of the STEM WEI wi ll have a quarterly WEI will have a quarterly 

Reporting the new process to verify KPI' s College, there will be no more direct presentation to BOT subcommittee presentation to BOT subcommittee 
Dated Issued 4/17/2024 and ma intain documented reporting to the Board of Trustees, and the Board a/Trustees. and the Board of Trustees. 

Risk Category Operational support to verify that the rather, a monthly reporting to the 

I Risk Level High Workforce Education programmatic report to the BOT Provost by Dean of the STEM College . 

& Innovation Audit is accurate. 
Division Academic Affairs TILT: Where applicable, will implement At the conclusion of each At the conclusion of each semester, 

number of users (YSU Students) semester, TILT will provide the TILT will provide the number of YSU 
Deadline S/1/2024 completing badges and provide number of YSU students students completing TILT badges. 

New Deadline reports. completing TILT badges. 

Current Status Pendmg Va lidation 
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Audit Recommendations Status- FY2025 Ql 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit# 2024-01 Programmatic Develop and implement a STEM -WEI: Every Pl is responsible for Every Pl is responsible for timely Every Pl is responsible for timely 

Reporti ng for Grants process. to document t imely programmatic report ing. The Pl programmatic reporting. The Pl is programmatic reporting. The Pl is 
Dated Issued 4/17/2024 programmatic data and to is notified by the funding agency on notified by t he funding agency on not i fied by the funding agency on 

Risk Category Operational maintain t he sources of the data. what needs to be reported and by w hat needs to be reported and by what needs to be reported and by 

Workforce Education when and what format it needs to be w hen and what format it needs to when and what format it needs to be 
Risk Level High 

in . The Pl is also responsible for be in . The Pl is also responsible for in. The Pl is also responsible for & Innovation Aud it 
Division Academic Affairs records management following the records management following the records management following the 

Deadl ine 1/24/2024 BOT policy 3356-9-09 . BOT policy 3356-9-09. BOT policy 3356-9-09. 

New Deadline 

Current Status Pending Validation 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Current Status Comment 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 
Prior Status Comment 

Audit# 2024-01 Remote Work I Remote work forms were filled STEM-WEI: Dean of the STEM College Dean of the STEM College Dean of the STEM College reviewed 

j out before the reorganization of reviewed all Remote Work approvals reviewed all Remote Work all Remote Work approvals that were 
Dated Issued 4/17/2024 DWEI. Remote work that were on file with HR and discussed approval s that were on file with HR on file with HR and discussed it with 

Risk Category Operational arra ngements should be it wi th the involved supervisors. and discussed it wit h t he involved the involved supervisors. 

Risk Level Medium 
Workforce Educat on reviewed by each employee's supervisors. 

& Innovation Audit current supervisor and updated. - -- -
Division Academic Affairs TILT: Remote work has been discussed No TILT employees are on remote CLOSED 

I 

with each employee with approved wo rk schedule. The staff decided 
Deadl ine 1/24/2024 fo rms. t hat remote work is not 

New Deadline advantageous for TILT's current I 

Current Status Pendmg Vahdat1on 
stage of development. CLOSED 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 
Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit# 2024-01 Room Reservation Ut ilize the room reservat ion STEM-WEI: Two emp loyees of the ETC ITwo employees have been tra ined Two employees have been trained 

System system for Workforce Education are trained in the banner system and and are using the room reservation and are using the room reservatio n 
Dated Issued 4/17/2024 and Innovation events and consistentl y schedule classes/events I system. system. 

Risk Category Opera tional classes. taking place at the ETC. 

Workforce Education 
I 

Risk Level Medium 
& Innovation Audit ---

1TILT is an online program and -Division Academic Affairs TILT: Staff responsible for ut ilizing the CLOSED 

room reservation system are using the doesn't have the need to schedule 
Deadl ine 5/1/2024 system already or are curre ntl y class rooms. CLOSED 

New Deadline securing permission . 

Current Status Pending Vahda11on I 
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Audit Recommendations Status- FY2025 Ql 

I 
I Recommendation Summary of 

Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 
Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit# 2024-01 Expense Monitoring Ensu re expenses are processed STEM-WEI: All PJ's are now also All Pl's are now also financial All PJ's are now also fina ncia l 

in accordance with university fina ncial managers. All fina ncial managers. All financial managers managers. All financial managers 
Dated Issued 4/17/2024 guide lines . Ensure all Financial managers have to adhere to the YSU have to adhere to the YSU have to adhere to the YSU 

Risk Category Fmanc,al, Opera. t,onal Managers have completed procurement policies and are subject procurement policies and are procurement policie s and are su bject 

Workforce Education 
training for purcha si ng cards, to scheduled training sessions related subject to scheduled training to scheduled training sessions related 

Risk Level Low travel cards, and eCube . to purchasing cards, travel cards and sessions related to purchasing to purchasi ng cards, travel cards and 
& Innovat ion Audit 

eCube. All these are mandatory cards, travel cards and eCube. All eCube. All these are mandatory Division Academic Affairs 

t rainings. these are mandato ry train ings. t raini ngs. 
Deadl ine 1/24/2024 

New Deadline 

Cu rrent Status Pending Validation 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit# 2024-01 Policy Awareness Employees of the WEI are STEM-WEI: Dean Steelant contacted WEI is working with Human WEI is work ing with Human 

1 encouraged to take the on· HR io follow-up on offering (or make Resources to make sure that all Resources to make sure that all WEI 
Dated Issued 4/17/2024 boarding training to become available) the onboarding training for WEI employees have completed employees have comp leted campus 

Risk Category Operational 1 more aware of important the remaining WEI personnel. campus policy training. policy training. 

Workforce Education policies on campus. I 
Risk Level Low 

& Innovation Audit - I ---
Division Academic Affairs TILT: Tressel Institute for Leadership & I The Tress~stitute for Leadership. CLOSED 

Teamwork staff are current with & Teamwork staff remain current 
Deadline 3/25/2024 training associa ted with campus with training associated wit h 

New Deadline 
I policies campus policies as reported in 

I 
March 2024. CLOSED 

I Current Status Pending Validation I 

I I 
Recommendation Summary of 

Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Audit lhfo Name Recommendation 
Current Status Comment 

Audit# 2024-02 Key Control Policy Re-assess current Key Co ntrol We are exploring development We are exploring developm ent 
Policy. Develop and of a web-based solution for the lock of a web-based solution for the lock 

Dated Issued 8/12/2024 communicate procedures and shop; plann ing element expected to be shop; planning element expected to 

Risk Category Operational guidelines for the un iversi ty com pleted by year end with be completed by year end with 

Risk Level High Facil ities & Building comm unity. imp lementation by December 2025. implementation by December 2025. 

F1nance/8us1ness Access 
Division Ooerat1ons 

Deadline 12/31/2025 

New Deadline 

Current Status On Schedule I 
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Audit Recommendations Status- FY2025 Ql 

I 
I Recommendation Summary of 

Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 
Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit# 2024-02 Documented Develop and implement This recommendation is being I This recommendation is being 

Procedures procedures throughout the considered and will be implemented in conside red and will be implemented 
Dated Issued 8/12/2024 department. conjunction with enhancement of the in conjunction with enhancement of 

Risk Category Operational key/lock database and web based the key/lock database and web based 
--- processing . processing. 

Risk Level High Facilities & Building 

Finance /Bus, ness Access 
Division Oocrattons 

Deadline 12/31/2025 

New Deadline 

I Current Status On Schedule 
I 

I 
I Recommendation Summary of 

Summary of Original Response 
Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit# 2024-02 Key Issuance & \Enhance procedures to ensu re We are exploring development We are exploring deve lopment 

Tracking 

~

effective controls relating to of a web-based solution for the lock of a web-based solution for the lock 
Dated Issued 8/12/2024 key issuance and tracking. shop; planning element expected to be I shop; planning element expected to 

Risk category Operational completed by year end with be completed by year end with 

Risk Level High Facilit ies & Bu ildin implementation by the December implementat ion by the December 

Finance/Business Access 2025. Also. have reached out to our 2025. Also, have reached out to our 
Division Ooerat,ons lock/key system vendor to arrange for lock/key system vendor to arrange 

Deadline 12/31/2025 
additional training. for additional training. 

New Deadline 

Current Status On Schedule I I I 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 
Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit# 2024-02 Key Returns & Develop and implement We are exploring development We are exploring development 

Transfers procedures related to key of a web-based solution for the lock of a web-based solut ion for the lock 
Dated Issued 8/12/ 2024 returns and transfers. shop; planning element expected to be shop; planning element expected to 

Risk Category Operational completed by yea r end with be completed by year end with 
--- --

implementation by December 2025. 

I 

implementation by December 2025 . 
Risk Level High Facilities & Building 

f:manct/Business Access 
Division Ooera11ons 

I 

Deadline 12/31/2025 

New Deadline 

I Current Status On Schedule 
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Audit Recommendations Status- FY2025 Ql 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit II 2024-02 Lost & Stolen Keys Enhance the process and We are exploring development We are exp loring development 

controls for tracking and of a web-based solution for the lock of a web-based solution for the lock 
Dated Issued 8/12/2024 reissuing keys that have been shop; planning element expected to be shop; planning element expected to 

Risk Category Operational lost or stolen . completed by year end with be com pleted by year end with 
- -- im plementation by December 2025. implementation by December 2025. 

Risk Level High Facilities & Building 

Fmance/Busine:ss Access 
Division Doe rat ions 

Deadline 12/31/2025 

New Deadline 

I Cu rrent Status On Schedule I 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 

Audit II 2024-02 Keypad Access Develop and implement The keypads currently being The keypads curren tly being 

I 
controls to limit unauthorized installed do have the ability to log and installed do have the ability to log 

Dated Issued 8/12/2024 individuals from gaining track individual access . One keycode is I and track individual access. One 

Risk Category Operational access to these areas. Consider being programmed into each lock as a keycode is being programmed into 
----- ~ enhancements to monitoring matter of convenience and practicality. each lock as a matter of convenience 

Risk Level High Facilities & Building 
I and practica lity. F1nance/Bus1ness Access land tracking of access to areas 

Division Ooerat,ons with keypads. 

Deadline 12/31/2025 

New Deadline 

I I 
Current Status On Schedule 

I I Recommendation Summary of 
Summary of Original Response 

Audit Info Name Recommendation 
Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit It 2024-02 Succession Plann ing Develop a succession plan to We do anticipate that our only We do anticipate that our only 

ensure the transfer of locksmith wi ll likely retire in the near locksmith will likely reti re in the near 
Dated Issued 8/12/2024 experience-based knowledge . future. We are in the process of hiring future. We are in the process of 

Risk Category Operational 

I 
another locksmith to fill this void. hiring another locksmith to fill this 

- void . 
Risk Level High Facilities & Building 

Finance/Bus,nes;s Access 
Division Ooerat1ons 

Deadline 12/31/2024 

New Deadline 

I I Current Status On Schedule I 
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y 
YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 

One University Plaza, Youngstown , Ohio 44555 

Steve Hoffmaster, AVP of Finance & Controller 
Emily Reidy, Senior Financial Analyst 
Youngstown Sta te University 

Dea r Mr. Hoffmaster & Ms. Reidy: 

November 13, 2024 
Audit #2024-03 

Internal Audit has completed an internal control assessment of the key processes related to Capital Inventory 
Control. This audit was completed to provide assurance on the presence, adequacy, design, and operating 

effectiveness of the internal controls related to capital equipment inventory. 

Internal controls are a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding achievement of the following 

objectives: 

• effectiveness and efficiency of operations 

• re liabi lity of reporting, and 

• comp liance with procedures 

Thus, internal controls are deemed effective if the above objectives are met. Internal controls can be a 
preventative control or a detective control. Procedures designed to keep errors or irregularities from occurring are 
preventative controls . Procedures designed to detect errors or irregularities which have occurred are detective 
controls . Internal Aud it promotes continuous improvement of internal controls . However, management is 
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective interna l controls . 

Objectives 

The primary objectives of th is audit were as follows : 

(1) Determ ine whether the inventory control management system is properly designed and operating 
effectively to provide reasonable assurance of complia nce with university policies and procedures, as well 
as the appl icable state and federal regulations 

(2) Provide management with comments and recommendations designed to further improve the 
department's operations and the existing internal control structure. 
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Scope and Procedures 
The audit scope included the compliance with policies and procedures related to the processes of capital 
equipment inventory. 

• Physical verification of capital equipment inventory 

• Tagging of capital equipment 

• Maintaining and securing of capital equipment 

• Changes in capital equipment status 

• Disposal of capital equipment 

The above objectives were accomplished using the audit procedures including, but not limited to, the following: 

• review of applicable university and departmental policies and procedures 
• conducting walk-throughs of several departments and verifying a sample of their capital equipment. 

• testing internal controls by review of documentation and related support 

• inquiring of Controller's Office staff and a sample of departmental Financial Managers. 

An audit of operational and system of internal controls is performed to provide management with reasonable but 
not absolute assurance that procedures and transactions are executed in an efficient manner. This internal audit 
was performed using a risk-based approach that did not include evaluation and testing of all capital equipment. 
Thus, assurance cannot be provided that all errors, irregularities, and instances of non-compliance occurring 
during the audit period were identified. 

Summary of Results 
As of the report obtained 07/05/24, there were 2,131 items recorded as capital equipment across 79 
departments with a total cost of $50,565,663.84. Based on the risk analysis performed by Internal Audit, 12 
departments were selected for testing. A sample of capital equipment items from these 12 departments were 
physically verified and tested for compliance with university policies and procedures. In those 12 departments, 
101 items were physically verified with a total cost of $6,845,218.28. Results of the testing were reported to 
respective departments and the Controller's Office and responses were received for corrective action. 

Compliance to current policy and operating procedures were tested for capital equipment across 12 departments. 
Testing exceptions and respective number of departments are summarized below: 

• Equipment was not tagged (6) 
• Equipment was not issued a tag (12) 
• Physical location of equipment did not agree with Controller's Office records (3) 

• Equipment could not be located (6) 
• Equipment Status Change Form was not completed at the time of change (11) 
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Opinion 
Based on the results of procedures performed, the internal controls related to the key processes in Equipment 
Inventory Requires Improvement. 

A Requires Improvement necessitates that Internal Audit perform follow-up on corrective actions noted in 
management responses based on the dates provided. 

Internal Audit thanks you and your staff for their time and assistance during the audit process. Please call x1425 
with any questions regarding this Report. 

Sincerely, 

Michelle Dilullo 
Staff Auditor, Internal Audit 

cc: 8. Johnson 
N. McNally 
Audit Subcommittee 

Office of Internal Audit 

330.941 .1425 

Yoongsto,rn State University does not d1scr,minate on the basis of race. color, national 0119,n, sex, sexual orientation, gender 1dent11y and/or expre1S1on, d1sab1l1ty, age. rehg1on or I 
veteran/military status in 111 programs or act1'1111es. Please v1s11,m-w.ysu edulada-access1b1l1ty for contact information lor pe,sons designated to handle questions about this pohcy WWW• YS U • ed U 
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Audit #2024-03 

Inventory Control Audit 

Internal Audit 

Acknowledgement of Responsibilitv 

The Audit Comments include Management"s Responses to audit observations and recommendations 

contained in this Repo11. These responses have been prepared and approved by the following individual(s) 

who acknowledge responsibility for directing the implementation of corrective action plans. 

I l-\ ~-2. ~ 
Date 

\ . :Z .. D'ZY 
Date 
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Inventory Control Audit 
Audit #2024-03 

Executive Summary 

This below table summarizes the results of the internal control assessment and the corrective actions to which management 
has committed. The audit comments are further detailed in the pages fo ll owing this summary. 

Summary of Audit Findings 

Audit 
Comment Observation Recommendation Management Response 

(Risk level) 
#1 The Controller's Office recently Issue tags for all capital On a monthly basis, capital 
Issuing Tags took over the tagging process equipment that is new and for equipment accounts are analyzed 

from the Central Receiving capital equipment that should to determine additions to 
(High) Department. From the have been issued a tag at the time equipment. Once items have been 

inventory list provided by the of purchase. identified, the Controller's Office 
Controller s Office and from can start the process of getting a 
the physical verification of a red metal tag imprinted with a 
sample of depa11ments there unique five-digit ID number 
were several pi eces of capita l assigned to the asset. The Senior 
equipment that have not been Financial Analyst over the course 
issued a tag. of the next two fiscal years. will 

review each inventory listing for 
each department and assign asset 
tags to all items that are currently 
untagged. 

#2 The Controll er's Office has Communicate policies and In addition to meeting with each 
Policy and policies and procedures for procedures for capital equipment department to explain the new 
Procedures capital equipment on their to the uni versity community. tagging process and answering any 
Awareness website along with any forms Educate employees on the questions the Controller's Office 

needed to update the status of policies and procedures to ensure will be implementing a new 
(High) capital eq uipment inventory . compli ance. procedure to ensure policy 

However, when physically awareness and compliance. 
verifying equipment in a 
sample of depa11rnents most 
departmental financial 
managers were not aware of the 
policies and procedures for 
capital equipment inventory and 
their role in the process. 
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Audit Comment #1 Issuing Tags (H igh) 

Audit Comments 
Inventory Control Audit 

Audit #2024-03 

Observation: Capital Equipment includes all moveable items that have a probable useful li fe of three or more 

years, have an original cost or value of $5,000 or more, and are neither permanently attached to a building 

nor its util ity systems nor incorporated into the building at the time of init ial construction nor during later 

modifications. Equipment meeting thi s definit ion is generally tagged with a red metal tag imprinted with a 

unique five-d igit ID number. Equipmen t is tagged to ensure university property is capitalized and properly 

tracked and maintained. The Contro ller's Office recently took over the tagging process from the Central 

Receiving Department. From the inventory list provided by the Controller's Office and from the physical 

verification of a sample of departments there were severa l pieces of capital equipment that have not been 

issued a tag. 

Recommendation: Issue tags for all capital equipment that is new and for capital equipment that should have 

been issued a tag at the time of purchase. 

Management Response: On a monthly basis, capital equipment accounts are analyzed to determine additions 

to equipment. Once items have been identified, the Controller's Office can start the process of getting a red 

meta l tag imprinted with a unique five-dig it ID number assigned to the asset. The Senior Financial Analyst will 

reach out to the depa rtment to determine the date in service and location of the asset. The Sen ior Financial 

Analyst wi ll inquire about who to send the asset tag to within the department. When this information has 

been collected, the Senior Financial Analyst will assign an asset tag to the asset using the Equ ipment Inventory 

Control form and w ill send the form and the asset tag to the department via campus mail. Following the 

instructions on the form, the person within the department responsible will tag the asset, sign the form, and 

return it to the Controller's office. A financial manager from the department will need to sign off on the 

Equ ipment Inventory Control fo rm if they are not the person physically tagging the equipment. The Controller's 

Office has implemented a separate procedu re for any capital equ ipment that should have been issued a tag at 

the time of purchase. The Senior Financial Analyst, over the course of the next two fiscal yea rs, w ill review 

each inventory listing for each department and assign asset tags to all items that are currently untagged. The 

Sen ior Financial Ana lyst will co ntact the Financia l Managers of each department to se t up a meeting. This 

meeting will include bringing all necessary asset tags that need to be placed on equipment along with the 

Senior Financial Analyst expla ining the new procedures that will be in place to get asset tags on any capita l 

equipment in the future. This will give each department the opportunity to ask any questions they may have 

regard ing the po licies and procedures for capital equipment. 

Implementation Date: December for FY25 Capita l Equ ipment; Over the course of the next two Fiscal Years for 

equipment that needs tagged from pr ior years . 
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Audit Comment #2 Policies and Procedures Awareness (High) 

Observation: The Controller's Office has policies and procedures for capital equipment on their website 

along with any forms needed to update the status of capital equipment inventory. However, when physically 

verifying equipment in a sample of departments most departmental financial managers were not aware of the 

policies and procedures for capital equipment inventory and their role in the process. 

Recommendation: Communicate policies and procedures for capital equipment to the university community. 

Educate employees on the policies and procedures to ensure compliance. 

Management Response: In addition to meeting with each department to explain the new tagging process and 

answering any questions, the Controller's Office will be implementing a new procedure. Annually, the 

Controller's Office sends out an Equipment Inventory Verification Report, which includes a complete listing of 

all equipment assigned to each department. This report is sent out via email to each Financial Manager within 

the departments in April. This email also includes a link to the Controller's Office website that has the 

instructions on how to complete the inventory verification along with any forms they may need to complete to 

move/dispose any capital equipment. The Controller's Office will send an additional email to the Financial 

Managers within each department in October of each year. This email will include the Controller's Office 

website link along with the reminder that changes in equipment status need to be reported as they occur 

throughout the year. The Senior Financial Analyst responsible for this task will also include the attachments of 

the Equipment Status Change Form along with the Capital Inventory Surplus Release Form & Work Order. 

Implementation Date: November 2024 for FY25 

7 



plante 
rnoran 

To Management and the Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 
Suite 100 

250 S High Street 
Columbus, OH 43215 

Tel 614 8-19.3000 
FW<: 614 221.3535 

planten1oran.corn 

This report is subject to review and acceptance by the Auditor of State's office, and the requirements of 
Ohio Revised Code§ 117.25 are not met until the Auditor of State certifies this report. This process will be 
completed by the Auditor of State in a reasonable time frame, and reports are subject to change if the 
Auditor of State determines that modification of a report is necessary to comply with required accounting or 
auditing standards or Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. 

October 11 , 2024 
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YOUNGSTOWN ST ATE UNIVERSITY 
MESSAGE FROM PRESIDENT JOHNSON 

October I I. ~024 

As we rcflcc1 on the uduc\'emcnts of the :m::n 4 24 .tl"rtdemu; y,:,11 , I am filled w11h pride: fur 1/tc 1l·sil1cncc: und 

commitment d1spb)'cd b,• 1hc oungsto\1i.-n S1atc U ru\CISil communn\ Tlus yeM hfu. been a 1ransfonm1t1H· 

penod marked br lol •n1f1cant gr0\\.-1h. inru,,nImn. and a rcnc:\\.cd ded1L".11t1m hJ our m1ss11.1n llf prm 1dmg u \\OrlJ~ 

da.ss cduca11 on 10 swtlcnts frnm around the globe 

Tins year. \\e cdchrn1e.d our prood lcgaq \11,hllc also adapting m 1hc c\ uh m,µ c<lucat10 11 al l:11aJ;;c.1pc lo 11:::.pon::.c 
to the closing of E11.s1crn Uatcway Commuruty Collcgc. YS launched ntl 1rn11m1, e tO cnhnm:c ni.:ccs:, iu lughcr 
cducauon by umoducmg a new assocu,1e dclin:c h1Ihon rate of :!65 pc1 crcd11 h ur This Slr'jtc~Ic <lcc1stun not 
only reaffirm s ou1 cornmnmcnl to :1tfo1d11b1h1y ln11 also ensures 1h::u 11u1 ::.tudc.-n1 !> lnhc i,c.cc~s hJ a full 1;ingc of 
s1udent scn·1ccs. crnpowc11ng them to thn, e 1n 1hc11 academu; pu rsuit 

Our comm1tmcn1 ro cducat1unal Cl.;cellcocc ,,a~ funhcr e~cmpltfied h,, 1h "' -:,pansu.m of our program offenngs 
W11h the 1.1dd111on (lf 50 nt"\\ as:-.ocrntc oind ccmf11.:a1c pro~rams, ,,c ate: uddrcssu1,g. the educa11onal 11~cds uf our 
region and crcahng. pathways 10 lug.her dc_grcc, ·n us d,..,er.sc amt, nf op11u:1s undcrs&.:or.?s our goal rn prO\ 1de a 
lull contmuum ufh1ghcr cdul.'.al!un allemnt,,es. f1orn cn.-denunls und co111f1 ;;rnons for earl) \\orkforcc cmry 10 

bachelor's and adrnnccd degre~ 1ha1 prep:Hc om g.radumcs fur leada:f•;h111 1oles 

Throughout 1hc yc;u , uu r focu lty :.111d :..:taff hn"'c hee" instrumental m :o. lrnp1ug 1he fu1urc wurk fon:c uf our rc_gton 
mid beyond VS •s Workfon.:e. Edul.'m1on, and lnnovauon 1111t1 at1\ c.s hit\ c created \ nal oppo11un1111::s fo , 
111dr\1duals across our region and the siate Through pro~1Jm dcs1g.11C!d :,.pcc1fil:atlv fo, K-1:! student~. 
companies. and community mcmbe~. \\C arc hclpmg lcunc1 s ups.kill ::ind resk11l in a rapu.Hy changing. Job 
markc1 Our Tmmmg Cemers, mcludmg th~ E,ccllcncc: Tram mg. Ccnlcl imd the IT Worl:-fon.:c ,\t:cc!cratur. ha, e 
been pi\ ornl rn prO\ 1dmg hands-on learn111g c,cpcncnccs that prepare siudc111s for careen, ,n field, M .. c ad\ anced 
manufac1unng_. elccu 1c ,chicles. and 111 format10111echno!u_gy 

Econum1cally, YS U continues tti make u subs1an11at 1mpai.:1 Our m sllHtl hrn conmbu1cd U\C1 $ 1 b1llmn ti) t he 
rc!:1on·s economy, supponmg mun: than 17.000 1obs This means !luu lll1c 1n every 21 Jflbs rn i1u , si: rv1cc ara::-1 1s 

lmkcd to the ilCll\lllC?i. uf YSU ,md Us :.t1UJen1 s (,r. duaics len\'e our ms11111t1on not only \\Ith \ 11hmhle degree~ 
bul ulso w 11h !he ski l ls 1h;11 cnlrnm,;c p1uducl l\ 1tv nmJ dn, e grn,\1h \\ nhtn 1hc bus1ncssc, that c111pil1v them 

S,ncc our ounding 111 Jt)O YS has rematned a corner.stone uf the Upper Ohio Valle dc<l1ca1ed lo pnl\ 1dmg 
h1gh-qual11y education nod fos1cnng 11cadcm1c excellence Our p1111nc,sh1ps \\Ith ll~al bu!:i,111(:)Se!I haH 
llourishcd, fac1l11a1mg collabora11on Ihm (ucls mnmat1on and ccononm:: dc,clupmenl 111 our comrnuru1y 

As we look ahead. we rc111a111 com111111cd ID cxp:md111g our cduca1 1011al uffcrmgs and enhanc.:1111: our support for 
sIudc111s YSU cor111mu.:s 10 prrn'1de specrnlizcd u a11 11ng, tail ored tu 1h • ncl!ds of the \\Orkforcl' , cnsurmg 1ht11 
111d1 v1du:ils can .idvan c their careers. fro m 1.:rcdc11 11 r.1I and ccmfic:ne prugrams. to assoc1a1cs, lmchclor ' ?i., 
master ' s. and doctor. I deg,ecs The pa1hwnys we p1ov1de me designed 10 empower s1Udcnts equippmg. 1hcm 
w11h lht! knowlcdg_e aod skills Hl excel in their chosen fields This 1, ,vh\! Youngs1m .. n State L'ru"ers11v h~ 
become T II E anchor u 111 versu 111 'on hea.st Oh10 

I am excucd fo r rhc fu1urc of Yaun~stu\\n S1:11e Unl\ ic:rs ll I JS ,1.c c"cllcc..llv con1inut! lu ~h:lpc 1hc h\C!t of our 
students and the communmc:s \\·C sen e 

ll111 John on 
l ' res1de.n1 

plant 
1noran 

To the Board of Trus!ees 
Youngstown State Umvers11y 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on the Audits of tho Financial Statements 

Opinions 

Pbnte A Moran, PLLC 
!-. • I \ 

.~.,O~ 1, ..... 1~1~, 

,;,,:lofl\.-:C.. 11, ',h4:>'." 
·..i I•.1.1 J • ,,.,. 

h,, 11 •-1 ;./ 1.;•~•. 

We nave aud1teo the l!nanC18I s1ataments of the busrncss-type act1v1t1es and tne discretely presented component 
urnt of Youngstown State Un1vers1ty (the "Univers11f") a component unit at the State of Ohio. as of and for the 
years enoea June 30 2024 and 2023 and the related notes 10 tne fmanoal s1a1emen1s, whtch collectJvely comprise 
Youngstown State Un1vers1ty's basic tinanoal srntemcms, as llstea in the taole of conients 

In our opinion. Iha accompanying f1nanoa1 statements re lerred to aoove present fa1r1y. 1n all matenal respects, lhe 
f1nanc1a! pos1tton of lhe ous.rness,type acllv111es and the discretely presented componen1 unit of Youngstown State 
University as ct June 30 2024 and 2023 and the respective changes 1n its financial pos111on and, where applicable, 
its cash flows thereof for lhe years men ended m accordance with accourning pnnc1p!es generally accepted 1n the 
Uni ted States of America 

Basis for Opinions 

,Ne conducteo our audits tn accordance wiln audmng s1andaras generally accepted m the United States of 
Amenca (GAASl and the standards apphcable to fmanoal audits cont2med in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales Our respons101ht1es under those srnnaaros are tunher 
descnbed In the Auditor's ResponSJ01ht1es tor the Audits of the F,nanc,aJ Statements section of our report We are 
requ1red to be 1ndepenoen1 ct the Un1vers11y and 10 meet our other ethical respons1b1h1tes 1n accordance with the 
relevanl elh1cal requirements relaung to our audi ts We beheve that the aud1I evidence we have obta1nea 1s 
sutt1 c1en t and appropriate 10 provide a basis for our audit opIn1ons 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management ,s responsible tor the preparation and fair presen1a11on of the finanoal s1a1ements 1n accordance w1th 
accounung prmoptes generally accep1ed in me United S1a1es of Amenca and for the design 1mplemen1a11on ano 
maintenance of internal control relevant to !he preparation and ra1r presen1a11on of f1nanc1al statements that are 
free from matenal misstatement wnelher due to fraud or error 

In preparing the financial statements management 1s required to evaluaie whether there are cond111ons or events 
considered 1n the aggregate, lhat raise subslant1al doubt abou1 the Universi ty 's abthly 10 conunue as a gomg 
concern for 12 months beyond tho financial statement date. 1ncludmg any currently known mformat1on that may 
raise substan11al doubl snortly thereafter 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statemenrs 

Our 0DJCCUves are to oblarn reasonable assurance aoout wnether the f1nanoal statements as a whole are lree 
from material rn1ss1a1emen1 wneu,er due to fraud or error and to issue an auo1tor's repon that includes our 
op1rnons Reasonable assurance ,s a high level of assurance but 1s not absolute assurance and thetefore, 1s not a 
guarantee that audits conouctea ,n accordance w11h GAAS and Government Audit,ng Sranaards wtlt always detect 
a ma1er1a1 mIsslaternen1 when 11 ex1s1s The nsk or not detec11ng a material m1ssta1emcnt resultmg from fraud 1s 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion lorgery, mtenhonal orrnsslons 
m1s,epresentations or the overnde of mternal control Misstatements are considered material 1f there 1s a 
substanl1al l1kehhood that 1nd1v1dually or 1n the aggregate they would influence !he JUdgmenl made t>y a 
reasonable user cased on lhe financial statements 

'"')P .t\XITY 



To the Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 

In performing audits in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exerose professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks. Such procedures indude examining, 
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the cir0.1mstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
University's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management. as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment. there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the UniverS1ty's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the 
planned scope and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that 
we identified during the audits. 

Roqulred Supplementary Information 

Accounting pnnciples generally accepted m the United States of Amenca require that the managemenrs 
d1SOJssion and analysis, the schedules of the University's proportionate share of the net pension liability, the 
schedules of the University's pension contnbutions, the schedules of the University's proportionate share of the net 
OPEB liability (asset), and the schedules of the University's OPEB contnbulions be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information 1s the responsib1hty of management and, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 1n the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements. and 
other knowledge we obtained dunng our audits of the basic finanoal statements. We do not express an opinion or 
proVlde any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
eV1dence to express an opinion or provide any assurance 

Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise Youngstown Stale University's basic financial statements The schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards, as required by Tille 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unifo"" Administrative Requirements. 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance"), is presented for the 
purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The Information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures apphed in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain addibonal procedures. induding 
companng and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures m accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of Amenca. In our 
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated 1n all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 

Additional Information 

Management is responsible for the message from President Johnson, lisl of the board of trustees, and list of the 
executive officers. which are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover such information. and we do 
not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon 
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To the Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 11, 2024 on 
our consideration of Youngstown State University's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is solely to desctibe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and lhe results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Youngstown State 
University's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Youngstown State University's 
internal control over financial reporting and comphance. 

October 11, 2024 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Management 's D1scu.ss1on and J\ nal ys1s section of You ng~town State U111 vcrs1ty • s l tht.! 
Umvcrsi ty or YSU) Financial Repon presents a d1scu,siun and analyst> of the linancml 
performance or the U111vcrstty during the fiscal car ended Ju ne 30, 202-1 w11h compara11 vc 
111 for mat1 on for the fi sc;il )' t.!ars cnd~d Junt! 30. 2023 and Jun l! 0 . 2012 This d1scussrnn has bee n 
prepared hy manageme nt and shou ld be read 111 conJunc1ton w11h the fina ncial statements and the 
accompany111g notes that follow 

lntrotluction 

An lns11tu 11 011 ofOppon untty YSU rnspi rcs tnd1v1duals. enhance, fu tures. and enriches lives 

As a s tudcnt~ccntcrcd university. Yo ungstown State University's 1111ss1on ls t(1 prov1t.h: 111novnt1\i: 

hfelong leamtng opponunmcs that wi ll 111sp1rc tnd1v1duals . cnlrnncc future , and cn11ch live; YSU 
mspi res individuals by cul t1 vattng a cunos11y for l1lelong lcarmng. enhance:, the futures or our 
students by empowering them 10 d1sco,•cr, d1sscn11na1e. and appl)' their kno" ledge. and ennchcs 
the region by fos tenng co llaboration and the advancement or c1v1c. sctcnu fic . :1nd tcchnolog1cal 
deve lopment. YSU "s culture of enri chm ent nourishes tn nrn diverse. accessi ble. and gualll)' 
education 

Youngstown State Umvcrsny 1s wht!rc students thrive m thc11 cducauonal and career pursu11s . 
where scholarship cremes innovative solutions, and where:: conunu1111y engag~ment 1s a cornerstone 
or collaboration 1ha1 colkct1vcl conmbutc to the sustamable prosperity of the region and beyond 

We - the fac ulty. staff, adm1111strators, ancl s1udcnts of Youngswwn Stale Un1vcrs11, - hold the 
followmg v3)ucs csscntt al to nth1evi ng the 1mss1m1 and reahzmg the vision-

• Centrahty of Students We put students li rst fos tcrt ng 1hctr hol 1s11e and hli:long s uccess 
• Excellence and lnno\ auon \Ve bnm! acudc m1c c....:ccl lcncc and 1nnovat1on to h:armn!.! and 

lire for all stakcholdcrs - -
• lntcgrily and I Imm.Ill D1gnll) We root all bcha, 1or.. , Jcc1s10n~. nnd ru.:t 1ons m the 

achicv~mt!lll ofinh:gruy. mutual rcspct:l , l:O!h:g1ality. cq 111t~ , and 1nclus10n 
• Collaborall on and Pub lic Engagemcn1 - We cmhrncc cnlluhorut1on and t: rcatc innovati ve 

pannersh1ps 10 roster sustamab1hty and enrich our unt vcrsity. our cuht1rc. nnd region. 

The Umvcrstt stancd out as a s111gle co111mercial law course olfored by the local YMC/\ O, er a 
ce ntury later, tt serves the Youngstown area wllh the same passio n. and consists of the College or 
Graduate Stud ies an I li ve undergraduate colleges the Beeghly College of Liberal /\ns. Social 
Sciences . and Education . the 13itontc College or Health and Human Services. the Cl1!fr College nf 
Crea11vc /\ rts. the College of Science. Tcchnology. 0 ng1ncermg, and Ma1 hcma11es. and the 
Will iamson College of Bus 111ess Adm1111stra110 11 The Uni versity offers degrees at the assoc1a1c, 
undergraduate, gradualc. and doctoral leve ls 

The U111vcrslly 1s locatc:<l on a 145-acre ca mpus nc.ir do, ntown Youngstown. Ohio and 1s 
cqu 1d1swr11 (approx1matdy (,0 miles) from both 1'1mburgh mid Cleveland Fall 20-~ enrol lment 
was 12. 164 

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

lls ini: !he Fi nancia l Sta tement s 

The Un1vcrst1) ·s financial reron mcludcs three basic fi nancial s tatements the Statement of Net 
Pos1 tmn , the Sta1cn1t.:n1 of Rt.:venucs. Expcnst.:~. and Changes m Net Position . and the S1atcmc m 
ol" C.1sh Flows T hese fi nanc111l sta1c111c111s arc prepared 111 accordance wi th the f1nanc 111I rcpomng 
formut requ ired hv the Governmenta l Accounung S1andards Board ' s (G/\SB) Statements No '4 , 
Ha., 11.: 1-'man, wl .'-;1t1/L'm1•m ,, om/ .\l011ogem t.·111 ·, /)1., cussum dtttl A 1wfr., 1., /nr .\'1t111.• um/ J.ocul 
( i11, ·t•nm1cnl\, as amt.:ndcd . and o 35. /lu.Hc. Fmw,c1,1/ Sw11..•mc:111., 1111d A /011u~r:11w111 ·., / )1., c:11.,.,um 

wul A,wh ,,, /r,r J1uh/, ,._· ( ·111/l'g ·., one/ l l111ver .,1110 . as amended These Slatemcnb esrnbhsh 
s1andar<ls nu cxtanal fi nanl:ml rt.:por1m g fr>r plJbl1 c co lleges and u111 vcrsi11es and rcqu uc that 
fi nancial stntcmcnts hi.! prt.:~cnt!.!<l on a basis to focus on the f111anc1al condiunn o f the U111vcrs1 t_, 
the result~ or operation~. and cash !lows of 1l1l!' U111 vcrs1ty as a whole 

Durmg 1'1 , cal ,-,ar "018. the Um,ers1tv adopted (,A_ B Statement No 75 . A<Tmm1111i: anti 

Fmanc.wl UL'por1111,:. for l 111s1emp/opm•111 He11i:111, CJ/h,:r 1/,011 l 'en.,um., f() /'l:"fJJ and dunng fisca l 
year 2015 . 1hc Univcrslly adopted CiASB Statement o 68, ..lt·co11111m>! wul /.'1110111 .. -1,1/ Ueporl lfl)!. 

fur J>t:n., 1011., - w 1 wm.:nclml'm uf C ;.1s11 ,'•,'tutt! lll t'III :Vu 2.., These sta1cmc111s s1gmficantly revised 
a1,;cnun11ng tl1r pcns1on1OPEB costs and a:,;scts/l1ab1ht1r.:s 

!'nor 10 (iASl3s 68 and 75 . the accountmg for pcos10111OPEB costs, was focused on a fund111g 
approach , \\ h1ch hm11..:=d pcnswntOPEB costs to contribuuom, annually requ ired b law. ,,1h1 ch 
m:iy or may 1101 be s11flic1cn1 to fully fund each pension plao ·s net pcnsion!Ol'EB assc1lhability 

UnJcr the standards required hv these statements. the net pcns1nnlOl'EB asse t/ habi l11y equals the 
Un1vcrs11, • propnn1onatc slm rc of each pcns1on/O l'EB plan ' s collce11vc present , aluc nf 
est11nati..:d l"utun= pcnsion,OPEH bcm:lits attnbut~bk 10 cmpl0) i.=i:~ ' pa.st service mmus plan asse ts 
available to pay these bcndits l'ens1on/OP ·I:! obl1ga11ons. \\hethcr funded or unfunded , a rc part 
of the .. cmploymem cxclmngcH that 1s. the employee 1s tradmg h1~ or hcr labor in exchange for 
wages. benefit,. and the promi,e uf a fut ure pension and O1-'EB The unfunded pontons of these 
pens1on/OP EB promi ses arc a present nhhga11on. part o f a bargained-for bene fi t to the employee. 
and arc tcportcd by the U111 \lc rs 1ty as liabiilth:!'o since the bendit of' thi: t.:xchangt.: wa - rcct.:1vcd 

The nature of"Ohm·s statewide pension systems :ind state la \, go,cmmg tho ·c S)!-tlcms rcquire!­
add11wnal explanatwn 111 order 10 properly understand the 111forma11c,n presented 111 these 
statements The Umvcrs1t, 1s not rcsponst ble for ccna111 kei fo tnrs affect mg the ha lance or thcs-, 
ltah1l1 t1cs In Oht0, the employee shares the nh l1 ga11on c,r fund ing pension bcndit, w11h the 
cmplll ,er Bnth employer and employee contnbut1un rates arc capped by the State statute /\ 
du111gc 111 the, • l·aps requires action by both Houses of the General /\ssemhly, and approval ufthc 
Go,·t.:nwr Bcni:lit prov1s1011 !-o arc also dctcrmmc.d by State stril uh,! The t.:mpluycc i:nlcrs the 
employment exchange wi th the~"°' ledge that the employcrs pron11se 1s lim tted ont by cont ract 
but by l:I\\ The employer ontcrs the exchange a lso knowtng that there 1s a spcc 1f1 c. lega l 1111111 to 
HS con1r1butrnn to the pe nsion !'-ystcm In OhlO, there 1s no kga l lllCiinS to cnfurci: the unfunded 
habil1t_ or the pension s stem agamst the public employer. Statc hm operates to m111 gate the 
obl ig:111011 of lhe public employer to 1hc l:mployl.!c because all panics enter thc employment 
e"d1angc with nouc.:e as to the law The pt.:ns1nn svstcm is rcspons1 hlc for the admm1strn l1on of the 
rlan 



YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

Mos1 long-h::nn l iab1l it1 cs have si:t repayment schedules or, in the ca!-.c of compt:nsatc<l absences 
( 1.i.:::. sick and vacm,on leave). arc satisfied through paid 1i1m.:•nff or h.: rm ination pay1 111.:n1~ T hcrc 

is no rcpaymcnl schedu le li,r the ncl pcns,un/O!'EH assctl l1abil!tics Changes in Jl"l1Sion/Ol'El3 
hcncfits, con1r1hu11on ralcS, and rdurn on ,nvcstrncnts affect the balanL'CS of the net 1knSion/O PEB 

assct/l1abil! t1c · hut.ire <mts1dc the cont rol uf 1he public employer In !he event that conmbuuons, 
invesnnent rt! tums and other changes ::m: msutlic1tnt to keep up w11h rcquir~d payments. Siatt 

sta1utc docs no1 ass1gnh dc1111fy 1hc rcspunsihlc party for the unfunded porti on Due 1u 1hc umque 
n:lluri:. of how the ni..:I pcns1on/OPEB assct/l 1ab il 1ues arc saus lkd, thc~c assets and liabdn1cs am 
separately identified wi thin the nuncurrc nl assc l and 110 11c urrc11t li .ih1l 1ty sec t ions of th l.': Statcme11 1 

of Net Posi t 1011 . 

In accordance with GASBs 68 and 75. the Univers1 1y ·s statements, prepared on an accmal hasis 
of accounting, include an annual pe11s11)1 O l'EB expense fur the proportionate sha re of each 
pension plan·s choll~t' m net pcns"'n/OPEB a~sct/l1 abil itv 

Ovcrn ll key prcscntallon dcm r:nts orthc financial statements rncludc 

t\sscls amJ li abi li l it.:s me cmc~on zctl as i..:11lu:r t:urrc 111 OI' 11011currc lll Cunc111 assets and hah1l111 t: s wi ll 
he consumed or fo lfilkd wi1 hi11 ont: yc;u 

Revenues and cxpt.·nst:s arc cntcg.,H·1:;,t:d S.h c 11ht:r opcr:mng. or Iwn -opcrn1111g Signdic~o1 ,econ Ing. 

source!> of the l1111vcrs11y ·.s rC\cIrnl":'I. 111 dud111~ Stale of Ohm (St:th:) app1 u11na11om,, cc11a111 grants. 
g1tls. and m,cst111 c11t 111cumc arc cnns1dci cd nnn-upi..:raling.. a.-. de-fined by Ci.-\SB Stalcmclll No :;5 

U 111 \'crs11y sc hola1slup~ that represent reduced tmtiun (i .r.: .. :ur.: .1pphcd 10 s1udcm accn11nIs r:11 hr.:r 1han 
refunded 10 studr.:n tsJ :m: shown :1s ~\ rcduc1io11 1,.)f1ui11on. fees :111d 01he1 s1udc111 chafg.cs. and au'.\.i li ::H)' 
cnh.:1p ri scs. whi le pay 111cn1s made <.hrcc1 ly to sl u tknt are prcxcntcd a5i scholarship t:xpcnsc ·nurd 
party schoh1rsl 11 p, :trr.: 1rcated as thoush 1hc s111 di.:111s 111:1dc the- 1>aymc1t1s tlicmsc-l\'CS 

• C':1 p11al ~1ssct~ :.nc rcponcd net of:.iccuinula1t:J ,h:p1ccrnt1011 and ~11ml1"112.at1011 

l'n accordance with GASB S1a1emcn1 (> . 14, /'lw Fmwre1ol Nc1u,rtr11,-: /.:"11nty. as amended by 
GASB Slatcment N(i . 39, I h•rcrmmmg lVhc:rhcr < ·L'nom (Jrp.m11:u1ro 11.,· An: ( 'tt1up11nc, 11 I i n,1., , and 
GASB S1a1cmen1 No. 6 1, /'Ju.:, F 11w11cwl N,:1uu·1111g f·.'11111y : < Jm111/,u.,. The Youngslown State 

Un1vcrs1 ty Foundat ion (YSUF or Foundation) 1s treated as a component uni t of the U11ivcrsi1y. 
The Foundation is d1sc rc1cly presented ,n this rcpon by pre ·entatH1n or the individual financial 
s1a1emcnts immed1atdy fo llowi ng the Umvcrsity·s rcs1x:cu vc GASB financial sta tements 
Addi1 iona) informatum on this component uni t 1s con1a1ned in Note 15 Managcmcnt·s D1 cusston 
and Analysis focuses on the Urnversni• and docs not include the component unit 

In lisca l year 2023 , 1hc Umvers11y adoplcd UASB Sta1cmcn! No. 9/, S11h.1cri11t11111-liu." 'ii 
l 11Jormu1 11 m T£·d11J11logi' .·lrn111}.!cme111.,· (SBlTAs) tht objective of wl11ch ts to better mt.:i.:t tlu.: needs 
of finuncial s!Utcmcnt us~rs hy im proving atcountmg and linant 1ul rtporting for subscnpuon~ 

based rnfonnat1on 1ct:hnology arra ngement. This resulted in ~1 drnngc in account mg pr111c1 pl1.: and 
has been rdkclcd as ofJu ly I , ~U~ I 
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YOUNGSTOWN ST ATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANAL YSJS (CONT.) 

The Statement of Net l 'osi t ion 

The 'rntcmcnl of Nt.:t Po:;1 ti nn presents th~ li n1.1m:1al posi ti on of tht: University at the t'.'.nd of !he 

liscal year ,md includes all asse ts (current and noncurrent) , 1.JctCrrcd outllows or resources, 
lrnbil1 t1cs (current and nonturrent). def"crred mllows or resources. and n~t pos1 t1on nf the 
Univcrsny Current assets are class1ficd as such ,f 1hcy arc ava ilable ID sausi: current l1;1b1li t1es, 
which arc generally dc..: fmcd as hc.ing dut w1tl11 n onc ycar of 1hc: dat..: of 1h..: Stati::mcnt of Nt.!t 
Positrnn. ct posi t ion Is one 111d1cator o f th1.:: financial co 11 d11 1on of 1hi.: U ni v..: rs1 Iy , while. th~ change 
in n..: t pos 11 ion is an ind11:ator o f whether thi.:: o vcr~1II fi nanci.11 cond i1ion has 11npmvc<l (1r wo rsened 
during thr.: year 

A summarized comparison of the Umvcrsity·s assets. deferred ou1nows or resources. l1ahil111cs. 
deferred 1n0ows of resources. and nel posil ion follows 

:\ss c1~ 

( ·u, 1 cn1 "-" ·l·ts 

Noncurrcm :-cs.~cls 

C;1p1w( il.S:i,ClS. IICI 

Other 3.!,,St:L"i 

Total 110ncurt~m asset.:. 
TtU.al Ai.:i,c:b 

l)i.:fc11c<l Olnllo\,:1- ofRcsrnucc, 

l..1nh1 !111c, 

C'rn-rcm liab1ltucs 

Noocurr-c111 l 1ab1l1hc'i 

T oL1I Lt:lbal 1111:s 

OcforreJ Inflows ofRc..souicc, 

Ni.:I PC\ .. IIIUll 

N c l uwcs111rnt Ill C3Jlll al :L,\: ',CI 

Rc -.tnc tcd 

Unrcs 111C1cd 

To1.;d N c1 Pos111011 

.hme .. 0, 2024 

S R-1 .987.373 

s 

22S.'1-17. 72.h 
J9 tx)O 9-lS 

2n7 9..JX .o7 ..J 

~:? ').)'i, 9-47 

10,501..170 

)7.25'>.t,.'7 
I 7R,:?ti8. 7QI 

2 l S 518.-138 

18.JXI In 

l 5'l.K51.J-1J 
.,.1 . 110. 120 

!54 J93.7"6 ) 

I ,1q_~S7. 707 

June: 30. 2023 

s 

::!)::! . 1~7.1:liN 
i ~ 505 lM~ 

2117 (il2.o"3 

347.4-4'i .(,(J) 

'I ,6 18,2:'18 

200.8fi7. ~:?R 
23~. ~05.71((, 

160.-187 _<J<l7 

.1 I .NS'>. ! :\ I 

1 c,o.J~S,535 ! 
1.11 .<J11l .59J 

Jmc 30. 202:2 

s 

::!J]. 7().1.2,17 

]9 870 (119 

::!73574.1:H,O 

J;:;<J.1l -4l .U~7 

HJ.7J5,(11)0 

I J2,2::!J .2l12 

lh:'._CJ-c;~.J::!:: 

I57.721.J.::!5 

J 1.771 .'l70 

15ZII-U1.-Wt,} 
I-IZ.3~7.h~N 

Curren t assets include unrcstnctcd and rcstnc1cd cash and cash cqu1valcn1s, 11 tvcs tmi.::nt. thn t 

maturi.:: withi n one year. rccc ivahl1..:...'\, 111vcntom.:::,. and otht:r shon-tenn i.l S ·cts N oncurrcm assets 

include:! unrestricted mves11ncn1s thnt mature in more than one year and 11wcstmcn1s that ,ire 

rcs1nctcd by donors or t: . ..: tcrnal par1ic as to thi:ir ust! /\ lso includs:d arc ri.;cl!1vahlt:s decmtd to he 

collccubh: 111 more than one year, capital assets. and net OPEB assc1s uncnt nsscts incrca~cd 
S5.2 mi ll ion from fiscal ,·cnr 2023 10 li scal vcar 2024 an(! decreased $1, <, null ion from fi scal vear 
21>22 1n lisc;i l year 2023 , Nnncurrcnt assets ;emai ned 11 ,11 from fiscal year 2023 10 liscal year 2024 
and decreased S5.9 mill ion i"rom fiscal year 2022 to fisca l year 202' 

DdCrn:d out flows of resources 111clude resource!\ \ hcrt.: 1hi: tonsumptimI i~ appl1c:l1bk 10 a future 
rcpor11ng pcnod but dues not require further exchange of serv ice. Deferred out tlows, which include 
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Items rcla1i11g 10 bond refunding and pensions/OP ER. ckcrcased S 17 0 111 ill111n from liscal year 
]()23 Lo tiscal year 2024 and increased $22 2 mil lion fro m fi scal year 2022 10 lhcal year 2023 

Current liabihucs incl ude all hah1l111cs that are payable "i1l1111 1hc next fi scal year Unearned 
revenues, pnnc1pally from summer programs, are also presented as. currcnl liab1lllu!s L1ab1hllt'S 
that arc due 10 be paid beyond the next fi scal year arc reported as noncurrenl lrnb1h11cs and include 
debt. leased liab1h11cs. compens,11cd absences, and net pension Ol'EB l1 abd111c, Current hah1h11cs 
increased SS 6 million from fisca l year 2023 IO fiscal year 2024 and increa,ed SO 'l mil hon from 
liscal year 2022 10 Ii seal year 2023 Noncurrcnl liabi lities dcc, ca,cd S22 6 million frnm r,scal )·car 
2023 lo liscal yea r 2024 and increased $68 6 mill ion from fi sca l •car 2022 1,, fiscal vcar 201' . 

Delcm::d ,nnows of resources represent the acqu1s111on ofrcsou,u · 1ha1 arc apphcabk 10 a future 
reponmg period. Deferred mnows or rt:sources, which include unamor111cd concc smn 
arrangements and nems rela11ng 10 pcns1ons/OPEB, dccrca~cd S:! I m1llwn from f, cal year 2023 
lo liscal year 2024 and decreased $59 4 rndhon from fiscal ,car 2021 w Ii. 3I )C:lr }OU 

I IJsets 

Ass~ts primarily consist of cash and cash equiva lents. 1nvcsuucms. recei ahlc . and l'al 11al nsscts 
The lo llowing table summarizes balances a1: 

Cash and <.·ash equn. alcnb 

ln veSlll'lt:nlS 

Ac c.: oun1s. l0Jns. :m d pledgt=~ 1ccc1v:.1ble, nc1 

Net OPF.A asset 
Capn::il assets. nt:t 

0 1hc1 
Tora I Assets 

June 30, 20:?4 
S 16,Sbl'),OJJ 

85,--1:SG. IV, 

l ::!. ::?.1 00:!-1 
6,7<.-1 .7 1,, 

::?28.'>--17.7:?ll 
~ Cl:IH.:?73 

June 30. 202.3 
:?0.392.::?-U 
7U.557.CJ49 
'l,619.205 

6.776.fK.l(J 

:!J:!. 127.:?hK 

1. 'J7~.94l 

June 30, ::!022 
S 1CJJJQ7.'271 

70.088.007 
11 .99-1.668 
\3 ,'217.1-11 

::?.33 ,70-l.:!-l7 
t .~Cr.J.:5ll:! 

Cash and cash equivalents dccrca~cd S3 5 m1lhon or 17°,o from fiscal year 20D to liscal year 2024 
The decrease wa, due 10 a combina11on orsn S m1lhon used m opera ling acu, 111e, . S77 3 m1ll1on 
provided by noncap1tal firmnc 1ng act1v1t1es. S 1.5 mill1nn provided hy 1nvcst1ng acuv111~s. and S9 8 
million used 111 capital and n:latcd tinanc1ng activmes 

lnvcsl111c111s increased SR.CJ 111111 1011 or 12% from fiscal year 21123 to liscal year 20211 Unrcs1T1c1ed 
invl!sllncnts increased S5.6 million and endowments ;111d rc~tnc.:tcJ 1nvcs t1n1,;nts 111crc"scd S3 3 
tmllton The increase! was pnmanly due 10 investment income and unreali zed ga111 !'i rcsult111g from 
.i fa vorable ma rk t!t i:nv1ronmcnt 

'I 
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Overall actounts. loath. und pk: Ugcs: rc cl.! 1 ahk 111cn:ascd $2.7 m1l l1on or :?.?0/o fro m fiscal year 
202 to liscril yea r 202-t Th1..: 1ncn.:~ISL" was pnman ly due to an rncrcasc Ill net accou nts rct.:c1v.ahh; 
Net acrn1111ts rece1vahlc 1nc1cascd 2. 7 11111111111 fro m 9 5 mll l1on al June 30, 2023 to S 12.2 mil hon 
at JunL· 30. J02..l Student accounts receivable~. net incn.::ascd SI -I m1lhon dut! to increased 
enrollment Grants and contract~ n.:cc:1, ahks net 111crcascd O 8 mil hon due to new grants awardcU 
111 li scal year 2024 1ha1 111duded the Great M111ds l'cl luwsh,p Program and 1hc Quest Broadband 
& G Keg1ona l Node gram S1a1c cap11al approprrnuon n::cc1vablc, decrease SO 4 million due 111 
decreased vcar end ac11v11y on c<1p11al proJCCIS funded from slate cap11al appropriation, Other 
rcce1vahlcs increased ,o 8 111111,on pnmanly due 10 the insurance clann from the Ward Beecher 
Planetarium lire 

Ne1 Ol'Eli as,el> rcma111cd na1 frnm fi scal year ~()23 to fiscal ,car 2024 

Cash and cash eqwvalcnt, dccrea,ed S8 7 mdl1on or 300,o from fiscal year 2022 to fiscal yc,11202.J 
nit.: decrease: \\ lb due: to i.t cmnb1mn1011 of S71 ➔ m1ll1on used in operaung act1v1ucs S77 I m,llmn 
prov1d..!d b~ 11oncap1tal fin:mc1ng acu, 1tH!S. 0 2 m1ll 1on USl!d in 1nvt:!Slmg act1vit1t:s , and $14.2 
m11l 1on usi:d 111 capital and related li nancing act1v1t1cs 

Investments mcrca!!icd S6 4 million or quo from fiscal year 202:! to f1st:a l year 2023 . Unrcstnctr.:!<l 
11wcs1111ents 1ncrc;1s ·d s- I mill1on c1nd t.:ndowmt:nts mid restricted invcstmcnls increased S 1.3 
m1!11on The- mcrcasc ,,as prrmanl~ Jut: 10 in vestment 111cumt:: and unrealized gains rcsultrng from 
a favorab le market cn\'11onmcnl 

Overall accounts, lo::ins. and pledges rccc1vublc dccrt!ased S2 -I million or 20°10 fro m liscal year 
2022 to fiscal year ~01 The dt.:c rcas1: was pnmanly due to a di.:crcasc in net accounts rccc1vablc 
Net accounts recei vable decrtsascd S2.2 m, 11 11111 from S 11 7 mi ll ion al June 30, 2022 10 S9.5 m1ll1 on 
at June 'O. 2023 , rncludi ng a SU.5 mill 1un decrease ,s ncl student accounts , a SI J mi ll ion decrease 
rn grams and contracts rccc1vablc~ and a S0.4 m1!11on decrea!)t: in state appropriations rcce1vabh.: 
Tiu: dt:crcasc 111 grnnts ancJ c.nntracts rcce1vablcs \\"JS due to the drawdown of pnor 1car 
unrc ,mburscd HEERF funds and rccel\ ables rclatmg 10 the Energy Storage Rcpon and Roadmap, 
and construcuon of 1he Excellence Trammg Center Staie capnal approp11a11on rcce, ables 
decreased due 10 decreased year end ae11v11y on cap11al prOJCCts funded from stale capital 
approp11a11ons 

Net Ol'EB assets decreased n 5 m,111011 or 49~. f'rom fiscal year 2022 10 fiscal year 2023 The 
dt:c:r..:as1.: was primarily Im: to a tombination of a S7.J mil hon dccn.:nsc 111 th!.! OPERS net OP l::B 
asset and a O 8 111trc.isc 111 the STRS Oluo 11c1 OPES asset The STRS Ohw and OPERS net 
Oi'EB a el balance, \\ere $6.8 mdhon and O al June 30. 2023 and SS 9 m1ll 1on and S7 3 1111111011 
al Ju ne 30. 2022. rcspct11vd) 

Refer to 01c J for add111onal 111forma11on on cash and cash cq111 valc111s, Note .i fo r dc1a1l s on 
111vcstmi.:nts. Nott: 5 for 111fo rrnat1on on ;1CC(HHHS and loans recc1vabh:, and Note 6 for 111fonn:11to11 

on pledges fl.' tt:1vahlc 
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Al June 30, 2024, 1hc Umvers11y had S22R.9 million m cap,rn l assc1s. nc1 or 11ccumula1ed 
dcprecia11on and arnortl7.i1110n Deprccrn11on and amnrt1za1u111 101alcll S 18.6 million. $ 17 9 million. 
and S 17 2 m1ll1on in fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022 rcspccuwly 

Details of ncl rnpital assels arc shown below 

Land 
iju1ldmg!'i , IH'!I 

lmprovemerus le, t:,u,ldmg .. . n t:1 

lmprovt:n1en I o; n the1 1haI1 bu1ld111~~ . 11e1 

Constrm::1 1u u m progress 

~loveable e<1u1r11ucn1 and furnitu re . ncl 

Vehicles. ne1 

I li stoncal tre .:i.s ures 

H.1gh1-rn -u s c USSt'! l S • c11u11u\-.: 111 . nt:I 

R 1,ghHO·ll !> c a S.'> t:t .'> • SBITA .... nt:1 

Tomi C:lp1 tal Asscl :?>. net 

June JO, :?0::?4 
S I K,fH8.(,71J 

K) . i <,J .71,() 

X(,_t)(,Q,JQ..I 

,~_c,:u, _.,t,~ 
J .57X, 179 

6.27'i..8RI 
Jl(j_7t'i'l 

1.oS<",.~ss 
' '>0.63K 

8.712,3::!3 

June 30. 202:3 
t I 8,(,tl~,(,7Q 

K7.670.JJ.J 

~S.J JJ.-157 
IR.7(,.'-,.(,73 

\JJO(),l \ 

6,JC.1,831 

Jh l . 187 

1.0<6.>88 
(,<);'.! _ S1 

7. (11.211 

June JO, :022 
S IX.5JK.(,Qll 

9~, I06.2K7 
so.:. 15,0,;,7 
I Q.~b<,.)NC, 

5_;;.:;J ,"t,J 
(1,0i6,-IKO 

363,:?5-I 

1.<1'1 .338 

I .2 I~. l t)R 

K.()-QQ,fi71 

MaJor capllal acu lly during liscal year 2024 included the co111plc111.111 M upgrades 10 1hc 1111luy 
d1slribu11on systems, cons1r11ct1on of the new A rhng1on parking lot located al the sue of 1he 
previous M60 park mi; deck. and repairs Ill the M'O parkmg deck Roof rcplaccmcms were also 
complc1cd on 1he E.J Salata Complex and Cushwa Hall lo improve leaks and mcrea~c energy 
cf1ic1cncy In addiuon, rcnova11ons 10 the audllonum and classrooms 111 Moser J l;ill . rcnova1,ons 
lO lhc STJ;M science labs m Ward Beecher Hall . and repairs lo the cJc,,:nor • and rcnova11ons to 
1hc second noor or Sil\'cstn I lall were completed. Housing rcnovatums were completed 111 1he 
L)•den House and 111cluded upgrndcs tu 1hc bathr(,oms 111 the suulh wing . a h01 water tan~ 
replacement. .ind new flooring m residential rooms Lastly. 1hc turf 111 1hc Wat.son and T rc:sscl 
Tra ining Sue was replaced Conslrucuon 111 progress includes lhc arch1 lcclun: Ice for lhc new 
S1udcn1 Center. rcp:ms 10 1he Ward Beecher l'lanctanum due to 1hc Janu:tr\' 2023 fire, renov:111ons 
10 various buildings across cilmpus 10 address the 1.:x1cnor di.:tcnnr.i11on or"thc budding cn\lclopcs. 
nt:.w sca1mg rn the Beeghly Center gymnasium, and r..:pa1rs 10 1hc hcaung ho1krs and the dcv:1101 s 
m Lyden House R1gh1~10.use assets add1tmns included pnntcr1copn.::r cqwpmcnt and ,·anous 
mformauon 11....x:hnolog.y software lca,cs 

Ma_1or capnal :1c11vny dunng fiscal year 2023 included the cn111ple11on of the Walson Team Center. 
a fac1lny designed for 1hc Un,vcrsny 's eng111cenng students IO prepare for compc111 rnn, 
lmprovcmi.:nts 10 anous buildings across c:mnpus were also completed to addrc~s the cx1c.:rrnr 
dc1eriora11un ol" lhc bu1ld1ng envelopes. upgrades 10 I IVAC and air handlmg umls and upgrades to 
doors lO enhance campus safi:1y In add111on. the Kor:indo\"lch Spons Mcdicme Ccn1cr loc,ucd ,n 
Beeghly Cenler, a space IO serve 1he hcallh care needs or 1he Um\"crsm·· s smdenl-alhlctcs. and lhc 
D1Bacco Family Leadership Center. a mull1-purpose mcel111g and clns; room localed m SIHmbaugh 
!itad1um. we re complc1cd l'arkmg impro emcnls included 1he comple11011 or several new surface 
lots on the wcsl side of campus as well as repairs 10 lhc M30 park mg deck Hcnova11ons were made 
lo lhc first noor and basement of Moser Hall , the li rs1 floor or S1lveslrl I !all. 1hc bathrooms 111 lhc 
eas1 wmg of Lyden I lo1Lsc and lhc elevators ,n Jones llall In add111on. a pnnwn orKohh I lall ron r 
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was n.:placcd, as \\'ell as the Cafaro I louse hol water tank and tloonng 1n various pans of 1hr.: 
Andrews Rccrcntton ·cn1cr Constnict1on an progress 111cludcs the Arhng1on parkmg lot located 
a1 the si te or the previous M60 parkmg deck, upgrndcs lo the utility distnbul1 011 systems, repairs 
to lhc M 30 parking deck. rc11ova 11ons 10 the Li•den I louse bathrooms in 1he sou1h wmg. 
replaceme11t or1he Cushwa Hall n11d E J Salata Complex rools , repairs lo lhc clcva1ors in Silveslrl 
I lall and Beeghly Ccmcr, renova 11 ons lo the ST · M sc ience !ah 111 Ward Receher Hall . reoova11ons 
In the aud11onum anu classruoms in Moser I !a ll and rcnova11ons lo lhc second floor of Sil vestn 
I !all R1ghl-lCH1se asscls add1l1ons mcludcd pri111erl cop1er equ ipment and various informa 11on 
lcchnology soft,,a rc leases 

Ma_1or cap11al ac11vi1y during fiscal year 2022 111cludcd 1hc complc11 on ol'lhc campus devclopmcnl 
project to upgradl.! and replace vanous walkways. entrances. re1aining wall s and other exterior 
t!kmen1s, Park111g 11nprovement.s rncluded repairs and rcnova110ns to the parkmg dcck5 during 
2021 and the rcsurfocmg or lhc MC, park111g lol Buildrng ,mprovcmcnLs 111cluded 1he completion 
ufthe 1h1rd phase of renovations in \Vard B~cchc:r I !all as well ,,s rt:no :11 wns 10 thL.: crccnhouse 
In adthllon. the lhlrd phas\." of rl'nova11ons to the: !>hys1cal Thcrnpy dcp. nmem 111 C~1shwa I !all 
were compk·tc:d us ,,c:11 as the s~co11d phasc of rcnovat1on~ 111 Fcdnr Hall Rt.:novations \\ .,; re also 
made 111 1he Edward J Sala1a Complex. the rcs1roums in K1 lcawlcv Center and the A lumni E, cnts 
oillcc 111 Tod Hall T he clullcr 111 Kilcawley I louse was replaced ·and upgrades were made 10 1hc 
air handlrng un11111 Bliss I !all Mul11plc parcel orlanu wer~ purchased 111clud111g parcels nn F,flh 
A venue and \.Vesl Commc.::n:e Street wi th thr.: rntcnt of crcaung add111onal p:trking areas as well a 
pa reds on Wi::s'I Ray~n A vcnul.! with th~ mtcnt of crca11 ng the:: Watson Team Center. a spacl! to 
hou. c th!! Umvcrs11y's cngrnccnng and cngrnccnng 1cchnology compc.!lltton tc:ams Construcuon 
in progress 111cl11dcs lhe Wa1son Team Center :ind rcnova11ons to various build mg. across campus 
to address 1hc cx1cnor dctenora11on ofbu1ldingcnvclopcs. upgrade HVAC and air handlmg unlls. 
repair nnd replace clt!vators. upgrade the ut1l11y d1s1nbu11on sys1cms and upgradt: doors to enhance 
campus safety In add1uon. renovations arc underway rn Moser f fall and the Lyden I luus.,; 
ba1hrooms as well as repairs and rentwauons to Kohh I !all's roof In add111on. 1hc 1mpacl of lhc 
July I. ~02 1 1111plemcn1a1,on of GASB 96 m fi sca l year 2022 was an increase or 8 7 mil hon 111 

ne1 R1gh1-10-usl! assets SBIT/\s, 1ncludmg a S7_6 1ml11nn rt.:statl!ment of hcg.111mng balances. 
currcnl year SBITA i1du111011s of S' - m1lho11 and current year amor117.a11on o!"S2 -11111!11 011 

. cc No1e 7 for udd11101rnl 1nfor111a11 on on cap1wl a sets and Noic 11 for leased hab1l1ui:s related to 
nght-to-usc: assets: 

Other asset 111crcascd SO 7 1111!1!011 or 37" • from fisca l ! ca r 2023 lo fisca l yc,ir 202-l The 111crease 
wu; prunanly due lo a SO ~ 111,lhon mcn:asc 111 prepaid expense and a SO 5 111,!hon mcrcasc in 
ucli.:rrcd fn1anc1al a,d 

01her assets remamcd nal from fiscal year 2022 IO fiscal vca r 2023 
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Deferred Ou1no ... s//11flol\'S of Resources 

Deferred ou1nows of resources represent 1he consump11on of resources 1ha1 Mc applicable lo a 
fu1 urc rcporllng penod, hu1 do ncn require f"unhcr exchange or gnn Is or ser\'tce,. whereas deferred 
in nows of resources represen1 the acqu1s111on of resources 1ha1 urc applicab le to a fu1t1re repomng 
pcnod The followmg iable su111manzes balances al 

Deferred Ourllo"'s of Resources June 30, 202,1 June. JO, 2023 June o. '.202:? 
Kd1J1cd 111 pension s 2CJ. 798,9X(I s .11 ,260 i-:o:i :?) ,0.15 .301) 

ltc:btcd 10 OPEi:l 2 560 JXO -1,93:! ,J)l 780,U.L" 

Uond rcfund1 11:;, I !U:! OIU 1,3:!IJ, I ·12 I A56.25_. 
ToL1l Ocfoned Outflows of Res IUCCS )II 561 ,170 > .17 522.:nu :!S.271.59S 

Deferred Inflows of Resources June JO. 2024 Juw, JO. 2023 Jw\C o. 2022 

Scn 1cc co rlCessam :tgit:e1n: nts IO.:?M2 ~s.ouu Ii:? 5,UCI 

Related to pension IJ . 1,I0.22h 14 .0-D, 1::?7 h~.JQ5 _30~ 

Rcl;ncd 10 OPEA ,.210.&64 b. 8~ .]t,l} 1,1578 SI I 
Total Dt:ft:rrc=d lnllo\\~ ufRt!sOurccs s 18.3!tl. 17:::! S ~O.-l70A'Jo ~ 7<l'l00 01-1 

Included 111 dcforred ou10ows of resources and deferred inOows of resource; me Hems rcla11ng ,o 

pen_ ions. OPEA. hond refund mg, and service co11cess1on agrccmco1s. Ccnmn clc111cn1s 1111puc1111g 
1he changes 10 1he ne1 pcns,on/Ol'EB assc hab1h11cs have n longer-1cr111 pcr,pcc11vc 1han 1hc 
currcnl year therefore 10 reduce vula11 l11y 1hcse dcmcnt, ilfl: ,1111nn1zcd over a closed pe riod of 
spcc,licd duration. These include differences bc1wecn expected and ac1Ual expcncncc, changes of 
assumptions. net differences hcl\\ t:cn projected and actu31 ~a rn111gs of 111,cs1mems. changes in 

proportion and difference hcl\\ eCn U111vcrs11y con1 nb1111on. and propomonalc share or 
contn hut ,ons. and UnivcrSJI) comnbuttons subsequent to lh\! mcasu rcmt.:nt date These clements 
can be renccted as ell her a deferred ou11low of resources or u deferred 111nm, of resources 

Deferred ou11lows of resources decreased SI 6 9 m,11, on or 36° 0 fro m fisca l year 202" to fiscal year 
2024 Dcforred ou1nows of resources rcla1ed lo pension dccrca;ed 14 5 11111!100 or 35% pnmanl) 
due 10 a combina11on of a S IU O 1mllio11 decrease 111 the ncl difli:rencc be1"ee11 pmJec1cd and ac1ual 
earnings on pension pla11 111vcs1ments. 111cluding a11 S8 0 1111111011 dccre,Lsc rcla1ed 10 the OPERS 
plan and a S2 0 mdl,on decrease in the STR. Ohio plan. a S" 4 1111111011 decrease 111 cha11ges 111 

ass11111p11 011s. mcl uding an $0 8 111dlio11 decrease 1111hc Ol'ERS plan and a S2 6 1111lhnn dec rcil se 111 
1hc STRS Oluo plan, a SO 6 1111 111 00 decrease 111 changes 111 propomon and d1ffcrenccs bc1\\ecn 
Urnvcrsll contributions and propunionatc slrnre of contr1hut1ons including a $U .5 millrnn 
decrease 111 1hc OPERS plan and a SO I 111111 ,on decrease m 1hc STR • Olm, plan. a SO 3 million 
decrease 111 Un1vcrs1ty contr1hu11ons subscqt11.:n t tn the mcnsurcmcrH date. 1nclud111g a O I million 
mcrcnse 1111 he Ol'ERS plan and a SO 4 mt Ilion decrease 111 lhe STl{S Ohm plan. and a O 2 million 
dci;n:ase 111 d1ffCrcnccs bl!twcen c~pcch:d and actual cxpcncnce1 1nclud 111g a S I -4 m1 ll1011 dl!c n.:a~c 
111 the Ol'ERS plan and a 1.2 111111100 111creasc 111 1hc Sll{S 0111 11 plan Det'crretl l11111lows or 
resources rcla1cd IO OPEB decreased S2 4 mi llion or ~8"'• pnmunly due a SI <J mtllinn decrease 111 
lht: net d1ffCn.: ncc b(!twccn proJcCh:d rtnd actual earnings on OPEB plan lll\ CStmc nts , 1nduding a 
SI 7 111 ill1011 decrease in 1hc OPERS plan and a SO 2 m,11,on decrease 111 1he STRS Ohio plan. and 
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a O' 1111 11 1011 decrease 111 change> 111 assump11on . includmg a I U mt I hon decrease m 1he Ol'ERS 
plan and a U 5 1111111011 111crca,c 111 the STRS Oh1<l plan 

Dcli.:rrecl 111110"' of resource;, dccrea,ed S2 I 1111lhun or IU"o from fisca l ,car 2023 10 lisca l car 
202~ Deferred inllcl\\> ,,rrcsource, rcl:11cd 10 pension decreased SO 'J milhon or 6°-0 pnmanly due 
tu a comb111a11011 ufa S2 U m,1111111decrease 1111hc changes ofassumpllons 111 lhe STRS Oh,o plan. 
a S I U m1ll1on mcn:u:-.c 111 c:ha ngc~ 111 proport ion and d1fforc.::nccs between Uni ve rsity con1nhu11ons 
and propurt11,na1c share or co111nhu11011s 111 1hc Ol'ERS plan. a SO 2 million 111crea..se 111 1he 11c1 
difference bcl\\een proJcc1ed and ac1ual carnmgs on pens ion plan mves1mc111s 111 1he STRS Oh10 
plan , and a U I million dl!crcusc 111 the differences between expected and actual expt!nencc in the 
STRS OhlO pl;m Deterred 1111low~ of resources rcla1ed IO Ol'EB decreased I 2 million or 18",o 
prnnan lv due to :i i;mnl>1n:111011 of a SO 9 million decrease m changes 111 assumptions. 111cl ud111g :.i 

0 X million 111crcase 1111he Ul' ERS plan and a SI 7 million decrease 1111hc STl<S hto plan: and 
$0 ~ 1111 11 1011 decrease 111 tl11Tcre11ccs bc1wee11 expcc1etl and ac1t1al cxpcncncc. 111 clud111g a $0 I 
mdlmn decrease III lhc ()l>ERS pla11s and a S0.3 1111llton decrease 111 1he STRS Ohio plan, and u 
U I m1l llon 1ncn.:as1.: 111 1hc change 111 p ropor11011 and differences between University 

contn hu11011s nnd p1opon1omt1e shmc of comnbut1ons 1n the OPERS plan 

Deferred uu1ll,"'; uf,c;ourccs mcrcascd S22 2 1111111011 or 88"0 from lisca l yea r 2022 10 fi scal car 
J023 Dcli:rrcd ou11lo\\S of resources reli11cd ICl pension increased 518 2 111111,on or 79°0 pnmanl) 
due 10 a comb1na110n ufa 22 2 million 111creasc 111 the nel difference bc1ween prOJcCted and ac1Ual 
earn ings on pension plan in, cs1men1>. including a S20 2 1111lhon increase rcla1ed IO 1hc OPERS 
plan and a 2 0 1111lhon 111crcasc m 1he STRS Oh10 plan: and a S4 8 million dccrca.,c 111 changes in 
assump11on,. 1nclud111g a SI 8 million decrease 111 the OPERS plan and a 3 0 111dlll111 decrease 111 
the STRS Ohio plan Deferred ou11lows of resources related to OPES increased ~ I 111tl hon or 
532"u pnmanly due as· U milltnn 111crease 111 1hc nc1 difference hel\\ ecn pro1cc1cd and actu 11 I 
car111ngs on Ol'EB plan 111 es1111c111 , mcludmg a S2 9 111111100 111crcuse 111 1hc OPERS plan and a 
SO I m1lhon 111crcasc in 1hc STRS Ohio plan. and a SI 3 mil hon increase in changes 111 
'1ssump11on,. 111clud111g a I .J mtlhon 111crcase 111 1he Ol'ER. plan and a ~O I milhnn decrease 111 
the STRS Ol11l1 plan 

Deferred 1111lows of resources decreased $59 4 mil hon or 74°,o from f1scul ,car 2022 10 fiscal vear 
2023 Deferred mllows of resources rcla1cd 10 pension decreased 51 I m·,llmn or 78°0 pmn;nh 
due to u cmnhrnatmn of a S55 7 m1lhon dc:cn:asc m 1hc net t.hffen;ncc bt:t,,ccn proJcCtcd and uctual 
cam111g un pension plan mvest me,m. 111cludmg a S24 7 mtlhon decrease in 1hc Ol'ERS plan a11d a 
S' I O milhon decrease 111 the STRS 01110 plan. a S5 2 m1ll1u11 mcrcase 111 change, m a,su111p111111, 
111 lhc STRS llh1u plan. and a SO 5 m1ll1 on decrease: 1111hc differences bel \\ ccn cxpcc1cd a11d actual 
cxpcncncc 111 1hc Ol'ERS plan Deli.:rrcd mllows of resources related 111 Ol'EB dccrca ·cd . ~ 1 
m1ll1on or 56°., pmn:mly due to a comb111ation ofa SOX mi llion dccn:asc 1n <liffe1cm:es hl.!1,,·ecn 
cxpcc1Cd and ac1ual c.,pcnencc 111 1hc Ol'ERS plan: a SI r, 1111lltu11 decrease 111 changes in 

assum p111 m, . 111clucling a 2 8 mil li on decrease 1111hc Ol'ERS plan and a SI 2 1111lho11 1ncrcusc 111 
lhe STRS Ohm plan. n $5 I nullton decrease 111 1hc ne1 dilfrrc11cc bc1wecn proJeclcd and uc1Ua l 
cunungs on Ol' EB plan 111, es1111e111s. incl uding a S3 5 111 1l lio11 decrease 1n 1he Ol'ERS plan and a 

I 11 millinn decre;,se 111 lhc STRS Ohio plan. and a SO 7 1111111011 decrease 111 changes 111 propon1011 
anti dtfli.:renci:s between U111vcr"11y co n1rihut1ons an<l propon1ona1\! shnr\! of co n1ribu11 on~ 111 the 
Ol'ERS pla11 
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Sc:c 01t.! 13 for add 1t1011al 111forrnat1011 on employee hcncfit plans 

~ 

L1ab iht1 cs l,irgdy consist of accounts and construction payable, accrued payroll and payroll 
w11hho ld111gs, debt, leased hahil 111es. compensated absences. unearned revenue and net pcnsmn 
liability The following table summarizes balances at. 

Accuun1, JnJ C•'lhlrucrn.,n l)J\ ,1 hlc 

l 'J y1,1ll li .1 h1l1tc, 

l\1rnJ, p :1y.1hk. 11..:1 

N1•h.::-. p.1 v.1lil..: 
l,c;,1,cJ liah1hl1I: :,, - ..:11u 1pm,: n1 

I c.hctl lw h1h11.;, • s11n ;\ ... 

l'•1 mpcn,;,11cJ .1h,cncc, 
l lncJnh:i.J re\ cnuc 
nctuni.J .ihk .n.J\ JOC!..' 

I >t hcr 
;,,.:c l rcn~1111, h.1b1h1, 

1'.ct ( Jl'l ·H h.1h1htv 

1'111.11 I 1.1h1ht1..:, 

June 30. 2024 
\.: t\441< ,r\lltl 

1(.X IY.7:!~ 

~l.71,t\14 3 

••.x~7.7::?I 
1.137.::?33 
X.56h.,N5 

h , Jl"4.~70 

ltl.<'!03 ,St.JX 

l ,:k,_;7it 

1 l 1.-IIIX}i71 

June )0, '.!023 
\ o ,n •JX)G:? 

k,.IC\5,2,N 
._l , 117_l>11x 

I IJIJo.X)u 

1 .• u1,;.5no 
7.-11 c; _nt,S 

ti.:!-W.57~ 
7 •'l-l ,U~~ 

lf,oc;_700 

127.f-..'15:!f, 

1.-lf,5.~7" 

June 3d, 2022 
~ 7,lll>fl, ll •l 

K,71J!(K77 
c;~_l::?7,1)(,J 

1 .. . 104."'I:'.! 

15tMl.:?-lll 

H. fll. ~t-il 

h.J l•.J•• 
r,,f,1!< ,717 

17:!.Jltl 

l .:.!3:! .4U7 
55 ... u,7 uCi.7 

Toi.ii habiht,es decreased SI 7 0 mil li on or 7"u from fiscal vear 2023 to fi scal vcar 202-l Bonds 
payable decreased $2.3 mill1011 and 1101cs payable decreased SI 2 million due ;o schedu led deht 
service payments Leased liabil 111cs - SBIT/\s mcrcascd SI I milli on due to a comb111at1on of 
current yc;i r add1 t1ons of S-l -l million and current year reductions of S3 3 million Unearned 
revenue 1ncn.::1scd S3 2 m1ll1on pnm::mly <luc to an increase in uncaml!d sum1m::r :!02--l tu1t1on 
re cnuc and an increase 111 unearned grant rl!venue Thr.: nr.:t pcn.s1011 liability dccrc.:;,1scd S16 2 
m,11,on. rncludmg a S5 9 million dccrca;;e m the STRS 01110 net pension habil11y and a S10 • 
m11l1on decrease 111 the Ol'ERS net pension liability The STRS Ohio and OPERS net pension 
liabihty ba lances were $52.3 m11lmn and $59 I million at June JO, 2024 comp,ircd to S5X 2 111111 1011 
$69 4 mi ll ion at June 30. 2023. rcspect ,vd y The Ol'E:RS net Ul'EI! liabi lity decreased from SI 5 
mill ion at June ·o. 2023 to SO a1 June JU, 202-l 

Total hab1h11cs mcrcased S69 S milhon or -13° 0 from fiscal ,•car 2022 10 fi scal ,·car 2D23 Ronds 
payabk decreased S2 2 mil hon and notes payable decreased S I 2 m11l1on due io scheduled debt 
service payment., Leased habl1111es - SBIT /\ s decreased a I I mil lion due to a comh111a1,on of 
current yea r add111ons ofSl.8 mllhon and current year reductions o!'S2 9 m11l1on The net pension 
liab1hty increased S72.2 mil hon. 111clud111g a S22 2 mill ion 111crcase 111 the STRS 01110 net pension 
liabi lity and a SSO.O mi llion increase 111 the Ol'ERS net pens10n liabil 11y. The STRS Oh,o and 
OPERS net pension liab ility balances were S58.2 mil hnn and $69 4 mi ll ion at June JD. ~023 
compared to S 6 million and S19.-l mil lion at June 30, 2022, respectively The OPERS ncl OPEB 
habi111y increased from SO at June ·o. 2022 tu SI 5 mil hon at June 30, 2023 
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Sec Note X for a funhcr breakout of payroll and other liab1h11c-s. Notes lJ and 10 for dcta1kd 
information nhout the U111vcrs11y"'s debt. Note 12 for 111fonna t1011 on long- tr.:rm liahil111c:s .. and Noh: 
13 for mfom1a11on on employee hencli t plans. 

Net l'osilio11 

Ncl pos1unn rcpn.!Sl!nts the residual rntl!rl!St Ill the Untvcr. ny·s assets afkr dt:fcrn.:d uu11lo\\ S of 
resources arc added. and hab1h11cs and deferred mflow, of re.sources arc deducted The 
n:concal1at1on below presents thi.:: Umvcrslly's total net pos111on remov ing_ thr.: 1111pac1 of th~ 
defcrr~d lllfll) WS and outflows rr.:latrng to pr.:ns1on ~ OPEB as presented m thi.: Stati.:mcnt of Net 
Positn)n 

Tomi Nc1 l'osmon 
A dd 

Dcfoncd 1ntlO\\'.'l, lll , c~ourcc._1- tcla1cJ rn pcn-.uH1IOPEB 

:,..!ct pcn~10 11 OPEli llab 1l1t\ 

Subtr:ic 1 

Dcfcncd outflO\'-S nf,esourccs rcla1cd Ill pc1b1on OPEB 

Net pcn~1011 /OPEB a:i.\C I 

T,11.1 1 Ncl Pus1tin11 w11hout G.-\SB" (,~ and 7'-

.lunt! 30, 2024 
S 1-195H7.707 

IR.l70,W10 
111 ,408,571 

June 30. 20!3 
l•ll .'l'l i.591 

~0.-t:?.5 .. --lQ(, 

1~9.107,(X).l 

j:!'1.-JVJ,1(,(lJ (•lb. 19.l.lJSI 

(h.7C..l.73 .. I (h.77(1.(XJOI --- - - -s :2--lJ .:<iJ,07l 2J8,5:--l.95<1i 

Ju n u 0. 2022 
l ,IJ., l ,n ,hK1J 

7fl,774,11 -1 

"i<li. .i(,7_()C,7 

t :!1.Hlc;.1.J.l J 

(l"l .. ::?:!7::?~ 11 

::?-:0.~lh.275 

The following table summarize the! catl!gom.:s nf net pns11wn 111clud111g si.:grl!gat1on or th e.: 
unrestricted ncl pos1110 11 relating to the impact ofGASBs 68 and 75 

1 L'11m.:st m-.'11l III ca,u1~ 3S~C'IS, ncl c,f rcL1tcd d.:ht 

H.1."'St nctL"'li nonC.\JIC.nd:ihk - L,,dcm rncnt~ 

RL-..1nt1cd l"' ',lt'nd:ihlc ( \\ 11huu1 GA . 1l 7i I - ~:,fu: i:r.ints :ind s1ud;:n1 I 

Unn.: ?> 1n,"'ttd (n11hou1 G ASB (1X1 

G,\SllM< 

O,\ SU 7'-
' l'u t:il Ni.:1 Polw 11111 

June JIJ, 202.t June JO. 202.3 June 30, 2022 
1~11.x,1 ~J ; 

" ·'12-1 (,I-I 

:;.i I::? I 115" 
. .n ,_,'; r;t, Oh l 

1'17 7-l•J X 17) 

.. 1 ux .1 .... 1'\ 1 

Jt.( 1-1:0 11117 

'\ 74J.lkf, 

-lltnfilUI~ 

{ I UU,.nJ .X-IK) 

J ,X(1II .J:<1, 

J<\77!:? 125 
\ 7HH7 

OI '\X7_lU,X 

.1.;-1xo 1,.1:; 

t•l7 h'.! 7 !Pi I ) 

(\11,"IH) 

Overal l. the Un1vers11i•· s total net pos111on mcrcascd S7 .· 111111 1011 nr 5•., from S142 () million :11 

June 30. 2023 to 1-llJ 5 m1lhun at June JO, 2U2-l This re. ulted liom an excess of revenues over 
cxp,!nscs and mcludcs a SO 6 1111111011 decrease 111 net amount mvestcd 111 capnal as. cts, a $_ () 

million 111creasc 111 restricted net pos111on excluding the 1111pac1 ofGASB 75. a S3.J 1111llio11 mcrcasc 
in unrestricted net pos1l10 11 cxcludmg the nnpact or G/\SB 68. n S2 6 million 111crcasc 111 

unrestricted net posi tion attribut ed ICl the impact of G/\SB 68, and a S0.2 111111 1011 mcrcase 111 
rcstncted net pos,11 011 attributed to the nnpact ofGASB 75. 

Overall , the U111vcrs11y's total net pos111011 decreased SO 3 11111111111 or() J•• from S142.3 at June 30, 
2022 to S l-42 0 million at June 30 .. 2023 T his rcsulh:d from an excess ofl!xpcnses over rl!vc11u..::,; 
and 111cludcs a S2 8 million mcrcast.: 111 the nt.:t amount rnvcstcd tn cap11<.il assets, a SO 6 1111lllon 
111creasc 111 restricted net pos111011 excludrng the 1111pac1 of G/\SH 75. a 5 -l 1111llion decrease 111 
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unrcs1nc1cd ncl pos111on cxcl 11d111g lhc 1mpacl ol'GI\SB 68, a $2 8 million decrease 111 unrcmn:1cd 
net pos111on annbutcd 10 the 1111pac1 of GI\SB 68, and a S,I 5 mt Ilion ,ncrca,c 111 rcs tnctcd net 
pos111on annbuted to the 1111 pac1 nfGI\SA 75 

The net 111vcs1mcn1111 cap11UI assets consists of cap11al a,se1, net or accumulated deprcc1,1110n and 
amon1zat10n and deferred outO ows of resource;, relating 10 bond refund111g reduced by the 
out. rnndmg ba lance of bonds. notes or other bonmv111g~ that urc attn butahlc to tht acquis1t1on. 
construc11on, or 11nprovl!mi:111 of those asset$. 

Net 111vcs1ment 111 cap11al as els decreased SO 6 mtllton from fisca l year 2023 Ill fiscal) ca r 201➔ 
primari ly due 10 net cap11al addi11 ons of S15 4 m1ll1on, a decrease 111 uu1s1and111g debt of 2 7 
million, a decrease of SO I millton 111 dcli,rred ou11l01, . bond rcl'und111g. and current , cm 
dcprcc1a11on and amomza11011 of S 18 6 million Outstanding debt was 711 , m1ll1on at June 30 
202➔ and S73 0 m1ll1on at June 30, 2023. respcc11 vclv 

Net 111 vcs1 111en1 in ca pllal assets mcrcased of S2 8 11111!1011 from liscal year 2022 10 fi scal year 2023 
primarily due to net cap11al add111ons or S 16.3 1111!11011, a decrease 1n outsiandrng debt or S➔ ➔ 
rntllton, and current year deprcc1a11on and arnomza11on of S 17 lJ mil lton O111s1and111g deht "a' 
S73 0 million at June 30. }023 compared 10 S77 ➔ million at June 30. 2022 

Rcs111c1ed. non-ex pendable net pos11ion consists primanly or endowment fonds held h) the 
Umvcrsily Changes in 1h1 s catcgol)' arc dnvcn by add111ons or dcduc11011s 10 corpus 

Res1nc1cd. expendable net posi11 on is subJect to externally imposed rcs tncuons governmg 1hc11 
use Changi.:.s 111 this ca1i:go ry ::ire due 10 thi:: t11111ng of rt!, cnui.!!) and cxpcnst.!s 111 funds provi ded b 1 

donors and grantors The folio" mg table summarizes re tnetcd expendable net posiuon at 

Juni.: 30. 202.J Juni: 30. :20:?3 June 30, :!fl:!'2 
l 11lh . i;rJnb. J nJ l.'.llll(t.u,:h ~ ~x.~01. u :?"':Cl-;:: I , ::?f..u;•(J Jo,.i 

(. 'r )Vll l- l4rd11: f fumh ,,_7)' 
l'l.mt lunJ., -l , -lilh.J ll.1 J, l 41ii.:!KJ -1.::!9-l. K-i°' 

O ch er J.-ln:!,\J,;7 1. I ll.5.K4:,i ::?66,371 
I 111 ~1 w11h11ut lr,\S I-I 7<i J.-1 . l::!IJI~) 3::!.::?ll<i.)'ii\l JI 5X7.l.1(1X 
(iASI~ 7~ I )! 'EH l·un J 4 ,IIX4.-l~I J,KAU,.JK(, t 57I. 3" ) 

I utJ I lk,tt1..:h:J 1·-~ii:nJJhlc N..: t fl,i,,.n1on )X.~11~506 'lo Jt\l~~.K-i'ii ' 3 I .fllh.433 

Gi ft s, grants and comracts 111cludc grants and sponsored programs, scholarshi p donat1011s and 
program suppon. and und1s1nbu1ed and distributed but unspent 111vcs1ment carnmgs on Urm er,11y 
endo wment fonds COV ID-1 'J relief funds ,nclude funds authonzed th rough the Coronav1r11s l\1d. 
Re lief. and Econo1111c Securny (CAR ES ) l\ct , lhe 'nronavm,s Relief & Recovery Supplcmc111al 
Approp11a11ons /\ct (CRRSI\/\ ). and the /\meri can Resc ue Plan /\c t of }02 I Plant funds primarily 
include donauons for cunstruct1011 or rt:novatton prnJl!Ct~ Othl!r 1ncludc!-! non-cndowed reslnctcd 
gifts designated by managemclll ICI funrnon s11111 lar 10 an eml(l\\menl fund and g1lh cstabl ,shed 
for loan programs for studcm;, 
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Towl rcs1nc1cd c~pc11dab lc net pnsi11011 was 38.2 11111111•11 m June 30. 1024 compared 1,i S36 I 
millton at June 30, }023. an ll\Crall increase ofS2 ) nu llton or 6°10 . Total res111 c1cd ex pendable net 
pos111011 w!lll(lul fund, rclnung H• OPEH 111crca.sed SI 9 mil hon wherea;. the funds rel aung 10 
Ol'EB 111crea cd O} m1ll10n (hcrall. gifts . grant,, and contracLs 111ercased SO ➔ millton due to a 
comb111a11on nf a 0.5 m1llton decrease 111 ~,ri fund balances, a I 7 1111111011 increase 111 
und 1s1nhutc.:U 1mcstmcnt c.:arn1ngs on Uni ,c~s1ty i.:ndowml.!111S rcsult 1n ~ from a favorab le 
111v es trt1cnt environment unJ a SUM 1111 ll1 011 dl.!crease 111 grant funds Plant funds 1ncn.:a."'ed SI 3 
mil lllln I r11na11ly due 10 an mcre:i, c 111 plant gi ft r1111ds for cap11al pr0Jec1 , . which 111cl udcd the 
B~cghlv Center Bh::ichcrs pr,11ect Olher 1ncn:ascd SO 2 mllhon due to an incrt:asc 111 undis tnbutc<l 
inves tment carnmgs on Um, ~rsny quas1-enc.Jowmen1::,, resulting from a lavorublc mvc.stment 
environment 

The ,A ' B 7." Ol'EB fund ,ncre:,scd 0.2 mil hon from S3 8 m1ll1011 at June '0, 2023 to S➔ 0 
mil hon ,11 June 30. 202➔ 

Total r~stnc ted expendable net pns11 1on was $36 I m1ll1011 al June 30, 2023 compared to $3 1 0 
1111111011 at June Jll. 20]2. an overall mcrcase of$5 I million or 16% Total restncted expendable 
net pos111011 "11hou1 funds rcla1111g 10 OPEB 111crcased O 7 mil hon wherea;, the fonds rclaung 10 
OPEH 111c1ea cd ➔ ➔ 1111lho11 n, erall. g1fls. gram,. nnd comracts rncreascd $0 8 million due 10 a 
comb111a110n or a SI 8 1111 ll1011 111cr-,a,e 111 gift lund balances. a O 7 rndlton 111crcase m 
und1s1nhutcd 1m i;:stment carning~ on Um, l.!rsny cndowmcnts n.!sulun • from a favorable 
111vcs1111en1 env1ronmc 111 and a I 7 m1l11nn decrease 111 gra m li.mds COVI0-19 Reltcr runds we re 
rully expended as or .lune 30, 202' Plant fu nds decreased SI I 1111!1 ,un pr11narily due 10 a 
comb111a11 on of cons1ruc11011 ae11v11y on proJecLs supponcd wllh gift runds received 111 prior years 
and a l::trt!e t.!1rt 111 the curn:nt vcar fo r a fut ure Student Center Other 111cn.:ased SI O m1 ll 1on due to 
a large g;it herng internally d~s1gnatcd as a quas1-i.:nduwmcn1 fu nd 

The GI\SB 75 OPEB fuml mcrea,cd s➔ -I millton from (SO b) mlllton at June 30. 2012 10 3 8 
111 1il llln al June JO. 202 ' 

Unn:stncted net pos111on 1s 1101 sub_p.:ct to c.:xternally 11nposed restnct1ons and 1~ dt.:s1gnatc.:d for 
future.: opcrat1ons. plant tonstrnctwn and ma1nte nancc:, and debt service The followrng !able 
ummar11e!-i unrestrictl!d net position at 

June JO. 202A June 30, :023 June JO. 102~ 
()pc1:1111~ .ind dt.~1~--i1cd fmdlt s :!l .'>-lb O'\-l 19.8h~ C,t).! s :!1.6<il. .J7l 

(~l,11111~' 1C'-CI\C, 8,8 l? .1)82 S.$37.9 ' I S.817.98'.! 

l'l:1111 tmd" l:? .qQ.~0<, 11 .3 1~) _ 11•1 13.9MS.b71 

l.4,1, 111 h111t.h '.!~.'iil9 :!:! .5 1'> :!:!51') 

l"ot:i l w11ho11t (i/\SB 6~ ~3.J Sl,.U/, I 40.0(•!·Ul 1 -1'.'i ,JXO.(,.i <i 

fi ,\SH us Jlc1ts1011 fund l'J7.7.J9,Hl71 ( 100.-1'.!3 t<..iH1 i97.6'.!7 051 1 

rolil l 1 ·1uc,tru:tcd :"\ l 'I PmlllUII s c~.i .:w 7c;t,, s C6ll.J55.)l\! s (5i'.!.. 1-H,.-H>6J 

Tota l unrestrtcted nc1 pos 111 on wa, I s➔ ➔) mdlwn :II June 30. 202➔ com pured 10 (S60 ➔) 1111ll 1011 
al Ju ne "0. 2023 The mcrease of Sc, (I million from r1scal year 2023 tu fi>eal year 2024 renec ts an 
excess of revenues over c:< pt.:m,e~ dur mg liscnl yc.:ar 2024 from nmtt:apital i1c t1 v 1t y Tnwl 
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unrcstnctcd net pos111on wnhout fund. relating to [JCnSmn mcrca. cd S3 3 mill ion whereas the fund., 
relating to pension increased S2 7 mil hon 

Theo erall increase of S3.3 m,lhon 111 unrestricted net pos111on exclud111g G/\SB 68 " as due 10 
S1. I million increase in operating and designated funds and a SI 2 1111 lhon increase 111 plant funds 
Tht: 52. l mil li on increase in opcrating an<l dcs1gnatc<l fu nds \ ri" pr imarily due 10 ;m inc:rcasc 111 

the fair market value of rnvcsuncnts tit June 30. 2024 a, compared In June 30, 2023 due to a 
favorable market environment 

The Ci/\SH 68 i'cns,on fund increased S2 7 million from tS IOO -1) million at June 'O. 2023 to 
(S97.7) million at June 30, 2024 

To!ii l unrestricted net posi11on was (S6U.~) mil l11Jn al June 30.1013 compared IO ($52 2) million 
al June 30, 2<E2 The decrease of$8.2 million from Ii seal year 2022 to fiscal •car 2023 rcOccts an 
cxccss of expenses over revenues during fiscal ·i:\H 2023 from noncapitJI ac11vity Total 
unrcstnetcd net pos 111011 wi thout funds rcla1111g to penswn decreased S5 4 million whereas the 
runds relating to pcnsmn dccrca~cd S2.8 m1ll1on. 

The overa ll decrease of S5 4 mil hon un restricted net p11s111011 excludrng Ci /\S B 68 was due 10 a 
S2 8 ,rnlhon decrease in o[)Crn t111g and designated funds and a S2 6 ,rnllion decrease 111 plant funds. 
The $2 8 m1lhon decrease 1n opcra1111g and des1gn,ued funds was due 10 an mcrcasc 1n !he fa ir 
mnrkc1 value of mvcstmcnL5 at June ' 0. 2023 as com pared to June 30. 2022 due 10 a fa vorable 
market cnvironmL:nt and planned util1 zat1on of onc-11rnc funds HI support the fi scal year 2023 
operating budgets and dcs1gna1cd CO VID-1 9 rcla1cd prr>Jects 

The G/\SB 68 Pension fond decreased $2 S m1llion from CS97 6) 111111,on al June 30. 2022 to 

($11)0 4) m1lhon al June 30. 2023 

T he Statement~ of R~\'enucs, Expcn!<les. a nd C hangc.·s in Net Po~i tion 

These sta tements present the opcratmg results and thi: non-opcrnung n,;v-.;nucs and ex pense o f the 
lJ nivcrslly. /\ nnual ·1atc appropna11ons. while hudgclcd for opcrauons, arc considered non­
op,.: rat ing revenues according to generally accepted accountmg princ1plcs Pell grants dispersed to 
students and scholarships supponcd hy rcstnctcd gifts arc cnns 1dcrcd operating expenses. whereas 
the revenues suppom ng the expenses arc cnns,dcrcd nonopcratmg 
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A "ummary o f n.:\ cnucs, expenses, and changes It\ net position fo lhl\\ S 

June 30. 20:!4 June 30. 20!3 Jwe 30, :20~ 
<Jpcraun~ Rc, cnuc~ 

1c1 11.1W01l fi:c-. ~ •~ oihc , ;;1udcm d1a1 ~.._-~ 

J\u(il rnrv c nh:rp11:.c1<1 

G1:rn1, ,tnd 1.:cmu :1cb 

Othc1 
Tou,I Opc1;11 111g Re\ cmic, 

O pc1:11111,g E.,pl'll-:.c, 

Opc1 at111g L,1s" 

Nonopcr:mng Re \ cnucs I E~pc1t.; cs I 

Stale apprn p1 rnth'llh 

Fcdcr,11 :1pp1t1pn muub 
G, lls . g.r anL'i, nud comr.,c,~ 
)l\\'CSIJl~ lll l llC(H1 1C 

Oth . .:1 

Ne! N 11 nnpc1:1l 11lg Re, Clllh!.'i 

G:11 11 1 L1,-.~l Uc fore Oth, .. ·r Rc,cnucs E,1~11:,c, .ind Ch:ul':;;_cs 

Olhc1 Revenue:.. E,pc nSCl'I and ('I L1nge.'i 

S1:1 1c ca p 11.1I apptop11:111n1\'i 

Cup,1.il !:=f:111~ anJ ~, th 
(hlx:r 

T\11:t l 01hc1 RcHfni1:~. E,pcn~ci .md Ch.,11~~, 

Clungc 111 Ncl P \hll n i11 

N L·t Prn.111011,ll lkg11u111~ of the Yca1 .is rc i lilh:J 

Net PO!<llwn .u l·1\ll ol the \',:.u 

Re,·em,es 

s oo,717.731 
11.no.nJ 
1~.IJ2.9S1 

'.i . .:!3o. 1M3 

I05,-H4.UU., 

! lJ~ ,l Jt,0 ,987 

l MM,S:!ll,t)fH 1 

48.85o.57h 

'.!8,h25. 19J: 
10,•l2 1l.4t, 1 

t72Q,1) 0) 

87. l 81.c8I 

t I.J-IS.701) 

5. lc•l.7I N 
-l ,:?80.cr,:: 

l•hl9)G3) 

S l~ J.!'Jl7 

7,S<lo, I 14 

141 .9'11.5'); 

S 14•1 5S7.707 

K0.3,H,IK l 741,'N:? .05:! 

17 , S➔:! .:!Ul 15.7tx).-P>2 

I .u(n.;5 1 14 ,lU~. l -l l 

J .17•>.nx -; l (} J 12 1 

1111.!ttiK ,SJ: ( 11 :? .-l ~S)tllh 

J:Oo,tJCIJ: t).I ; 200, "iJ5 :?:! I 

(IN)<:?•l .•1! 0 ) jX7,R•l 1)., 11 5J 

-1'1.1 1lh.; 1,1 ,I-I J7R.-l•l-1 

1 2.-, 10 11 ,2:?k.7:!0 
:!O,MQ0,:!77 '.}11 ,0 75 , 114 

h.J7J.:!•l•I 17Ju7,1.15 1') 

( 1_.1.1:? .:J.1)) ( i.J-1 I.IX) ! \ 
XI 4KO.O.h, 07_0?1.7'1X 

(K q .i_;iq l 10_ 1::-1 ;x1 

•. XJ 1.1 NII ;_o::;,u •11 

1 . J..J ll.41 I :!J~4-l .5CJS 

7 t,n7 !ch.H O! 
7.•>, N,cMS 5.~l .•P'•I 

1J.S6.0'lt11 15.'lt> .877 

t-t:!.3-'7.0SU I :?t,.1X l ,Ml:! 
S 141 1>i:Jt.5'H S 1-C ,.147,l,l(t) 

Followrng 1s a rc.:c;ap o f rc, cmH.:s by source (opcratmg. non-operating, and other sou rces). \\'luch 
were u~i:c.J 1(1 fund 1hc- Un1vcrsuy·s activi11es for the years ended· 

Nc1 nnuon, fee:, and t·uhcr -: 1odcn1 ch.11t:cs 

1 fh . 11an11;; :wd -.:uni! :11,: 1,: 

Su,1c :i pp1up11 :1111111., 

1\u ....: 111 :-1,,• l' r11c1pn sc:. 

lnvc,: tmc nt I m:1>mc 

St:itc cn p11al :w 111 u 1H1a 11 1,1h 

O1hcr I C\'CIIUC 

Fcdcr:t l oppr p11 !111 o n -. 

r m .1I R e\ Cllllc~ 

June 30, 202-1 
s 66. 7~7. 73 1 

~1.(M5.077 

-Ht,8 56,576 

17,JJ(,,1)1 -l 

lU,4 ::!Q,,l b l 

5. l '.!,1.7 18 

-l,706.-lb6 

s 20-1,226,1)()7 
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June l0, 202;\ June 30, 202:! 
s tW.14\ I XI ~ 79, 19::!.U'i~ 

.17 5,; 1 ,0111 -Hi I :?:? 110 

,lf, . llJh,.11 ,I -l•l. 171-i,,1-l -1 

17.~4:? .::01 I "i ,70ll ,,I \J:! 

h , 17J ,::!A•I {7, lh7,9 51JJ 

5.XJ I.I SU 3,0:! J J )l 9 

1.R~•t.91 ,1 l., l'JI ~ tf, 

JS:!..-110 \ l 22 fi .7'.? I) 

S :!U~.2 1 (,,5::?5 $~ 17,lJM(,o'i..i 
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Overall. the Un1vcrs1t ,·s intal revenues decreased S-1 0 m11!1on m 21.1-0 bct,,ecn fiscal year 20~3 
and liscal ea r 102-1 from S20K 2 1111lhon 10 S204 2 m1lhon 

Nt:t tu111nn , fees and other stud~nl ch,1rgc!'- dccrcasi:d S 13 6 million or I 7u a frnm fi scal year 20~3 
10 fi scal year 2024 This wa, due ma combma11on of a S2 0 111 dlr1111 111crca ·c 111 gross 11111mn and 
a S 15 6 rn1lhon 11u:reasc in ~cholarsh1p nllowancc The 1ncn.:nsc in gro~, tu 111011 from 103 7 
m 1ll1on 111 fiscal yi:ar ~023 to S105 7 million 111 liscal yea r 10-~ can bi: allributc<l 10 rncrcascd 
enrollment. pamcularly 111 the grndumc studies and accdern1cd onl111c program The 111cre<1,e 111 
scholarship allowance from S23 4 mil hon m fi scal year 2023 H> S3<J U 1111111011 111 Ii seal) ear 202-1 
was main ly due 10 adop11ng a new 111e1hodology fm calcula1 111g scho larshi p allo\\ance ro a melhod 
based on the ind1v1dual student Thts cst11n:uc reflects a mnrL' acr.:uratc amou nt 1ha1 matches stu<.lr.:m 
financial .:ud with studc:nt tu1t1on charge:,, Gifts. grants anti 1:ontracts rc\c.:nuc 111crc;:L,cd S3 :5 
mil hon or 7% from liscal year 2023 10 Jiscul year 2024. prunarrl due 10 a cnmb111u11on of a S3 J 
1111lhon increase 111 sra1e grants largely due to an rncrcasc 111 lite Oh io Colkgc Opponun11y (iranr 
and new scholarship grants and a new 1ra1nmg grant ;rwardcd 111 Ii cal yea r 2024. a I -1 nu lh nn 
mcreasc 111 cash capi tal g1fis a11nbu1cd 10 gifts received for cons1ruc1 1on nf thc """ Student Ce111cr 
as well as renovauons for the Beeghly Center gymnasium. a 0 6 m11l1on 1ncrc,L,c 111 Pell gram, 
related to increased enrollment. and a Sl.8 m,11 ,on decrease 111 priva te g1lh State appropna11uns 
mcrt!ascd Sl.5 m1!11on or 5°0 from liscal car 202 .. to liscal yea r 1024 due to rm rncrcasc in . talc 
suppon A uxil iary t:nterprt sr.:s remained nat bt!twecn fiscal ycar:2023 10 lhr.:al year 2024 ho\\l!\'er. 
SI K milhon of scholarsh1pallm ancc ,s rcflccrcd 111 J"iscal car 2014 as 1hc rcsull of the change 111 

merhodology for calculaung schola1sh1p allowance lnves1mcn1 111comc 111crcascd S-1 I milhun ur 
64u,o from fiscal year 2023 to liscul yc:ar 2024 primarily due H1 m cstmcnt rnr.:omc and unrcah zi:d 
gams resulting from a fo\-ornbh: market cnv1ronmcm Stat!! capital appropna11ons dt.:crcascd SO 7 
million or 12% from fiscal year 2023 10 fi scal year 2014 due IO decreased ac11v11y on cap11a l 
proJt:cts funded wit h State: <.:apital doll.us Other n.:vcnw: 111cr!!asi.:c.l SO 9 1111l lion nr :23°10 from liscal 
year 2023 10 fiscal year 201-1 pnmaril~ due 10 an insurance cla11n receivable for the Ward Beecher 
Plrirn.:tanum fi re 

Ne1 1t1111on. Ices and cnhcr swdcnt charges 111crcascd SI O rnilhun or 1% from liscal year 2022 lo 
fisca l year 1023 TlllS " as due ro a combma11011 of a SI I m11lio 11 decrease 111 gross 1u11111n and a 
S2 I 1111111011 decrease 111 scholarship allowance Gross 111111011 and Ices were $103 7 million 111 lhcal 
year 2023 compared to S104.8 million III fiscal year 2012. whereas scholarship allowance wus 
$23 -I million and $25 4 11111lio11 , rcspcc11vely G1fls. grams and co111rac1s revenue 111crcascd I -I 
million or 3% from fisca l ycar '.W22 JO ri,c:rl i ear 2023. prnnanl) due Ill a comh111a11on of a I 6 

m illi on mcrei1Sc 111 pn vi1tc gifts largd , dw.: to an 1111.:rcasc 111 :11111ua l lln:inc1a l support rrnm th !.! 
YSUF lb r scho larsh1ps and other programs. a$ I 5 mil linn 111c1ease ,n federal grnnl ac11 v11_ rel a red 
ro the Excellence Train,ng Cc111cr. a SO 9 milhon decrease ,n private granL~ ac11v11 . and a () 7 
millton decrease 111 Pi.:11 grants due tu tli.:crcascd enro llment l·cdcra l :1pproprwt 1011s di.:crcascd 
S32 8 m,11,on or 99% from S33 ~ 1111l hon m fiscal year 2022 to ·0.4 111 1llion 111 fiscal year 2013 
The SO 4 m,lli un in !heal ie:ir 2013 rela1cd 10 1he I lighcr Educa11011 Emergency Relief Funds 
(HEERF) l11m1u1 ,unal i'<irll<m. whereas lhe SJ' 2 111 111,on 111 focal year 2022 111cl uded S I 3 
million of II EERF Student i\1d. 17 ' 1111lho11 I IEE RF lns11 1u 1111na l l'onwn and SO 6 1111111011 in 
Coronav,rus Reller Funds (CRFJ J\s of June 30. 2U2J all COVID- 19 related funds awarded have 
been utll 1zc:d /\uxi liary cntcrpn!-oc~ rcvcnur.: 111cre;1:,.c t.l $1 K million ur 12°0 pnmanl} due to 
mcr~ased studc!lll housing occupancy. 1nclud111g a Sl 2 mill ion increase 111 room rcn1als. and 
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lll Ch.."a~l..·d lntcrcollcg.1atc ,\ lhlellc 11.!\l..'lltle. mclu<ltng MU 3 m1 ll 1ltn 111 NCAA revenue sharmg Stale 
cap11al apprupnat1om, 111cn:a.sc<.I :! R m1ll 1on ,)r 93°0 due 10 111crt!a~cd ac 11 v11v un capital proJCC l!-. 
fun<lt'd with ~Hl h: capttrtl dullars. la1gch rdated to n 111frns1ruc turc upgrade~. bwldmg rcnov:..11 ion:i. 
and uuht) ch, 1nhu11un upgrades l11,cs1111cn1 mcome increased S13 7 mrlhun or IX6~o from focal 
,car 2022 10 fiscal ,c,,r 202, 1 nnrnnl) tluc lo unrealr1.cd ga 111~ resuh ,ng from a favorabl~ 
tn\ cstmcm en, irunmc.:nt 

Opcrnt111g c, pcnst.!s can hi: d1~ph1) t.·<l bv i:11hcr functi onal clas~1fica11on or na1llrnl cla~s1 ficat1on 
The funcunnal cla ·s1l 1ra11on can he fou nd on rite S1a1cmen1s ofl{cvenucs. Expenses. and Changes 
111 Net l'ns111on The Un11 ers11y h," ,w conrrol over the pc ns1011/Ol'EB expenses annbuted to 1he 
1111plcmen1al,011, of GASBs 6X and 75 . lhcn:f'ore. lhcse expenses arc segregated for presen1a11011 
purpn c; 

Follo\\ 1ng I a rf.!capof toml opcrat1ngc--.;pt!:nsc!-. by runc: 11011al class1ficauon 

June JO. 20::?.i June "30, 2023 Jun e ... 0. 10"'...1 
lnsuuc1 1on 02.87~_41).l s b::? !N7 7:!t s oS.6J7.172 

Rc3,~Jrch -1 l::?9,IKII .J'Hb .UU \ :?6\Kto 

Pubhi.: '-t:ti. 1cc: ~-~%. 18(, , , .. (!7()..1 7 C, -163.UOJ 

•\cJdcnuc :,,UJ)llOn IS llh.712 17 () )2.:!f'.>N l •I.IJ86 21b 

Student ,cl'\. ,cc) 11 71»! OU? l\ ,U-N.607 11 ,6-J b'J89 

lnst11ut1(rn.sl -.uppon 1'>.-i'.:! 5,11') IK 273515 1-1_3 11 _1j(,<, 

Opcm11011 :md n1.1I111c11:rn..:c ofpbm 17 78~ Uo l'J ::?92. 116 _J.J:57.i.lltJ 
Sch o lar.1!11p!i 7 )KU I I: 2t)iJ77 I IS 1~_101.'87 

A uXJh:Jr\ Clll t:'1)11!.C) '.!9 11K:?•IK 27.177.)4. :?~.78!'i 497 

Dcprecmuo n :ind amo111 r.i11un lk.MI.Ml1 17 1'-l-l QC) 17,20~.)I(><, 

T o1:1! opcra1111y cxpi:n sc:, IIJ6 8-li!<,'JS '\ :?OX. 2~. 167 :?::?'t 77&,+tfl 

GASB (18 pens ion c:-q>cn!.c acc rn :ils (2 ,c,7,llnll :! _71k1 7lJ7 I 17 -103.322) 
GASH 75 OPEU C"P CII Sl' :lCCIU JI (:?:?3%~) (•l,•U 2,02 l ) 18.UJ7.'~ll l 

Tmal u pcra l m!! cxpc11 l<lc\ \ 19).%09X7 ::!U(1,CIIJ2,9-I) s 2UCJ,J35,::!::? I 

Following 1s a recap or101ri l opcra 1111g cxpcnsc!'I b~ 11111ura l d a!-i'i lfir.:alH)ll 

June .\0, 2 24 JtlIIC o. 202.I June 30, 202::! 

Com!)c1b;tuun $ 11 '1 10\. l'Vi ~ I IX 001 I 11 $ 1::?0 1 17.5-11 

Opcrauo1b 1 1, li(JJJM:? "ii -HH .:?ll8 <., 1<.i;.4s,, 

Schul~lf!>hlfl"' 7 \ XO, I I :! :!0•177 II S ; ~ (Jll j ~(, I 

Dc p1e~1.111un :tnd amoru,1111011 18 ~ II 834 17.1J-14. 1'21) 17 ::w~.Nbb 

Opcraungc,pcth\.., w11hou1 GJ\Slh hX and 7 '-. ncc1u11b 1'16 M\8 ,1J8 I ::!08 12K lh7 :!2; 776 4~h 

Gt\ 'B 6~ pcn,1011 c,pcn\e .11.:i: 111.i1l, l:! .(17-1 IHI) 1 71)(1 797 ( 17 -IOl l:!:!I 

GA 'U 75 OP!:B expense acc rual 11:!1 110,~ !4 .m u1q cs u.n 'ltn I 
I otal lll)cr;rn ng. c ,pcn,e) \ I l), 'ibO 1>87 .S 20<, hll2 1'43 $:!LIO \ l ) .:12 1 
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Excluding the 11npact or the pension and Ol'EB accrua ls. tnt:il npcraung cxp,:1ises decreased S 11 5 
111111,on or 5 s•·• from $20R 3 m1ll1on durmg liscal year 202J to S l 96.8 mill ion during fiscal year 
2U2-I Thr.: net decrease wa.s due to mcrcascs or SI I 1111ll1on m ,ompcnsati un. SO I 1111l lion tn 

op,: rauons. :1 decrease ofSl3 4 million 111 scholarshi ps. and a SO 7 1rnlhon increase Ill dcrreciation 
and amon1za11on 

Overall comrensauon increased S I I million or 0.9"'• from $ 11 RO 11111lion 111 fiscal yea r 2023 to 
S 11'1. 1 milli on 111 fi scal year 2024 Sa laries :md wages increased from $86 8 m,111011 111 fi scal year 
2023 compared 10 S8R 2 million m fi scal year 2024: whereas fringe hcnclits remarned re latively 
llat from S3 1 2 mil ilon in liscal year 2023 lo S30 9 mil hon Ill fi scal year 2024 Overall fringe 
bcnl!lits as a pcrccn1agc of salancs and wagt.:s were J5°o m fiscal year 2024 compared ro 36°,o 111 
fisca l year 2023 

Orcrallons rc111 :11ncd re lauvcly nm from S51 4 milll(}n Ill focal year 2023 to $51 5 1111lilon in lisca l 
year 20]4 . Operauuns incl uded a SOR million 111crease 111 student recruitment ex pense related lo 
1nternational student rec ruitment, a SO 6 m1lilon decrease 111 puhltc rclauons .ind .idvemsmg. a SOX 
mtlhon incn:asc 111 maintenance serv ice agreements rdatcd to a new Janitorial contract, a SI 0 
million dccrcas1.: in repairs and ma111t1:n,1nce. a 0 7 million decrease m overall ut1ht1c~ cxixnsc. a 
SI 4 million decrease 1n contractual frcs and serv1ccs. and a S2 J. m1ll1on 1ncn:.a. c 1n the lo. son 
d1 spOSllllln or r,xed assets related II> the remo, al or the M6U pa r~ mg deck 

A large pon11111 or a,d 1s classir,ed as scholarship alh1\\'.JnCe on the Sta1cmc111 or Revenues . 
l:::,xpcnscs and Ch;,rngcs in Nc,;t Pos 1t1011 'l'IH.: Uni versi ty changed its methodology for cakulaung 
sd1olarshi p all owance 111 li scal year 202-l ti\ a method based 1111 the 1nd1v1dual swdcnl This 
esti mate rcll ccts ::i more accura te amount that matchcs student fi nancial aid with student 1u11ion 
charges The decrease ,n scholarship expense of SI 3 4 m1ll1on or 64"o from S21 I) million 111 fiscal 
year 2023 to S7 6 mllhon 111 fiscal year 2024 reflects the change 111 the scholarship allowa nce 
calculauon methodology o ,·crall. the U111 vers1ty d1Sburscd 48 4 1111lhon to students in fiscal year 
2024 compared to $44 3 mill ion 111 fi scal year 2023. an mcreasc of$4. I m1ll1011 The net rncrcasc 
was pri mari ly due to an 111crcasc or Sil 7 mill 1011 or scholarships supponed by the ope ral111g fonds, 
which mcludcd a scholarship fo r transfer students due to the closure or Eastern Gateway 
Community College, an 111crca..se or SI 0 111,llton of ·chnlarsh1ps supponcd hy grant funds. an 
mcrease of SO 7 mtllton m federal Pell granls. and a SI 7 m1ll1on increase 111 st:tte gra nts 

Dcprcc1a llon and a111omza11on 111crca.., cd SO 7 1111llton or 3 7°0 from S17 g 1111llton m liscal year 
2023 to SIR 6 mdlton 111 fiscal yea r 2024 

Pension expense attributed lo GASO 68 decreased S5 5 1111111011 fro m S2 8 1111 11 10n 111 ii scal year 
2023 to (S2 7) million 111 liscal year 202.J . whereas OPEB expense attributed 10 G/\$8 75 rncreased 
S4 2 111 1111011 from (S4 4) million m fi scal year 2023 10 (SU 2) 1111 llton in fiscal year 202.J The S5 5 
mtlliun decrease 111 pension cxpcn,e was due to a S2 5 mtllton decrease m the STRS 01110 plan and 
a $3 U md ilon dec rease m the Ol'ER • plan The S4 2 m1lll(l11 111creasc m the 01' =a expense was 
due 10 a SI 0 1111111011 mcrcasc m 1hc STRS Ohrn plan and a S3 2 mtllion 111crca~e ,n 1he OPERS 
plan These expenses arc the result of changes 111 !he deferred mutlow. 1ntlows and l1ahtl it1es 
rcla!cd to pens1on/Ol' El.l The Un1 vers1ty has no co ntro l nvcr the factors affect 111g these changes 
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Excluding the nnpact of the pcnsum and OPEB accruals, 101al opcra t111g expenses decreased $ 17 5 
million or 8°,u from $225 8 1111llton during fiscal •car 2022 to $208] m11l1Cm dunng fiscal ycar 
20:23 The nc: t c.kcrc: asc was due to ckcrcascs of S:! .J 1111ll1011 111 compcns:111011. S 1.8 m11l1011 111 
operauons. 14 I m1ll 1on 111 sehola rsh,ps and a SO 7 mlihon 111crease m deprcc,at,un and 
amoniza11on 

Total expense.~ s11ppor1.::d wi th COV ID- 19 rclieffunds decreased $23.1 m1 ll 10n from S2-l .0 11111l io11 
111 Ii seal year 2022 compared to SO 9 m1llinn in fi scal car 202' , mcluding a $7 •I mill1011 decrease 
in opcra t1011s. a 0 4 m1ll ion decrease: 111 compi:nsat1011. and a S 15 3 million dccri:asc 1n 
scholarsh ip, 

Overall compen ,Ilion decreased 2 3 million or 2°0 from Sl20 3 m1lhnn 111 fiscal year 2022 to 
S 118 million 111 fisca l year 2023 Sa Innes and wages remained rcl a11ve ly flat front S87 3 million 111 
fiscal year 202~ compared to SX6.X million Ill fisca l year 2023. whc11:as fr111gc benefi ts dccn:ascd 
$ 1. 8 millton or 5°0 fro m S33 I) nu li mn 111 fiscal ye,ir 2022 to $3 1.2 mli hnn 111 Ii seal year 2023 
Overall frmgc br.:ncfits as a percentage of salaries and wngcs were 36~'1, in liscal year 2023 
compared 10 7 8°t 111 fi scal y.::ar 2022 ·n,e overall decrease was primanly due m :1 S I 7 nul lton 
decrease 111 health care cxpt:n_-;c from fisca l year ::W:2:2 to liscal year 2023 

Oper:11,ons dec reased Sl.8 1111 llton or R0 o from S53 2 million m fi scal year 2021 10 S51 4 null1u11 
m fi scal year 2023 Extl ud mg !he 1111p:1ct nf the S7.4 1111ll10n decrease related 111 1he COVID-t'J 
relief funds. upcr:Hlons 111crcascd $5 <, m1lhon or 1:2°0. 111clud111g a $ 1 ➔ mtlhon incn.:-asc 1111ravd 
and a SO 7 nulhon incrcast.: m repairs and ma1111cnancc largely dut: to clcan~up t,;llSts ri.:- latcd to a 
fire III Ward Beecher I !all and ll ood da111agc 10 mult1pk buildings across campus during wu11er 
hrcak 

A large pomon of aid 1s class ified as scholarship allowa nce on the Statement or Revenue, . 
Expenses and Changes 111 Ne! Pos111011 Overall , the Un, ers11y d1shurscd S4.J .3 nu Il ion to student, 
m fiscal year 2023 compared to 60.5 1111 ll ion 111 fi scal year 2022, a decrease or S 16.2 111 ,thon The 
net dec rease was prunarily due tu the prior year including S 15.3 mi ll1 011 111 federal aid to stuclenls 
fro m I IEERF fonds In addition, there was a decrease orS2.2 million orscholarslu ps su pported I" 
operat 111g fund, , an increase of S 1.-l 11111linn supponcd by restricted funds. a 0.R million dccre;ise 
111 federal l'cll grant. . and a SO 7 mill 1on increase 111 state grants. 

Dcprcc1at111 n and a111omzat1011111c1cascd SO 7 mill1on or4~. from S 17 2 1111lhon 111 fi scal vca r 202'.! 
w S 17 9 1111llwn in fiscal year 2023 • 

l'cns1on expense atlnbutcd to GASH 68 increased S20 2 mill1011 from ($ 17 4) 111illton 111 fiscal year 
2022 to S2 8 11111110n 111 iiscal yea r 2023. wherea..~ 0 1-' · B expense attribnied Ill (;/\SB 75 111creascd 
S3 6 m1ll 1011 fro m (SR) million 111 fisca l year 2022 to (S4 -l ) million 111 fi scal year 2023. The S20 2 
million 111crease 1n pension c,pen e was du.:: to a S7 2 1111llton 111crea. c 111 the STRS Ohm plan and 
a S 13 0 millton mcrcasc in the 01' · R ' plan The 3 6 m, tlton 111crca e 111 !he OPE13 expense wa, 
due 10 an O 8 mtllton decrease m the STRS Ohm plan and a 4A 1111111 011 increase ,n the Ol'ERS 
pl an. These ex penses arc the rcsull or changes 111 1hc dc fc1·red ou11lnws/1111l ows and l1ab1il11es 
related lO pe ns,on/OPEB The U111 vers11y has 1111 cm11rol over the facwrs alkctmg these changes 
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Sec Note IJ fo r mJditmn~tl tnfonnat1011 on pensIor1 plans and other pos1-cmploy 1m:11I bcncfils 
(OP ' BJ 

Total opcraung :rnd nm1•opcra11ng ~xpcnscs for thi: U n1vc r~11 , \\CIC SI96,6JU X53 , S208.57] ,6] I. 
and S202,002,777. m focal years 2024, 2023 and 2022 , rcspcc11vcly 

Eco nomic Factors fu r the Future 

Look ing to tht.: future. m:rnagcmcnl bel ieves thc UmvcrSll~ 1s wcll-posiuoncU ln i;onllmu! IIS 
favorab le fi nancia l condi ti on and level or exce ll ence 111 serv ice 111 students 

Based on the most recent estimate provided by the Oh,o Dcpan111c111 of Higher Fduca11nn. State 
Share of lnstrucuon (SSI) funding for the Umvcrsil)' for fiscal vcar 202· 1s expected to be ~ 6"u 
greater than lhc prior fiscal y~a r 20~4 Thts increase.: IS panrnll) attributable Hl a n.m,gh l~ 1°a 
increase 111 the tota l statewide SSI apprupna11on that was c1iac1ed rn the state of Ohm' s operating 
budget lcg1sla11on for 1he fiscal year 2023-fiscal year 2024 h1cnn1um The Un1vers1ty 's increase m 
SSI fund ing 1s also driven h)• unproved performance with respect 10 s1ude111 succcs • ot1tcomes. 
unde rsco red by a 14% improv~mcrll in the Uni versity 's six- 1car graduation rate between 20 14 and 
1021 SS I fo rmul a allocauons con11 nue to be ttcd to l.! l1TOll111 r.:n t h:vcls •md studcnl stu.:ccs~ mi.,;tncs. 
with degrees awarded and course complct,ons servi ng as the primary dri ver or SSI rundmg 
DatascLS used in the fo rmula arc based on a thre\!-ycar roll111g ;1 \'t:ragc and arc ,,c1ghtcd to take 
mio account various at-nsk student charac1enst1cs 

The liJI IOI mg graph rcnccts six vc:trs actual data for St:ne Appropna11011s plus the budgeted 
amount for fiscal year 1025 
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YOUNGSTOWN ST ATE UNIVERSITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

Fall Semester Enrollment T rt! ruJs 
201 5 th rn u~h 2024 

The folknv111g graph depicts the U1mcrs11y·, 14"' da) cnrollmenl c<n1111, for the last 10 years 

14 000 -
12,000 

- -10,000 - !-- - - - -8,000 !-- - - - !-- ,- ,-. - -

6 000 - - -- - - >- >- - -
'000 !-- - - ,- - !-- ,- - -
Z 000 ,- - - - - - - - -

20 15 I 2016 I 2011 I 2018 I 2019 I 2020 I 2021 I 2022 I 2023 I 202• 

ID ful•Tnne EQUS\'11,lcn1 1003• I 10389 1 10<32 I 10566110.1a5 I 9.739 I 9_031 I 8673 I a.,1, I • 106 

I ■ Hea-ac.oum 12.,32 I 12 649 I 12.592 I 12 696 I 12,1 ss I n .na I 11.298 I 11 012 I 10 993 I 12.16' 

Fa ll 2024 enrolhncnt ,s 7 5°0 l11ghcr than the prior Fall scme ·ter " " a fu ll-11111e equ1valcncy (Fil: ) 
basis and 10 7u.11 h1ghl.!1 on a head-coun l ba~I!\ T hi.: numbi.:r of Ill! \\ 1m:0111111g undl.'.rgradunti: 
students for Fall 3034 was up hy 13.0° .. compared to Fa ll 20~3 Th is mcreiisc is annbutablc 10 a 
number of factors. 111clud1ng the University·, 1ntcrna11onal student enrollment plan , the pcnd111g 
closure of nearby E>L~tem Gateway Commun1t) College. and an e.,pans1on tu Ysu·, College 
Crcd ll Plus pwgram Also 1l11S fall , the U111 vers1 ty launched a vanct) uf ne" a oc1ate degree 
programs~ rc::sultmg m a 23 I ~o increase m th!! number of studc111 scckmg l\\ o-yc.!ar degn:cs YSU 
wi ll continue:: to pursue u111quc and mnovauve ways to ga111 1m1rkc1 $hi1rc 111 an c,er 111crcas111gl~ 
compc1111 vc h1ght!r edun111on market 

Freshman l11gh -chool grade ptHnt aVcra 0 c (<,l'i\) was approxm1atcl) J -17 for Fa ll 2024 wit h the 
h1ghcs1 Gl'i\ tn Umver\ltv history at J 52 during both Fall 2022 and Fa ll '.!021 despite YSLJ's sh1i't 
lO u tc~I optional rmlu:, for umkrgradua1c ad m1ss10n over thl.! la~t tha:i: , ca r The 1rnpress i, c 
ac:u.h:1mc qu3l1l~ or new stuJcnts c.:ontmucs tu bl.'. a po int t)f pm.le /\bout 60uv of nr:,,• freshmen 
had a high . chool GP.I\ tll' 3 5 or belier Students sclf-1dcnt ify1ng a~ m11111my in ·reascd by lJ 6°0 
Enroll111e111 mcreased m hill 2024 compared 10 Fall 2023 for 50 o of school <.hs tncts (26 of 52 
..;chool <l1s1ncts l The 11111nher of Ohm t..:ou ntu;~ rcpn:~t:ntcd 1n th t: i-:all :!02...i fres hman cluss 
111c1eascd by I\\O to 41 compared tu Fall 2023 This foll. students came from 2X ,1a1cs, compared 
Ill 26 , 1a1es ,n Fa ll 202' 

The number o f firs1-vc11 r freshmen who wcr~ rl.'.l:11ni:d 111 1111: ·i.=cont.l 1car 111crcascd to 7h I "10 from 
75 °'"'o from las t yea~ The nu111bi.:.rof"it:,,011d-yc:.1r students holding l'rt:shmcn and sophomore ranJ.. 
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111crt.:ascd by 14 Ju/4, and 1 1 5°10, rc.spcc11vel y '1'1) improve rc tc11t1on. a First-year tudcnt Sut.:tcss 
Seminar was 11nplcmcntcd three years a g tl and 1s rcquin:d of all 1H.~w incoming students Tlus 
seminar provides a low student to instructor rati o for din.:ct attent ion that focuses on the skills, 
capah1l1 tics, and capac1t1cs necessary to ix rs 1st and i.:omplctc a tlcgn:c In add1t1on. the Un1 vcrs11y·s 
advising structures have hccn n:dcs1gncd wtth a director of adv1s111g in each college who help~ 
coord111a1c adv1s111g ;1cuv1t1cs m a more proact1,c fashion The U111vcrs1ty ha'i in, cstcd hca, dy m 
technology to enhance student success incl uding a dcgrcc-audn sys1cm (Pen gum Pass) and a 
s1udcnt advising sys1c111 cal led CRM i\dv1~c 

Student and parent cxpcclallons arc evo lving and ri.:qu1rc Uramattca ll different n.:cnutml!nl and 
enrollment strategics wit h targl'tcd mcssag111g At:cord111gly . dTons arc underway to widen the 
U111 vcrsity·s appeal hcyo11d its traditional fomprini These cffons advanced 1h1s foll with iina11cial 
investments made 1n YSU 's marketing campaign 1hat 1s focused on special populations and gaimng 
market share Notahk. 1hc Univcrs ny launched ns new mult1 facc1cd brand KnowY, 11 h1ch will 
play a s1gmficant rol l! 111 cmgomg marketing and recruitment effort~ 

YS LJ leac.krsl11p u111Jcrstands 1hc 11npcra 11 vc ni.:cJ to ali gn its al:aJcm1c.: progrnms wit h the rn.:c<ls o f 
lhe region. 111 the context ofcmcrgrng :u.:c.;ountab1l11v measures. that also 1ntersccts with workforce 
cduca11on and innov:rn un, to assure- YSU has a strong presence 111 111os1 carcc:r pathway~ /\ s thc 
;mchor instlluuon for the rr.:grnn. the Um, crsity will rl'marn a maJor contributor to regional 
prospcrny and economic gro wth 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

C..:as h Flows from O11c-rnti11e Ar lh •itirs 

S tud~nl tm111111 ::uid fcL!S 

h ·dl'ral . state. and local 1:: rants :md conuac1::; 

I'm :i1c gr:in1s :md contracts 
S:ilL-s and sen 1ct!s of cducauon:tl :md 01ha Jepilrtmcf1rnl :icu, 111c,; 

l1J\' 111cn1 s 10 ,; upph ers 

l•a~ 111,.:n1s to tmplf•) c~s 
Pa,·me1us for b1.mi:fus 
P.:1,·1ni:n1s for ~d111l:u'sh1ps 

ll11 ec1 lent.Im ~ r..:cc1pu: 

U1r..:ct lcnd1n1;, d isbursement:. 
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YOUNGSTOWN ST ATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE Y'EARs ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

Note I - On,,:a11iz.a Iiu11 anti S11111marv ofSignifican1 ,\ccuunting Po licies 

Organiz.a t ion anti Uasis of Pn:scnl}llion 

Young!) tO\\ 11 Staie. lJni vcrs11y ( th\! Un1H:rs1ty or YSU) ts a coeducational, dt:.=grt.:~ granting statc­
ass1s1e<l me1ropol11:m u111vers11y al1ll ""~ cs1abl1>hcu by the General A ssembly ufthc State of Ohio 
111 I 96 7 The U111ver 11v " a ~ompunent u1111 o f the State of 0!110 The U111 vcrs11y provides a wide 
ra ng\.' of opportu11 It1e!'.i 111 lu 1hcr t:duc..111011 prnnanly tu residents in nurtht.:a ·tt.::rn Oh io and western 
Pcnnsvh nnw !'hi.: Urn, crsll~ uffcr~ degrees at tht! associate. undcrgradua1e. graduate. and doctoral 
bd, 

In m:corda11ce \\llh ,owrnmc111al /\ccoun1111g Swndards Board (G/\SB) S1a1cme111 No 1-1 , 7'l1<· 
Ueport111,1!, f:'111111. and ,ASB Stmcmcnt o 61 . / he I· 11w11,: tul Ueporlm_1!, /:~11wy : ( J111mhm, the 
University· li na11c1a l ~tat l!menl!<o arc rncludcrJ. a~ ,1 nun•maJor discretely presented component unit. 
111 the Siaw of Ohm's (,' late) Annual Comprd1cnsl\·c Fmancrn l Rcpon In accordance w11h G/\SB 
Statl!mcnt o .... 9, / Jetcrm11110}.!. lrl,eth t.!r ( 'l'rlam Org,wr1:ufl1111., ore< 'omp,ment ( 11111s, Youngstown 
S1a1c Un,versll ) Fo1111da11nn' s (YSUI· ur Fuunda11onI f,nanc,a l s1a1emen1s are included. as a 
d1scre1ely pre~ented component u1111. 111 the U,m erslly • s financial rcpon by prcscn Ia11un of the 
111dl\ 1dual financial ,1a1cmc111s of the cn111y 1mmcd1a1cly follow111g the U111vcrs 11y·s respccllvc 
G/\SB finn nc1:1I statcm1.:nL" See Nuti.: 15 for add1l1onal mfonnauon regarding the U 111vcr.s1t ·s 
component un11 

The Umvcrs11~ s fi nancial tatcmi:nts ha,c bl!cJl prepared 111 ;iccordancc wuh accounting pnnc tpks 
generally accepted m the U1111cd States of /\mcnca as prescribed by the GASB 

A'::. rcqum:d h) th e- GJ\SB. rcsowcc~ art.: cla ·s1ficd for aci:ounting and rcponrng purposes into the 
fullow111g four nel JlUSI11un cmcgoncs 

• Net Jn 'vcstmcnt m capital assets Capital asset. net of accumulated dcpre-c1at1on and 
amor11 za110 11. reduced by ou1s1and111g pn ne,pal balance, or debt annbutabk tu the acqu1si11011. 
cuns1ruc1Ion or improvement ufthosc assets 

Restncted. noncxpendahlc Re ource, ,ubJec1 10 external Iv 1111posed s1 1pula11ons that they be 
mainrn111cd pcrm:\11~1111\ IH the l Jni, er. 11, Such resources 111cludc thl! Uni, crs11y· s p1.: rmancnt 
cnuo,\lnem lilnd, 

Rc,mc1e<l, expe11dablc Re,ources whose use by the U n1 vcrs11y " sub1ec1 10 exlernall) 
11111Hhed s11pulat1CJ11s that can be fulfilled hy ac11011, of the U111 vcrs11y pursualll tu 1hose 
·11pula11on. or that expire by the passage of t1111e 

Unre,1nc1ed l{csources 1ha1 arc 1101s11h1cc110 e.x1e1nall i 1111poscd s11pula11ons Unrcs1nc1ed 
resou rces may be designated for specific purposes by acllon of ma11 agcmt:nt. Board ofTrustcc!-i 
ur may nthi.:rw1sc be hm11c<l by cuntr..ic tual agreements with m11s1dl! p;inics. Substantially all 
unrestricted ri.:sourcc!-> arc d1.:~1gnatcd for ucadcm1c and rcscarch programs and 1111 Iwu,·cs. 
cap11a l proJccts. and upcrnttng n.!si.:n cs 



YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT,) 

FOR THE YEARS EN.CED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

Sum nrnry of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanymg financial stalcmcnts have been pn.:pan.::d on the accrual basts. The Uni versity 
reports as a business type activity , as required by the GASB. Business type acuvitics are those that 
arc financed in whole or m pan by fees charged 10 c:"1; tcrna l panics for goods or services. 

Cash Equi va lents ·n,c Umvcrsity con.:;idcrs ~II hi ghly liquid investments with ;.rn original maturity 
or th ree months or less 10 he cash equivalents. Cas h and cash eq ui valent s arc stated at cost. which 
approximates fa ir v;,du~ ilnd excludes amounts n.:stnctcd by board designation or whose use is 
limited 

Investments - Investments arc reported at fair value based on quott.:d marki;:t prices. Changes in 
unreal ized gains (losses) on the carrying valm: of investments arc rcponcd as a component of 
investment income: in the Statement ofRc:vcnucs. Expcns~s. and Changes in Net Position. Restricted 
mvcstments arc comprised or endowment corpus and related spending funds Alternative 
investments arc general ly lc. s liqu id than publicly traded sccmitics. These alternative investments 
arc intended to reduce market risk , credit risk and ,merest ra te risk . The Universi ty beli eves 1hc 
carryi ng amounL'i or these holdings ( net asscl va lues) arc rea~onablc estimates or the fair val ues as 
of year-end. Because these 11westmcnts arc no1 read ily marketable. the csumatcd value ,s subject IO 

uncertainty, and therefore, may differ from the val ue that wo uld have been used had n reudy market 
for the investment existed. Such difference cou ld be material 

Endowment Pol,cv - Under Ohm law set fonh in the Un iform Prudent Ma na~emcnt of lnstituuonal 
Funds Act (Ul'MIFA), as adopted in Ohio in 2009, the Board ac1s in a liducGry capac ity as 1rustce 
or its endowment funds. UPMIFi\ rc,1uircs that the Board cxeruse its fiduciary duties prudently and 
consider both the charitable purposes and needs of the Uni versity and the purposes of the speci fic 
endowment regarding current expc nditurcs and prcscrvaturn of th !.! purch0:sing pt)WCr of the funds. 
The University Endowment Fund consists of 90 namc:d fu nds. Each named fund is ass1gnl!d a number 
of shares m the University Endowment Fu nd based on the value of the gifts to that named fund . The 
Uni versi ty's endowment spending po licy states that annual di stributions each fiscal year arc set to 
5% of the twelve-quarter average of the market value for the preced ing twelve calendar quar1crs 
ended September JO. Distributions greater tha n the calculated amount require written justification 
and Board or Trustees' approval. 

/\ccounts Rccc1vablc - Ai.:cnunts rccc1vahlc consist of transactions relatin g to tuition and foes, 
auxiliary enterprise sale.$ , grants and contracls, and mtsccllancous sales and services Account s 
rece ivable arc recorded net or allowance for uncollcctiblc amo unts. 

Pledges Rccc1 vahlc - The Un1verstty has a devclopmt.:nt ~r.:rviccs agreement wi th the F oundaiion. 
As part of the agreement, the maJonty of new pledges arc recorded by the Foundation and payments 
on Uni versity pledges arc collected by the Foundation and remitted to the Unive rsity 011 a monthly 
basis. Prior to the agreement, the University received pledges and bequests of financial support from 
corporations. founda tions. anc.l individuals. Rcvc::::nm: is recognized whcn a gi ft rcpresi.:nt ing an 
uncondition:'1.1 promise 10 pay 1s n.:cc1ved i.JIHJ all eligibility requ1rcmr.:nts h,ivr.: bt.:c:::n met . In tht: 
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absence of a condi tional pledge, revenue 1s rccogrnzc<l whe n the gi ft is rcceivcJ Pk<lges arc 
recorded net of an allowance for uncollcl".t1blc amm111ts and arc discounted to nd present vah1e. 

lnvcntoncs - Inventories arc stated at the lower of cost or fai r value 

Capital /\ssl!ts - Cnpi tal assets are statr.:d m ~ost or acq ui si tton value at date of gift. Right-to-use 
assets including i::q uipmcnt and subscription-based information technology arrangements (SB ITAs} 
are stated at pn:st:nt value of the co t over the contract term. Infrastructure assc1s arc inc luded in thi: 
financia l statements and arc c.leprcciated. The University' s capital izauon threshold for equipment. 
rurn1 ture, and vehicles is $5 ,000: and for buildings, building impro emcnts, improvements other 
than buildi ngs. and nght-10-use assets 1s S100.000 Land is c.1p1tahzed regardless or cost Library 
purchases are excluded from cap11ali2at,on and expensed as purchased 

Key estimates and j udgments related to Ri gt11-to-usc assets - SB IT As include how the uni versity 
determines the discount rate II uses to discount the expected subscnpt1011 payments to present alue 
and the subscription tenn The Univcrsi t uses the interest rate charged by the vendor as the di.1cotmt 
rate. \Vhcn the interest rnti.: charged by the vendor 1s not provuJcd. the Uni versity gcnc ra l1~1 usr.:s its 
estimated rncrcmcntal borrowing r:t l l! as th i.:: discou nt ra t~ for subscnptHHlS The st1h!:icnpt1on h:rm 
mcludc:s tht noncaru:clablc pcnod of the subscripti on, The University rnonuors changt:s tn 

ci rcumstances that would rcqum: a remeasurement of its subscnpttons and wi ll remeasure the 
subscrip1ion asset and lt11bility if certain changes occur that arc expected to significantly affec t thL' 
amount of the subscri ption liability Right-In-use assets - SB IT/\s arc reported with other capital 
assets, and subscription liabili ties arc rq10rtcd ,ts leased liabilities - SB ITAs 111 both the current and 
long-term scc11ons of Licht habliillt!S on thi.: statement uf net pos111on 

Depreciation (including amortization of nght~to-usc assets) 1s compu1cd usmg the stra1ght-li m: 
mi::thotl ewer the csti1natt:d useful hie or subscription tr.:rm of the asset and 1s not allocat~J to th ..: 
functional expenditure ca tl!'goncs. Historical collcc1ions, including assets that :ire held for public 
cxhibi 11on. cduca11on, or research 111 furtherance of public scrvicc. which an! protected and 
prcserwd. arc not depreciated 

When capital assets or right-to-use assets arc sold. or otht!rwisa;: disposed oC the carry ing value of 
such assets and uny accumulated depreciat ion and amnn1zation is removed from ,1ssc1 accounts and 
the net investment in capital assets. The costs of normal 111;.11ntcnance and repairs that dn not add In 
the val ue of the capi tal asset or ri ght-to-use assets or 1nateria lly extend the capital asset 's life arc 
expensed when incurred. Estimated lives for right-to-use t:qwpmcnt asscls are amortized over the 
lesser or the estimated useful life or the lease term using the stra ight-line method. Esti mated lives 
ror right- to-use SB IT As :ire amortized over the shorter of the subscription term or the useful h fc. 
Estimated lives arc as follows : 

n 111 ld mi;s 
lmpro,·cmcn1s m bu1IJ1ni;s 
lrnprto,·cmc111s 01hc1 1h;ir1 hmldm~s 
Mt)\ c!lhl.: cqu 11>rn..:n1 . lunututc . a 1HI , c l11cl.::­
K1g ht •l0•11:iC ;1s,s.:1s • c1111 1p111c11t 
H.1g ht-h)-u,c :ts :-.~· ts - S!!I I' ,\.. 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

Unearned Revenue - Unearned re venue includes tuition nnd f't.;c revenues bilh!d or received prior 10 

the end of the 1.: urrcnt t"iscal year end but related tu the pcnmf nftcr the: curn;nt fi scal year. /\lso 
111cludcd are amounts ret:c1vc:d from grants and contract sponsors 1ha1 have not yet been t::arncd and 
other resource~ received ht!'fun.; the eligibil ity rcqu1rc1m:nts iH!.: me! 

Compensated Ahsenct!s - Accumlllatcd unpaid vacalion and sic k leave bt!ndits arc recorded as 
n:qu1rcd by 1he GASB. The Umvc.:: rs1ty uses the tcrm1nat1on method 10 accrue sick lenve 
compensated absr.:::nccs on the Statement of Net Position. lJ111vt::rs1ty cmployccs earn vacat10n und 
sick leave benefits based, 111 pan , on length of !iCrvtct:: VacaI1on pay Is full y vested whl!n carncd 
Upon separation from service, employees arc paid accu mulated vacat ion and sick pay based upon 
the nature of separation (dt:ath, rct 1remcnt , or termrnauon). Ccrta111 lim1tat1ons havt: been placi:d cm 
tht: hours ofvacatwn an<l sick leave tha t cmployct:s may accumulah! and carry t)vi:r for payment at 
death, retirement, or terminat10n. Unosed hours exccr.::ding these hm1ta11ons are forfeited. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources - In addition to assets . the statement ot'li nanc1al posn1on repons a 
separate section for deferred outilows or resources. T his scparale rinanc1al statement c lement. 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consum ption of net positron that applies to future periods 
and so will not be rccogmzed as an out0ow of resourci::s (<!Xpt!nscs l until th t!n T he Un1vcrs1ty n:pon5 
deferred outllows o r resources fo r refunding or bonds and cenarn pens1on-relarcd and O1'El3- rela1cd 
amounts, including changi.::s in expected and aclual experience~ changes in assumptions, changc tn 
propor1Ionate share or contribution and cena111 contributu)n s. made 10 the plan subsequent to th(." 
111...:asurement date. Sec: Note: 13 for more dcta1 led 111format1on on tht! pension-related and OPF.R­
rela ted amount s 

Dc.:frrred lnflo,, of Rcsourcc.:s - In addition to lrnbil1t1r.::s, the:: statcInt!nt of financial posttion reports 
a scparah: sccuon for delt! rrcd inflows of resources. This st:parnte linanc,a1 statemcni element , 
deferred in0ows urrcsourccs. n:prcscnts an ,1cqu1siuon of n...:t pos1tIon that appl ies to future pcnods 
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (rt:venue} until th t:n . T he University rcpons 
deferred innows of resourct.!S for serv ice concession arrangt:mcnts and cenain pt.;nsion-relatcd and 
OPES-related amounts, including changes m c,-.;pectcd and ac1ual cxpcncnct!, changes in 
assumptions, and the <liffCrcnci.; bi::twct:n pr0JCctcd and ac tual earnings of the plan ' s 111vcstmcnts 
See Note 13 for more de tailed rnformat1on on the pension-related and OPEB-rcla1ed amoums 

Service Concession Arrarn..!...:mcms- S(:rv1cc conccsswn arrangements consist or an agn:cn11.,;11t with 
a food service prov1dt:r and an agr~t!menI w11h a bevi:ragc <,;ompany for cxclus1vc pouring n ghh 
Funds received arc contingent upon ut1hza11on or services over a spec,ricd lime period and arc 
amortized over the term of the contract arrangement Unamuruzcc.1 amounts are rcfkct~d as dctCrrt:<l 
in nows of resources on the Statement of Net Pos11ion. 

Pensions - For purposes of mc~L'iurmg tht: n~t pt!ns1011 liab1!11y dt!t'ern:d out llows of resources and 
deferred innows of rc:::ourccs rcl ,ncd tn pc:ns,ons, and pcnsrnn cxpcnsc , 111format1on about the 
lid11c1ary nel posillons of1he S1,11c Teachers Rc11remc111 Systcn, nr O h10 iSTRS 0 1110) and the Oh io 
l'ubl 1c Empl oyees Rc11rcme111 System 1OPERS) Pens ion !'Ian, and additions to/deductions fro m 
STRS O h1o ' s/Ol'ERS ' fiduciary ncl posillons have been de1c r111111cd on 1hc same basis as they arc 
reported by STRS Ohm,Ol'ERS. STRS Oh101OPERS use the cconom1c resou rces meas11remcn1 
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focus anti th l" rull accnwl bus1s or account ing. Conlnhullon rcvcnuc.: Is recorded as contributions arc 
dui.:: , pursualll IO lega l rcquIrclll t: ll l1i. l3cnt fit pay ment. (111clud111g rl!funds ofcmployci.; i.:untnbut1011s) 
an.: n:L·og111 zL·d as cxpens:e when due ,md payable rn accordance wuh the bcndi t terms Investments 
an: n: pl)m:J at fai r value 

Other Posh:mpluvmcnt Bend it Cost~ For purposes of measuring the net other postemploymcnt 
bcndi1 (O1'E13 ) assct/ liabi l11 v, dcli:rrcd ou11lows or resources and deferred 1111lows or resources 
related 10 Ol' EB, and !WEB ·expense, information about the fi ducia ry net posi ti ons of the Pension 
Plans (STRS Oh10IOl'ER ') and additions 10/ckduc1inns from STRS Ohio ' s/Ol'ERS ' fiduciary nc1 
pos111011s have bee n dc1en111ned on the same basis as the arc rcponcd by STRS O1110/OPERS STRS 
O h1010 PER. we the economic resources measurement foc us and the rull accrual basis of 
nccnun11ng For tlus purpose. STRS O h10IOPERS rccogmzc benefit payments when due and payable 
in accordance , v11h the benefit t~nns lnvestmt!nt. are rcponed at fair value 

lncnmc Ta.~e. - T hc JnIcrnal Rt!vcnuf! St.!rv it:e has ru led that the Univcrs11y ·s income 1s generall y 
exem pt rrum Federal 111come taxes unde r Secuon 115 o f the Internal Revenue Code. The Umversity 
is ubJect to tax on unrdated hus111..:ss 111 com1.:: 

M e,1stircmcnt l~ocus nnd Fin,111c1al Stah: mcnt Prcscntauon - Thi.! accompany111g fi nancial st:.llcmenls 
havl! b!.!~n prcparl.!'d using the cconomIc resource mcasurcmi.;nt focus, opt:ratmg rc:vcnur..:s and 
expenses g..;ncrally result from providing educational and mstructional se::rvIcc in connection w ith 
the Univcrsuy·s pnnc1pal ongoing operations The pnncipal operating revenues rncludc student 
tu ition. fre.s nnd other student charges The University also recogmzcs as opt!rating revenue grnnts 
classifi ed as exchange 1rans;,1ctIons and auxil iary act1 v111es. Operatmg expenses mcludc cducitlluna1 
costs. administrat ive c..: xpcnsl.!s and depreciation and amonizauon on capllal assi.:ts All revenues and 
c:...:penscs not mc..:L!tlng thts dcfin1t1on mcluding State and Federal appropnatIons ari.: rcponcd as non­
opcr::it ing revenues and c.xpcnsc~ 

Scho larship J\llowanccs and Student J\1d - Tuition. li:es. and other student charges: and J\uxi liary 
cn1crpnscs arc rellected net of scholarsh1p allowances Ill the Statements or Revenues. Expenses , and 
Changes in Net Position Cenam aid (s uch as loans and funds awarded 10 students by third panics ) 
Is accounted l<.,r as a 1hird party paymcnl (crcd11cd to lhl.! ~tudi:nt' , accounI as 1f the student made 
the payme111). Effccu ve in fi scal year 1014 , the me1hodologv fo r calcula1111g the scholarship 
allowance 1s based on the rnd1 v1dual student b 111a1ch111g student linanc,al aid w11h student 1,11110n 
charges, for a more accurate estimate us mg detailed student 111for111a11011. All other aid ,s reflected 111 

the finan c1id s1atcInents as operating expenses, or scholarship a ll owanccs, which reduce revenues 
Th\! amount rcport~d as Scholarship expense 111 the Statement of Revenues. Expt!nsl!s. and Changes 
1t1 ~t Pos1t1on n.:prescnts the portion of aid th~tt was provided lo the studcnt In the form or cash 
."chola rs h1 p allowa nces represent the portion or aid provided to the student 111 the liinn of reduced 
tlltll 011 

Rdca., e ol' Rcs1r1c1ed Funds When un expense 1s 111currcd fo r purposes for which hoth restricted 
and unrcs1ncIcd rl!sourccs arc ava1l.1blc, 11 1s 1iu; U111vcrs11y ·: pnl1cv to apply restric ted resources 
fi rst. then unrestricted resources a~ nct!ded 
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Man.u1c1rn:: nt 's Estimates The prcparall on of the tinanc,~,1 statements II\ conformlly with 
accounling prirn::1pks generall y c.1cccptcd Ill the U 1111 cd St:ttcs of America rc.:qum:.s managcmt:nt IO 
make cst1matcs and assumpt ions that tlf!Cct the :lmt)Unts n:poncd m the.: finc1nc1al stuh:mcnts an<l 
disc losures in thc notes to tinancrnl s1a1cmc n ts Ac tunl results could differ from these cs11ma1cs 

Res1atemc111 Durrng frscal yea r 202-l . the l Jnr\'ersll\' reclassrlicd the fu nd balance for the 
Un1 vcrs11y ·s Net OPEB asset from unn.:stnctcd nl.!t 1x1sIt1on to restricted expendable net pos,uon 
Thrs change resulted rn restatement of t he fiscal ycm 202' balance m the amount ofS' ,8/10,-lKn The 
change drd not result in any changcs rn total net posrl,on 

Adoptro n of New Accountirw Pro11ouncemc 111' - In frscal year 2024 , the prnv rsron, of thc ic>llowrng 
CiASB Sta te ments hccarnc dTecll\·c· 

• GAS I~ St.itcmcnl No I 01\ .- l c:c:mmfmJ..! ( 'htm).!C:\ arnl l ·.'rrur ( ·orrcc.:11" 11\ -Wt ,11ui:11clmc.·111 ,,j ( i.-1,\'N 
S1111 c 111,·111 No. 62. issued June 2022 The rcqurrcrncnts of th rs Statement arc effcctrvc for fi sca l 
years beginning aft1.;r June 15. 2U:!3 T he primary obJccuvc of this Statcn11.:nt 1s hl enhance:: 
accounting and financial n:ponmg requirements for accountmg changes and error corn.:cuons to 
provide more understandable. rdrahlc. relevant. consrstent. and comparable rn fon11a tron for 
makm~ dc.:c1s1ons or assess ing accounrnbil1ty 

Refer to Scholarsh,p Allo"ances and Student Aid for dcrnrls on the change rn mcthodologv for 
calculating scholarship allowance 

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements - /\s of tin: repon date. the GJ\S13 issued the folll1\\ mg 
statements not yet unpkmcn tcd by the Univcrs11~· 

• GJ\SB Statement No. 101 , C '11mf'1·11.,·01nl .-lh.,c.•nc:c. -., , 1ss ui.:d Junt: 2022 Thc requ irements ofth1s 
Statt.!mcnt arc cffccuvc for fiscal years bcgrnnmg ;.1fkr Dt.!ccrnbcr 15, 2023 Tht! oh1cct1ve of this 
statcmcn1 ts to belier meet the 111 for rn at1on needs of financial statement users by updatmg the 
recogni tion and measurement guidance for compt:nsatcd ahst!nccs 

• GASB Statement No. I 02 , ( ·em1111 //1,, k I J,,dornrc- . rssucd December 2023 The rcqurremcnts 
of thrs Statement arc cffectrvc fnr fi sca l years hegrnnrng after June 15 . _02-l The ohJcctl\ c or 
this Statement rs to provide users of government financral statements \\Ith esscntral rnforrnatron 
ahout nsks related to a govcrnmcnl ' s vulnt:rah1li11cs dui.: 10 certain onccn11at1ons or cons1ra111ts 

• GABS Statement o 103. Fuumcw l l frpnr1mg. ,\!odd lmprm:,•me111s. issued /\pnl 2024 T hc 
requrrcmcnts of thrs Statement arc cffcctrvc fo r tisca l years bcg rnn rng alkr June 15. 1025 The 
oh,1cct1 vc or tlus Statement 1s to improve key compnrH.:nts of 1he li na ne1al re port ing. model to 
enhance it s effectiveness 111 prov1<li 11g informalion that 1s essentia l for <.kc1sion m ak111g and 
assessing a govcrn1rn:nt"s accoun1ah1hty 

The Uruvcrs rty has not yet deterrnrncd the effect these Statements will ha,e 011 the Un1 \'ersrti• s 
finaneral statements and drsclosurcs 
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:,,/o tr 2 - Stat,· :1 1111 F'<·Mrnl Suuuort 

The Umvcrs1ty n:ct:1Vc.:$ support frL)m the' Stall! in the.: form of Stalc.: appropnat1ons and capital 
appropnations A · requrred by the GASB. these arc reflected a, 11011-op.:r;11111g re, enucs on the 
Statement of Revenues. Expe nses and Changes 111 Net Pos,11011 

State approprratrons totaled -1 8.856.576 rn fisca l year 202 -l compared tu -l (,.3'16.3 1-l rn fiscal year 
2023 The "ta1c Share ofl 11stnrctrt111 (SS I) 1s dctermrncd annuall y by the Ohro Depanment ufl-lrghcr 
Ed ucatron 

Caprtal appropriat ions frnm the State totabl S5 , 12-1,7 18 rn fi scal year 102-1 compa red to S5 .831. 180 
in fi scal year 2023 and rncludcd fundrng for cqurpment and the co rrstructinn/rmqnr rc11nva11011s or 
pla111 focrlrtrcs 

Funding for thc.: ccH\struct10 11 of ma3or plant fac1! 11 1cs on !he U 11 1\'cr~11y campus Is nbtn1ncd from thr...' 
issuance ofrc ,·cnue lmnds hy the Ohro Publrc F;1c1lrtres Cornn11ss m111 Ol' l'Cl 

U1m ers1ty facil rtres ure not pledged as cnllatcral for the re, cnue humi< Instead. the bonds arc 
supponcd bv a pledge of monrcs 111 the I lrgher Educatron Bond Scrv1cc Fund eswblrshed rn the 
custody of the Treasurer of Statc or Oluo If sufficrent momcs arc 111>t avarlable from thi s fund. a 
plt~dgc exist to assess a s1">Cc1:1l ~tudc.:nt fo1.: um form I~ apphcahh: tt'I :i; tudc111s in sta tc.:-a. s1s1cd 
1nc;111utI011.s of higher cd.ucat,on throughl)Ut the State 

Outstandrng debt rssucd by OPF 1s not rncludcd on the Unr vcr< rt )' < Statcmcnt or Net Posrt1 011 In 
additmn. the appropria tr nn, by tire liencral Assembly to the ()l, 111 Department of 11,gher Educa11011 
for payment of debt serv ice arc not rdlcc ted as appruprmti nn revenue received hy the Unavcrslly. 
and the related debt service pa •mcnts arc nm recorded m the Untvi.:rs11y ·" accoun ts 

No te 3 - Cash and Cash Equi,·:i lcnts 

For financial tatcment prcscntatron purposes, cash 111 hanks has hccn combined wrth the 
Uni\ crsity~s cash cqmvalcnts and temporary 111\ cstmi:nts 

Dcposrtory funds held rn the narnc ll f the Unr\'ersrty arc secured by a poo l uf secunt1es "rth a value 
of:11 least io·•• of the total value ofrn on res on dcpos11 at the deposr1ory ba nk All collate ral. both 
<pcc1 lic and pooled. 1s held by the Federal Rescrw Bank or by a designated trustee as agent for the 
public dcposrtones used by the Umversrty 
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ash and Cash l:qu ,valcnts ut Ju ne 30. 202.J and June 30. 2023 consist of the folluw111g 

Can mg Amo u1lt 

FDIC lru uu:ci 

Uninsured but t.:ollatcralv.cd by pnols ufs.e..:u1111c~ 

pledged by the dcp0!\ 1tmy bank~ 
Unmsu1cd \a11 a~sC I~ held 1n 11 ;11nc uf' YSU n o t 

pledgi.:d us colla1crnl clsc,\-hcrc 
Bank Balarn:c 

10:..i 
'.) )()_stfl.031 

:?0"-3 

S ~U.3Q~.~-t:! 

j71.I I..\ 

:!0.514,l'lJ 

The difference m carrying amou111 and bank balance ,s caused by items 111 tran.,11 and outstand111g 
checks Deposits held in safrkccping by a bank. as tru.cacc or 1.:sc ruw :1gcnt. 111cludcd in cash lOtaleU 
S585 at June 30. 2024 and $8.808 at June 30. 2023. which approximates market The,e depu.,11, 
mcluding m1eres1 on the rnvc. tmems. arc retained 111 the trust for payment or pnnctpal and interest 
on outstorndmg rndchtt:dnc:s!\ 

Credit nsk for depoms ts the risk that. tn the evem uf a hank ladure. the U111vcrs11y ·s deposits ma) 
not be returned tu the U111 vcrs1ty /\t June 30. 2024 und June 30. 2023. all uncollatcrali1.cd or 
uninsured depos its of the Uni versi ty arc cxposc<l to credit n ~~ The Urn vc r~tty ·s mves11111.:nt pn\ic,· 
untl asset allocat1 on gu1dd111cs foc1hta1c the management and mon11onng of credit ns~ 

Nore 4 - Investm en ts 

Th~ Univcrs11y ' s mvcstrnent policy authorizes the Umvcrsll~ to invest non.endowed and cndo"cd 
U111vers1ty funds in compliance w1th prov1s1ons of the Oh,u Kc, tsed Code 111cludmg I louse 8111 ·:i.i. 
Sectton 33.JS 05 of the Oh io Kevised Code. and all other applicable laws and regulation, 

In accordance wuh the l'olic,c, of the Board ofTrustccs of the U111vcrs11y. 1n, estmcnt l)' J1<:' arc not 
spcctficnlly hm, ted but shull be made with care. skill . prudence. and dthgence under the 
c1rct1mstanccs then prevail mg that a prudent person acting in h~c capacity and fami l iar" 1th !'iuch 
matters would use 111 1hc conduct orun cntcrpn se of" a like clrnr ac1cr muJ with li~c a1111~ Furth..:nnorc. 
tnvcstmcnts shall he managed for the use and benefit nf the University 111 a d1vers1f1cd pontolro that 
focuses, over tune. on the prcse rv.1 11011 of capital. m1r111111zat1011 of cost and n~k. and maintcn:rncc of 
rl.'quircd levels of' liqu1d11y Ill the overall portfolio 10 mci.:1 c:1 1.ih flow requirements The U111 vcna ty 
uuhzcs an mvestmt!nt advisor and 111,·c"itmcnt manager for no11 -e11dowmrnt funds 
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·n,i: lJru ,er~u,· , 11nc~11nent~ measured and rcponcd at fotr value arc cla~s1ficd a1..:curd111g to the 
fol lo" 111g h11.:ra1ch~ 

Le, cl I ln,cstmcnts rcnctt pncc, quoted 111 actt e nrnrkcts 

Le, cl J lnvcsuncm~ rdlcct pnccs tlm1 arc based on a s111111:ir ob, crv:1blc a:,set either directly 
oi 111<l1rec1I~ . \,h1ch 111av 1ncl u<lc inputs in markets thnt arc not co11~1Ucrc<l to he acuvc 
L c\\!I 3 Investments rcllcct prices h:is..:d upon unobservable soun;e!> 

ct /\,sci Value (Ni\ V) In, cs1111cn1s valued at net asset value. therefore not sub1cc1 to the 
h1cr:11cll\ class,licat1un 

The catcgtm1a11011 of 111,·c ·tmcm.:,. " 11h1n the hierarchy 1s bas~d upon tht.: pnc:1ng tra11sparcncy of the 
instrument und should not be pcrcL:1 ed as the panicular 111vcstmc111 ·s nsk 

ssct< cl:ts . ,tied Ill Lc,cl I of the foir value hierarchy are val ued irectly from a pnmary external 
prn.:111g ,cmJor l.ev ·I:! rnput~ arc ,·3lucd using a mmn:,,: pricing modd 

A · of June 30. 202.J. lhe Unl\crslt\ had the li>llowrng 111\cstments measured at farr value 

lnvc.\ollllClll Type 

t,1 rpw .11c l~1nd, 
I 111c1wn l._•n~h 
11 !"I ( 11 1\ cmn-.:n1 l~1nJ, 

li.1nJ "lutu JI I unJ, 

\ ,urwn ,n Shi\'.l.. 

I •Jllll \. ~hmrnl I unJ, 

1\hcmJl1vc lnvc,tn-i..:nh 
lu1., t, 

IC\ •I I 

.nl7.)'<1 
Ill ~hi~ 

JX~~X4 Jt<I 

~.lllU,WJ 

1ra1r V:iluc M~as tm:rn:nl 
I 1,.'H:1 2 Lc vd 3 

~ l.J.'-lJ9,n77 ~ 

111.I IX.'.!lli, 
J~c;.1c;1 

~Y7JIJ 

, 7/iJX 071 

' l"o t:tl 

\ 4 .u-iu_F,77 

)II.I IX.'.!Dh 

J~5.7"'1 
'-IKIJ.7311 

"if,J7 J'i.11 

1115n1~1 

, .'.:X-1.JSI 
211 ] 11.""-'7 

7Sl>tll72 

/\~ nf June '0, 2023 . the Un1vcrs11y hntl the following mvestmcnts measured at fair va lue 

lnvt•.sunem l')'pe 
(imc1nmcnt Ohl 1g_;.tUU1l'i 

Curpu1 ll1L" Umxh 
l·o1c1~1 honJ~ 
LIS <..Jmc,nnlent Bond~ 

Bond ~ lu1t.a.1I l·un<h 
Convnun S1od: 
fa1 w1y ~IU1u;1l Funds 
Allc:rn:ui,c: hl\c:Sllll(llb 

Total, 

I J c;11K Cil12 

g (ij17 1110 
~7 0612!0 

f'1tir Value Measurcmcn1 
Level 2 Lc,•d 3 
•J U26.17t} 
IJ <,I S.062 

18 i . 7Ci(1 

I I c;c; PJ~ 

.12 

NAV Total 
s Cl.()2(],379 

'l ,bJCi 062 

183 71b 
1. 111 192 

,~ _508 59~ 
~.0!,71(>() 

J7063210 
t> t)"7 J<>8 6.937 JtJM 
c, •JJ7 J')X S 7b 5 ~7 1J.i9 
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Because alternative invcstment"i have no acti ve mark~t. lhL! \' arc v;,ducd u.sint! NA V. wluch 1s hnscU 
o n informati on such as h istorical and current pcrforman~c of th~ undcrlY mg assets, cash now 
projccuons. liqu 1d1ty and credit prc1111u1m required by a mnrke1 panic1pant, and finanrn,1 trcnu 
analysis with respect 10 Lhc individual fu n<l 111 ,rn ;.1,gcr Furtlu;rmorc. thi;;: hquid11y of these in v..:s tmcnts 
rnay be impacted by the lack of a present market of the interest 111 the fonds. lock-up periods, 
rcdcmpuon nouce pcnods nnd limits to the frequency o r redemptions 

The fo llowm!l table provides add,tionnl ,nlormauon for 1ho~c 111vcs tmc111s valued using NI\ V 

r\ h c m .J.11v c 111vc511TX.'nl!. 

I ledge fun ds tA} 

Pn,.•:..1i..• <.:rcd n IUl 

Tc,1;, IS 

Fair V.J luc June JO 
2024 ~023 

' .2:11J,Of-: ~ ➔.~(..4,1110 

2..12&},{_..J 2.37J.3hX 
7_c;J~.on h".>)7 , l'l8 

Rcdcmptmn 
Frcq u~nC)' 

t,.)u:111~1l) 

,\n 1, 11al 

Rc.dempt1011 
0 11cc UnrunJc iJ 

Period Conm11ment 

<1~ d.1)' !<,, ~ 

ll>t!J\, :?'iol:i.StJ:!. 

s ::.~<.)(():! 

(A)Th1 s category 10cludcs hedge funds through a limned partnership inh . .: ri.: .._t The lmdcrl\'lng 
hedge fu n<l manai:;crs 111 vc I pnman ly m markctabh: securuu.:s 1hat trnJc 1n wcll-cstabltshed 
;md l1quu.l markets Styles of managcrs rnclude equ ity long-shon. rcla11 ve value . even! dri ven 
credit. or macro, among other suh-stylcs and $pcc1allics The ob1ccuvc of lhc hedge funds 1 
to achieve an atlractivc. n sJ.. -adJu°'t t!d return rclt1l1 \·c to olhcr ussct classes and pro, idc 
d1vcrs1fica11u11 and !nng-tcnn growth The hedge runds nrc valued at fair val ue 1ha1 arc 
rcponcd rn the 111vcs1mcm manager li nanc1al sta!cmcms. based on net a~scl \'a luc nfthc fund 
at !he end of the dcp1c1ed 11111c period 

(B ) Thi s category 1.s a pnvatc cred it strategy that ong1uates loan· for pn,•ntc c.:ompan1t!~ The fu nd 
provides sen ior .'\ecurc<l loans to pcrfonmng LJ .S lower t<> middle market 
bo rrower compani es wnh S8-S-10 111111 1011 m earnings be fore 1111ercst, ta.xe~. J cprcc1 atmn and 
amoni zauon (EBl'ffi/\) 17,c fu11d provides cus1om1zcd crcdn solu11nns munurcd wnh 
strong downside pro1cct1on charnctcn st1c. to dcl!,cr consis1c111 n.;su lts th rough market 
cycles 
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/\s of June 30, :!02~. the Universi ty had 1hc followi ng rn vcstmcnts and maturill\.'.~ usmg the 
segmented 1i 111c d1str ibut1on m c tlHH.i 

lnvt!s ln..:nt nn1unt1es (111 lenrs) 
lnvesrn~n1 Type r:nir Vnlu t! Less. thnn I 1. 6-10 More 1h:.1n 10 

t i S (itwcn1fn.=n1 <1hhgltlzcm , s <l.949.h77 t.!~21 ,0X() 7.5311.3'1-4 s "Q!.ICl.l s 
Corporate Bond.., 111,1 18 ,~06 ~ l~.2lJ.'.? 8,463 ,123 IB~.7t>S 9.1>'>3 
Forc1bll Bond::-. 3-t<..7<.I 19:! , IH-l 1<.35(,7 

l Is UJ\'l.!nlllltll\l Boml .. IJS9. 7)(1 (,0.JRQ •l•-lO . .J )S -IXS.'M)3 

B,1nd l\l utuul Fund._ c;,t, 7,350 "J\37,)50 

Comn'aln S1ocl,,. I0,5ol .'>J::? 10. lil 11<J::? 

Equ11 v ~ l111ual Fund, JM.~-S•l.1K I 8.::?84.lRl 
flue,\ al Fund-. ::..uJo.'►)7 ::?,.0J0/Jll7 

Allern.'.ltl\ c In, e</i 111r 1H s 7. C.JS.07:? 1 sJi(on 
r,,1.,L-. s M'-.-1'0. l<.h s ht,.871'.',,1'-7 IO,:'.ll .•173 s l)ihS.-1)11 -tl)S)Nb 

/\ II t:a lluh l<: 'i WCks wen : ilSSlltnc.d to 1n:.mm: in h:ss than one year 

A":-. of June ... 0. 2023 , the Umvi.:rs11y hat.I lhi: follnwmg mvcslm~nts and mmur1l1cs using the 
·cgmc.:ntcd time d1stnhu11011 1m::thod 

Investment m:uuri ti cs (i n \IC:Ars) 

lnvesunem Type Fnir Vrtlue U, ' tha n l !-5 6-10 
I i S fi1,\·1,.-iruncn1 Ohl1~11um, s ,, 0:2(1, i79 s 2.C,07 ,N09 s 5 ,7()'),(l{)IJ s C,,llJ,-141 
Cmpor:m.: Bond~ 1>,o I 5,6b:2 8{,.J , 15 1 87 1 007 x•u,c,1: 
Fflre1i:;,1 Bl)nd, un.1,fi !Si 7'lh 
us (iO\crn11µ,;1U Bond, I I c;,c. .Jo: ,Q_..J 07 , u-1.,.1,, 
!fond /\ 1utual Fund~ IJ_5UH 5-1)~ l •I .. CJ8j'J:! 

C0nu1'1<ln !-iiod S,0 67,<i(,I) R,Ofi7 ,Sfj0 

Equity \1ulual Fund~ 7.7116~.~l11 270(,i:!JO 
, \ltcr1t..lll\C Im c. uncttt-. hi)i?)'):-1 6.QJ 1 .. ;qs 

Toi3l s 5 7h 557 9..1,IJ $(,(),1(>'1.144 S l3JCJ.2N s l.'>S~.6b2 

/\II call:1hk Stoel..,;; were.: assumt.:d 10 ma1urc m less than one yc:J r 

/\s of Jun~ JO, 2024. 1n,·cs1mcn1s had the lollowmg qu:ilny credit raungs 

lnvcstm:ru Type f-r11 r \'tth1e Aoii A.1 A i3an 
Curpi.1 r .11c 13,'tnds I 0. 11 k,'.~fk1 S I.L1'.!-4JIM-I 511~). 14 5 S1.SJU77 S2 . .,73.-l~8 
Forc1g.11 Bontl~ ] ,15,75 1 145,751 

LI S Go\t.'11Wtk.'nt Bone.I i. l)it'J,7) (1 '1~9_7]0 

Bnnd \ l1111ul f unc.l:1. 5.b]7.J5(1 3 2.39.91.J'.! 337 u'J-1 7J I.OS, 1, 107.?H~ 

T1.1ml, 17.l1JI.OJ7 S <> . 15-1,t,I)<, ~ S4 .60 1.o8o S-1.0Sl.~IO 

More 1han 10 
s 

U11t1ucJ 
s uss.xn 

::!:!O.S::!-1 
S IJJlk1,01JtJ 



YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

i\ s or June JO, 2023 , I11ves1mcnts had 1hc lo lluw 111g qual11y crcd1 1 ra 1111gs 

tm esm~m Typ,.: fa ir Val ue Aaa ,, :1 Ona 
C'tJ1p 1J1alc Bonds s tJJ,15 .Mt~ S I ,J,t l , l l •l ld .J7H \ i ",:'.).H I 7 $1 l))l ) >Cl) 

Fmc1~113onds IR1 ,7Sb IH1 ,,, 
lJ S (iovcrnn'l:111 Bond:. I.I -;_1 1>:! I I SS,:i9:? 
tlo,KJ Mu1ual Fuoch I4.5ll8.5'l~ 5 0705')7 ~ ;:;:! .-.t7~ o.1 14 6-lh 
Tomls $2S J6l 40::? S8 7u7 101 SS7tJ IJl) '!t'>Jl-C.0➔ 5 •1_17.\ ,41 ,0 

UnrUt\!d 

S 1,0::?S.~n 

h7S.:2 IO 
S 1,700 h-'11 

l n1crc~t Rate R1s~ l11tcrcst rah.: n~k 1s the risk that change~ in Inh:rcst ra te~ w i ll advl.!1sd y affrct 
ihc linr val11c or an 111 vcs1me111 The Uni vcrsny's 111ws1111e111 pol 1c~• and a,sc1 allocauon gu1dd1ncs 
foc1! 11 ah.: the ma11ag.cmcm and mon llon ng or I1s exposure to f:i tr v;1lut!' losses arising from rncrcas111 g. 
Inh!rcst rates 

Crcd11 Risk - Crcdn risk 1s 1he ri sk 1ha1 an issuer or 01her rnulllerpany IO an 11wcs1111c111 \1'1 II 110! 
l"ullill Its obl1ga11011s. Credit qua l1ty, as commonly c.xprcs~cJ in tcnns of cn.::dlt ratings 1ssucJ b~ 
na11onall y rccogrn zcd sta11 s11 cat raung orgnnIz.auons such a~ Moody 's Investor~ St!rvtcc~. St.:1mfa rd 
& Poor's or r-uch raung prn v1<lcs::,, current dcp1ct1on (1fpotcn1wl vanal,lc cash t1ows and credit n s~ 
·n1c Umvcrs1ty ' s mvcstnu:nt policy and asse:t allocat1on gu1ddmcs conlam prov1sIons to manng~ 
credit nsk 

·us1od1al Credi! Ris~ Cus1od1al crcdll n sk 1s 1hc nsk !hut 111 1hc evc111 of 1hc failure of 1hc 
counwrpany IO a 1rnnsac11011 , the Un1, crs11y will 1101 he able 10 recover 1he va lue ofmvcs1111c1m or 
co llawra l sccurmes 1ha1 arc in the possession or un rJU1s1dc pan y lnves1mcms 1ha1 arc bo1h 
unreg istered and un111surcd an: ci:poscd tn custod wl crcc.h t ns" 1f rnvcstmcnts nrc lu.:ld by th..: 
counterpart . or ;:ire held by the countcrparty·s 1rus1 dl!panmcnt or agent but not 111 tht! name of th~ 
U 111 vcrs11y A l June JO, 202-1 and 2023, 1hc U 111vcrs11y had no exp11surc 10 cus1od1al crcd11 n sk T he 
Untvcrs11 docs not addrt!s~ custod ial crcdtl ri sk m us 111 , l.!s tmcnt r,ol IC) and asset allocauon 
gu1dd1m:s 

Co11cc n1 rauon of' Crcd n Risk Conccn1ra11on or credn ns~ i, 1he n,k or los • a11nb111ed IO 1hc 
111 ag111 1Ude of 1nvcs1111e111 111 a single issuer A s ur June 'o. 2024. SS.25 1.856 or 6",, of 1he 
Universi ty 's ponfoho was held 111 an 1111crmcd1a1c bond fond As ol'Junc 30, 2023. S5.09 1.372 or 
7% 01"1he U 111 vcrs11y ·s poni'oho was held 111 an 1111crmcd1:11c bond fund and 6.0X2. II7 nr 8" ·• \\ JS 

hd<l I11 a hon-1erm hond fund 

Foreign Curre:ncy R1 s" hirc1gn currency risk 1s the n sh. thm chan~cs 111 exchange ra te~ will 
advcr~cly affoc1 the fotr value ofan 1nvcstmcn1 ordepo~ 1l Al June "U. ] 024 and :W:D. 1he Un1 vcro,;1 ty 
had no matl.!nal cxposurt! to foreign cur rency nsk The Umvcf!i ll\ dues nul i1ddrcss fore i gn currency 
n sk 111 11. 111 cs1111cn1 pohc) and asse1 alloca11on gu1dchncs 

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

F'OR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

l\otc 5 - Accoun ts Rt•cci\'ahlc 

i\ccounls rc~c1vablc al June 30 , 20}-l and June 30. 10}3 cons1s1 o f' 1hc following 

,\ ccounh 1ccc1\.1hli.:- . nc1 

~lutlcm :1ccounb net \,f al km !mtc for lh1uh1illl 
.lCC0t.111h 111" I h02,b21l 1n :!02➔ nnd S l .262.617 in 20:D 

( 11 .t111:t and C\tntr.u:b . 11c1 (l f,1lhm:1m:c fc:,, doublli1I 
.u.::crnmt<; of'.)'>7S 11120:!..4 and :!~(1111 ~U:!J 

S 1~1c co1 p1t:1I app1opn:11Hm:., 

Uthcr Jt.'CCI\ .,hlc:t ne t of allm, .tlll..:C for t!Club1ful 
.iccounl~ ot' 21. no 111 :n:?-t Jod h1'.'J'IJ 111 :w:D 

·\CCOUl\h IL'CCl\llhlL· »el 

l 1]2.8(17 

4-l J. IJ2 

l2. IU\lJJ7 

3.762 lNS 

::!.29~ 7q 

l:S'il . 'i4 R 

2.5<:> l.\05 

1 Jncund1t1onal prnmIsc • to give: to the U 111vcrs1ty rccordt!d as pkdgcs rccc1vablc m June 30, 1024 
and June 30. 2023 \\'ere as follolVS. 

l1lcd~c ll!CCl\ablc . net nfpicscnt , .i!uc d1~cou111 

of S6 Ol:! 111 :!0:!~ ,md 11 .2-45 111 2021 
Less current poruon 

PIL'dgc~ rL"C'-'l\'ilblc, non,urrcn1 poru on 

2024 20~3 

104 087 
60. ll'l 
43 %8 

1-17 075 
5S 320 

S 88,755 

Ph.:dgcs recc1, ahlc ha, t.: been dt.:cmt!d fully collec11ble Pledges h.ivc been discounted tu net prcscm 
va lue usmg June 30. 2024 and June 30. 2023 IJ S T rcasul') Ole ralcs of' -I 25•,• ( 5-ycar) In fisca l 
~ i:ar 202➔ und 411 " ( '.'•year) 111 lisc~,I vc,u :!023 

.j(, 



YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNlVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAl. STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

ore 7 -Ca11i1al Asse ts 

Ca pital assets act,v1ty for the year 1,; ndcd June JO , 1024 was a.s foll ows 

Dcgmning Additions/ 

llalanc.e Transfers Rcducuon"i 
Nondcprcc1ablc asscL, 

Lnnd l~.t,mU,7'> 40.000 s 
Consm.ic:11on m progress 5.4I1l.(J4 I 1 lt!:? .::U1:? ) '>.600 
I l 1~mncal ucasurn I U c, ... un, 

Dcpri:c1ablc asse ts 
Brnld1ngs :;! X~J.21-I. 75-t .1_1,32 .55-IJ 

ln111fl )\ cmcnts Ill h rn ?d 111g_-. I 25.SI S !JJ " 4 · 1.7711 SS,M4 8 
lmprm•cn'lt:nl~ other 1h,1.n bu1ld t11!;!> 51.11-J.SXK -1. S>.77•1 7.:? S-1 .222 
?Viti\ i:ahlc cql11 111ne11t and formturc •lh,470, I h2 .) ~ LJ ) 91J5 892.271 
Vdudc, I ,KJ,t,9SU 77 ,<,67 2 ,905 
!{ 1~:h1-to--~c a~scu, - cqu1pmcnl :! , IU'.!,t07 14:U, i 

lt1.gl1t·IO·usc ;1~sc1s - Sl3ITAs I::? '>II! : :,pJ 4.309.676 I 57.cl 7 
Tot:1! co'I I 55 ,I .47•I. I 111 17 7115 625 I 3.0JO. l 'IS 

t c s 'i ;iccumulatc<l d cp1e.:ci:'l t1 o n il.1\d a11'H.1 r11 ;,_.'\ IH,.m 

lhu ld1ngs 20 1,5fJ-l .4 I U ➔ ,➔90.6 J. 4 .0lfi,f,10 

lmp1nvemcnts 10 build ings 40.1 RI _KK\ 4 7R~ ,C)7,I 26,flS') 
lmprn\ c 111C11ls othcr 1han hu1 h.lin~ l :! 570 <-,15 '2 Hi6 56J , l:'.!J ,X:? 1J 

Moveable c11u1pm<:nt ilnd form ru rc 40. 105 JJ I J . .15.1"5 K74 ,4(,1 
Vc-h1cl c s 1,,17376 12 06 2 9115 
H.1gi1Ho-usc il S.Set..~ - c4u1f)OIC:U I I i 0.4KO .m2 , l ➔ S 

R1 ~;h t ·IO- USit! 3 SS.e-t5 • BITAs 5, 4U 07k J.U9 I .J I S HlJ 968 
Tomi accumub.ti:d tlcprcc1:a11011 imd an101b 1 .. ·\ll o 11 l~: J O: b,8b2 IS.b l I. JJ 10 756 K&-1 
C':tp11al ib,S.Cl$. 1\cl ~ 212.1 :!7 :!hk s (Q01>.20RI S ~ ~7.1 JJ4 

47 

Ending 
Bal:rncc 

s I R,6-l~.h71J 

-1 51k. 17•> 
l ,l>Sh.-lMk 

:!.:M,CJ0:!: ,11)S 

IJ I q(JS .20-1 

.JS,..1711 1-15 

-IK K-I 1.KK -I 

1.X~h,71::? 

: . IOl .2fil 

17.115 .1 .7-IK 
5~ 1) 1-19 ,55 7 

:01 ; n K.4l 5 
-1-1 111~ ?70 
:! lJ)i l 1 h50 

-I2,SC,o,0I11 

I . 70 1'21 
I , 12 ,<,~5 
K 141 -125 

J0.2UI S I 
S~:?8.9J 7,7~c, 
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··ap11a l assets activity frir the yem ~ndl.!LI .lune 30. ~023 wa~ as follnws 

Nonclcprccmhlc 11.;:.~1, 

Lnnd 

Co ns1ruc11on m pwg rc'ii s 

H1s.wm:al 11cas u1c 

Ck: pcc 1abh.- .1\S ch 

Bu1ld mlf.S 
lmpro, c11)1.•11b rn hu1k! llli,:'> 

ln)f) 11.I\ cmc nt '> u lhcr th :111 hu ,ldmg 

'.\ lo \r.: .1blc cqu 1pn'l::1H .111tl fu11111u1c 

\'i:-lrn: lc~ 
k 1uhH(1· ll "- C ,1'- "-C b - ,:qu,pincm 

R1~hi.tn-o i. c a,,;;:cb • ' BITA> 

Tot:t l c-ns 1 

Le~~ ;1c1.a1 mula11..: d dqnccia11011 ,111U :.11110n 1z.1 11on 

Bcgu1n inM, 
13alancc 

S I853K.f,O'l 
1.553.563 
IJ.),,11. Jl'I 

:l\"').2J3,b37 

I 15.'1 1 ,1119 
•l'JJ~C):-t.1~) 

-l-l .HKH.787 
I .7 II ,UIX 

2,t>J!-1 ,730 

II.IJ7.7~J 

Add111011s / 

Transfer., 

70,U7U 

, 1.n . lii~ i 
1<, 150 

lfl.H1CJ 
9,S, :?.12J 
l.·I,11 ,DR 
,.l7h.b::! I 

l :!J ,•J):! 
11n,.1Q8 

1.7<.,),'ihO 

Rcduc.1 ions 

s 

9 .7 1] 

1.795.1-1.o 

105.)•)1 

l.')I0..l S<J 

End111 y 

Bnlnncc 

S 18.(·.0S.(,7'1 

.-11 0.CJ.11 

I U>6.-l!Q! 

2 •).~J-l .7'-1 

125.5 1 '.)-1::? 

5 1, ) 95 ~ 

-11\-110. I L~ 

1.81-1.i) l,,I) 

:2.lu:?,817 

I2.Wl.:?:,N 

B111ld11l g , 1•)7 ,017, l"ill -1.'4i:!S,111"i 1,S) :!Ol ,.'ifH .•I IO 

lmµ1ovc mc 111s to bu1ld1ngs 5.717.0<,:? -1.-HH,S:!3 .m.1s I ,HS~ 
h11p1o v cmc 11 t~ ~llhc 1 th ;m limltimgs O.OJl.hlJ I 2.5J()..25,I 3:::!,570.9 15 

t\'l0H: :1blc ct1 u1 r,m.:n t aod fi11 1111u 11_• lRJ-n:.307 1.0ll ,7<i7 1.780.?J) .JO, ltr',.{J J 

V(.' l11c lc!<, J, q 7,7ol l :::?5,1Jll}{I l ,47l ,7Cil 

H.1,g l\1 -to-u,c .,, ,ct !i • cc1u1p111cnt SJt,_c;:3:: 170. lbO 1>o.::!l::: 1. 111),.J I«> 

R1~h1-to-u:.c :1 ssc1::; -SBITAs ! A 7.757 1.1)():!~l:! 1 ' . .l➔0.078 

Tnt.11 :n:: cu111ul.1tcd th:pn.:c1a1 1o n and .1 11l{'l llt7.:ll 1'.ll1 - =-J'"'' 's::-~:.:8;.:;U:.;.J.:..JJ,__.;.17:..:.·"'--'-'-=-·1:.=c.c..'' - s,-_ l_.8...,·n,-,_~·_'_Xll.,-_,,..o'--,--3-2_:?.~•-1~,.X<_' _,2_ 
JJHtJ I :l~:. cl 'Ii , nCI S 1) .70-1.1-1 7 11 .5-1-1.519) ·"-' S ~J::? . I :::!7.: hM 

Note X - Pa v ro ll and O1her Liabi lit ic, 

Payro ll a11d other l1ab1h11cs at June 30. 202-l and 2023 rons1s1 or 1hc fo llow, ng 

11:n roll ltab1li u1.' s: 

Accrued CC1ll lJl1.:n~:i11on 

Accnk!d bcn,:fiL, 

:\ ccrn.:d h..:a ltJ1 care hcncfi ls J1k.l 11t~1u :i11cc p:n nhlc 

Hct1 1c 1111..: nl s, i-h::m c1in111h1111 011 p;i~.1hl,; 
To1;1\~ 

O\hl:r bahdm .. · 5 

D,:pt)):ll\ hch.l m cus to<l~ 
l11tc1cst pa,Jhk 
Ot)-..: r hahilmco; 

Tmah 

-lX 

~ ~.:;,,,, ·,2 1 ,; , .,1x on 
:! :!til:.7 !7<,. l.t \ 

1,~3:! •!Kl Ud .t 1:;7 
1.r,Ju.r,•m 1.,1115. :<'JO 

~ ~ Kl ' J.7:N ~ 8.-lb'ii_J,4') 

<,'J' ,.~, 
• 1r ; 2 1~ 

:!IIX.J :07 

~ x:::7 11<•, 

-ID .1137 

:;.i~:-n 



YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C ONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

Es111natcd expenses ultimaJely to res ult , ,r unperformed co,mrntments 111 process ,1 1 Ju ne 30. ]0]4 

arc completed. tota led S13 0 m,lhon co mpared to S9 -I mil li on at June 30, 20]3 T hese i1 1J1011111s do 
not constHulc cxpt:nst! 1ncurn.:d or hi1hd1t1cs 

Note 9 - Bonds 

In Jul) 102 1. the University issued 28.065.0llO m Se11e, _02 1 General Receipts bonds l'he 
pruc.:,.:cd.s fro m lht: bond sale wen.: used for an advanced n.:fondmg of the Serie~ .:!U IO Gcm.:ral 
Receipts bonds and Sen cs _o 11 General Recc1p1s bonds A, u result, S20.30 .. OOU or the ]ll l ll bonds 
and Sl' , 185,000 of the 20 1 I bond refunded nrc cons1derc<l 10 be ddeased and the lialnhty \\:tS 

n:movcd from tht! Un1vcrs1ty ·s long•tt:rm obl1ga11on!> For th1 current refumJ111g. the rcacqu1s1t1on 
pncc exceeds tht! nl!t c.arrymg amount of the o ld dcbt by S29 O 17 This amount was recorded as a 
ddi.: rred outflow o f resources and will be umon,zed over the rcmammg life or the new debt /\ s or 
June 30. 2024 and ]023. the amoun1 rernrdcd as a <ld~rrcd outfl ow was S22.097 and S24,434 , 
rc.spcc11 vcly As of June 30, 202-1 and 2023 , the lllllSt.rn<l111£ principal of the ]02 1 Genera l Receip ts 
bond was $27,960.000 and S28,U65 .UIJO. rcspcc t, vclv Payment, made in fiscal year 20]3 were bond 
111tcrc ·t paymcn1s un i)' In connccuon wi th the issuance or till' Series }O] I c;cneral Rece ipts bonds. 
the Un1 vcrs1ty also rccugrnzi:d a m:t hond pri:m1um in the amount or S5.871.J•n wl11ch will b~ 
amort ized aga inst tn tl!ft!St c~pcn!--c ovi:r th~ lifo o ft hi: bond. 

Dc1ails o l'the bonds payable fo r 1he General Receipts Bonds. S.:nc.s 202 1 as of June JO, 202-l foll,11, 

M11tumy Origi na l 
Bond Component Ra1e Yidd Through Pnnc,pat 
Serial Bond .. 0()(1' . 0; 1•0 ~01_ I IJ-l U(~J 

5c-ni!.1 Bond -100()9, 0 4-t"o ::?0~(1 1,;65.(KWJ 
Scnal Hond -1 uou·. U 57°, :!U:!7 2.ShU.000 

Sc11al Bond ..! 0utr'. U 7M• o :!U2:-! ~.6fJO.(>UO 
Sena! Bond ; 000". 0 1HJ'o _o:?tJ 1,770 uuo 
Sena! Kund JU(~)'. U l) lJ"'o ~OJO 1.n (JOO 

Sena! Bond -l 000". 1 1)9111 11 1UJI 2.'~)()Jl<XI 
Sena\ Bontl -llll l0°a I I 7Cll,I :!.0\2 J .1111,1100 
Sen;,! t\,md 4 l)O()*. I 2:?11 a 2UJ .1 .1.Jll,lklO 
Senn\ Hnnd ) OOh11 0 I •P 0 u "!O l-l l .J.JS .llOU 

Tn1al $ 17.%0.000 

In January 2017. 1hc Univers ity 1s ued S25,525,000 111 Senc, 2016 General Receipts bond, !'he 
proceeds from the hand sale \\CIC used fo r a pa n ia l advunccd rclimding of the Senc, _(}09 General 
Rcce1 p1s bonds and to construct a hou~sto,c /\s a result , SI <J ,9'1l ,UOU of the ]Olli/ honds at!I a need 
refunded were considered to be dcfeascd and the liabJ!1 ty wa, removed from the lJ n1\'cr, 11y's Inn•· 
term obligatmn, In addumn, a ddi:11e<l oot llow of resources was recorded and "ill be amun11ed 
mer the rcm:umng hfr of the nc" debt /\s or June 30, 202-1 and 2023 . the amount recorded as a 
defer red 011111,m was S 1. 179.9 13 and I. ' 0-1 .698 . respect, ct, 
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Dc1,11 ls ,,r 1hc bonds payable for the ticncral Rece ipts Bonds. Sen cs 20 16 as o f J une 30. 2024 follo w 

Ma1Urny Ongj nal 
nond 0111,onem Rntt: Y1old Through Pnnc1pal 
Sc:,w l Boud '\ ()O(l°o ~ {))DCI :?O:?<ii 1.-1-li-i.UOO 

S.:11:, t lllmd , OOO"o J (jl)". :?o:?6 15::?5.000 

Scnal BunJ "i (X.)0'' .. J :!J• . :w:!7 l .<><Xl U<KJ 

"'icra.al Rond J OOtl°v ~ ):? .... ::!0::!J') I ."6, .000 
St!rt.11 Buud ..i ~-..ou. ) -ll'r',,. ~0:Jl) 1.7 10.<JOO 
\1:1i.i l Bond :- OUU"o J..l"'• ~OJtJ l.7H(UKlll 
..;~,,al lhmtJ "-OOU"Q j 'liu■ • :?IJ)I 1.IHfl.000 
...,~m,11 Hund 3 '.'-UtJDo J 7..1• • :!U ~ l.'J-15.1)00 

Sc-ria l Uond J <,:?~II. 3 gt,• . :?OH : .010.000 
\critl l Bond 3 6:!"i11 o J ();!•. :?0J.t 2 .08'\.00U 

r1.:1m n ond -I (JIJO"o ,1 I :?0 , ~O)~ 310.l )O{J 

I crmHond 4 llllO"o .t l:?9 11 :?0"(1 320,(100 

l"cno lio11d -" (l{)()tl• .. ..i I:?" .. ~0)7 JJ c:; _ooo 
Tenn lh1rlll ➔ Ol Xl0 (; 4 1 :·. :!IJJN )i;.{J. l)(KJ 

Tum! S l 8. l)U0.000 

In June 20 11 , the Board of T rus1ccs of Ynungstown State lJ111vcrs 11y authonzed through a Board 
rcsol uuon the ,ssuancc of General Receipts Bonds, ·cncs 20 11 111 1he amount of S I 8,660,000 The 
S19 ,00r,,09J 111 bond proceeds were received m Ju ly 201 I f he Scncs 20 1 I Bnnds were utilized to 
pay costs a,soc1atcd wllh acquinng the U111vcrsll\ Courtyard /\panmcnts. an~ necessa ry related 
11nprovements thcrnto and to pay co ts of'issu ing the Sencs 2011 Bonds In July 202 I. the rcmam111g 
pnne,pal balance of 13, 185,UOO was refu nded wJlh the issuance of the Scm:, 20:i I General Receipts 
bonds and the l1ab11!1v "as removed from the UmverSII) ' • lung-term ohhgatmn 

As part o f the /\mt!m.::111 Rt:cove~ and Rcln\cslmt:nt Act of 2009. ·tah.:s and local go,i:mmcnls a rc 
permitted tu 1s,uc t\\ O typ.:, of taxable nbhga11ons. rcfc1Tcd h> a, Bu ild /\mcnca llonds I B/\Bs I T he 
BABs induc.Jc lCderal .subsu.l1cs to offsc:1 ;i J10rlinn of mtcrc. t CO!ttS as an altL"maH\t: to 1ssu111g 

trnd1t1onal lax~i.: '(cmpl nhliga t1 un 

In larch 2010, the U111vcrs11y ,ssucd S25 .335.000 or Gc11er:il Receipts Bunds (Ta~able Build 
A mcnca Bonds), Sencs 20 10 to provide fu nd111g to pay costs assocrnted w11 h fac1h11t:s pla nn ,ng fo r 
the U111 vc1s1ty ·:-. College of Science. Technology. Eng1nctn 11g and Mat hemat ics (STEM), cnnvc.;n 
the old colkgc or hus111css bu,ld,ng for use as a labora101) ', ullicc and classroom space. renovate 
Kile.I\, lcv 'e nte r, reconfigure and replace campus park111g focil111c, , construc1 the WATT S Ccn1er, 
relocate c.:c:n:1111 ~.\1 s11ng outdoor a thh.:11c foc1h11cs and pay the costs of issuance of 1hc Scrics :!010 
Bonds In Scptemhcr }UI I. apprn,nnatcly 9 <J m,lhon was rc- alloc:,ted fiom the K,lcawlc enter 
prOJCCI Ill 1\ c:1dc1111c b111ld111g reno, atmn p•OJeCts In July 202 1. the rcmammg pnnc1pnl ba lance or 

20,305 0011 wa, refunded w11h the issuance of the S •ne , 2021 General Rece ipts bonds and 1he 
lrab1ht , wa~ removed from the U111,·crs1t} ·s long~tcrm ohhgatmn 

·n ,e 1Jn1vcrs111 designated the Se ne ]0 10 Bonds both as Budd /\mcncn Bomb and a, Qu:ililicd 
Bu11ds and intends 10 • Pl ly for Credit Payments pursuant onl y tu 1hc ex1c111 that the Scncs 201(1 

51! 



YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

Bonds n:111a111 Qua lsfo:d Bonds. which 11..:qum:s the University to comply w11h certa in cnvcn~mts and 
to establish cc nain fac ts and expecta11ons with respect 10 1hc Series 20 IO Bonds, the use and 
uwcst mcnt or proceeds thereof and the use or property linanccd thereby 

In March 2009, the Um,crs11y issued 31.25· .oou of Cicncral Receipts Bonds, Scncs 2UO<J 10 
acqum.:. construct and equip thc nl.'.\\ \.Vilh~11nson l'olltgc of Husmcss Adn,1111s1rat1011 hu ildrng. 
renovate and replace ponions or the cx1s1111g Wu:k Pollock lnn . rc: fu nd the rcrnn111111g Cicnl.!ral 
Receipt s Bonds. Series 1997 and Series I 9YK, refund the General Rccctpts Bond An11c1pat1011 Notes. 
Series 2008 (BAN), and pay a po rtion of the costs of issuance of the bonds In Janua ry 2017. 
$ 19,930,000 of the bonds were advanced refunded with 1he issuance or the Sc ncs 20 16 Ge neral 
Receipts bonds The ha lance of the amoun1 ddi.:ascd a11d put ,n escrow was S 14,860.000 at June 30. 
2024 and $ 15,970,000 at June 30. 2023 

The indebtedness created through all issues of 1he General Receipts Bonds 1s hound by the Amended 
and Res tated Trust Indenture dated as (If Ma rch I. 2009 the First Suppl emental T rust Indenture 
dawd February 20 10. the Second Supplemental Trust Indenture dated Ju ly I , 20 11 , the Third 
Supplemen tal Trust I ndcnturc dated December I . 20 I 0, and the Sen es 1021 Bond. arc also hound 
by the Fo urth Supplemental T rust Indenture dntcd June I. 2021 The debt 1s secured hy a pledge or 
all Um ers11y general receipts, cxcludrng state nppropnauons and receipts previously pledged or 
otherwise restric ted T ht! Univcrs11y has comph...:d w11h all covenant rcqmrcrm:nts 

Mattmllcs o all bonds payable and debt serv ice for fiscal year. subsequent to June JO. 2024 foli o" 
(al so sec No te 12) 

General Rccc,pt Uond. 
Fi scal Year l'n11ci pal l111trcst Tomi 

2025 $ I 41><J .t)(J0 1.71JS){lt.J s 5. l•J5.81 •J 
2020 l <J<J1J.l)(l< 1 1.oll . t 19 S.623 ,1 !IJ 

:!027 4.l61J.IJ(J!J I ,154.4?-t 5.ol-t,4 'J4 
2028 4.325,()0() I 285. 1 l 'l 5,olO I l'l 
202(} .1 .• 181),00() I 121 756 S.60J 751, 
2030-2034 25.250,1)()0 2 (,<,(, 143 27,?lf,. 143 
20]5,20JX 1.1151)()() 107.()()1) l J22 .900 

Tota l,;; S 46 920,()0() S 10 1.166 350 S 56.?86,JSO 

Interest expense on mdeh1cdness was S 1, 165.7 10 1r1 liscal vcar 2024 and Sl.2 12,601 111 fisca l year 
2023 

The Un1vc rs11y·s Trust /\grecrncnt govcrn111g all uuts1a11d111g gcncrnl receipts bonds contains a 
provision that 111 an event or default , the Trus tee sha ll. within fi ve business days :,lier havi ng 
knowktlge of that eve nt ofdd"ault . g ive written noun: to 1hc Un1vcrsny The tntstec shall also give 
the origmal purchasers of each sencs of Annds then ou1stanu1ng, and tn the bo ndholders and any 
other pa 1 mg ..igcnls notice of each eve nt o f default \\'11hm 90 days aflcr havrng knowledge of the 
occurrence thereof The Trust J\ gn.:cmcnt also cont:uns a prov1s1on. that rn the case an event of 
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<.kf:.tult ha c; occl!rrcd. the Trustee may, upon wrmcn request of th 1..: holder~ of :11 lea.st '25°u 111 

aggregate prrncipal amnunl of the hnnds then outstandrng, declare the principal or a ll bonds 
out.s tamJrng :ind the interest ac..:crucd to be due and payahh: nnmcti1a1dy 

The followmg const11u1es an evenl of default under the T rust Agreement 

a Frulurc to pa~ any inh.: rcst on any Bond, \\hen 11 becomes due and payable. 
b Failure to pay the pnnc1pal of o r any rcdempuon prcnrnnn on any Bo11d. when II bccomcs 

due and payable. whether at 111 a1ur11y or by accelera11on nr call for rctk111pt1on. 
c F:ulurt! to pcrfom1 or observe any othi:r covenant, cond1t1on or agn:c11h:nt cont;_11ncd tn the 

Bo nds or the Trust Agreement and tn he performed hy the Un1 vers11y. wluch foilurc shal l 
havi: contmucd fo r a pl!nod of 30 days a ft er wnttl!n 11011cc or 11 to thi: Umvcrs aty given hy 
thl.! Trustee or th.: holders of at least 251!-u rn aggregate pr111c1pal amount of the bonds then 
outstand111g 

·ore 10 -Notc., l'avablc 

During fiscal year 20 16, the Un1wrs11y en1ered 111,0 a l~-vcar perfonnancc cuntrac1 \\Ith Johnson 
Controls fo r campus cnl!rgy sa, 1ngs measures The contract amount of S 16 0 1111llton rncludcs an 
assured pcrfom1ancc prov1drng for an annual measured cost sa mgs of not lc.ss than S2.0 m1ll1on per 
year and was fi nanct.:d as ~1 dm:ct bnrr0\\111tg th rough P C Eq u1pm 1.: nt Finance o,cr 1..1 years at an 
interest ra te of 3 366°u :ind rcqum.:s :innual mstallment payrn cnt !-1 In Scptemhcr 2020. PNC 
Equipment Fmance sold, assigned. and transferred the note payable to I lun1tngton Pub hc Cap11a l 
Corporation Security nft he deht 1s l11111tcd to the rt!'vc nucs appropna11:U for such pu q.10st!' 

Detail s oflhc rc.: vist:LI installment schedule follows: 

F'iscnl Year Prmc1p:'\I lntcre t To1al 
2025 1.324,77~ 330.h l~ l .655, 10:! 
::!O:!o I .43M,h77 286.05 1 1.7:!4.7:!S 
:?0::!7 l .5,Jll,702 ::! .. 7.oS:?: I 787.354 
20::?~ I 71::: ,8c:M 185.518 l,ltt)X -11 :! 

:?:020 l .k1,0 _3c,i 127.8').J l,l)l)7.::!IU 

:!01(1 1 QJ:! .2~1 0 .005 l .1>97.::!~o 

To1:1b 1>,827,721 S 1.23::!.738 S t l.()<,0.45'1 

I ntercst expcnse on mdchtcdncss wa~ S333 . 723 111 fisca l year 20'.!~ and SJ 7J .X77 111 liscal vear 2023 
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The lollowrng cun:,; titu1e. an cvc:11I or default under thi.: master agreement 

a Failure to make pay mcm as 1t becomes dut:. and any such fa ilure c onl11tll l!'-t for ten { 10) days 
aft er 1hc due dale. 

b Fa ilure to perform or observe any obl!gallons under Scc11 on 12 I. 1-1 ur 18 I hereof. 
c Failure to perform or observe :111 y other covenant, cond1t1m1 or agr i.: c1m,: 111 to he pcrfonned or 

observed by 1t under 1hc ai;rccmem and such fa il ure " not cured w1th111 thin, ( ' U) days after 
rece ipt by the borrower of Wrllten notice thereof by 1hc lender 

'01c 11 - teased Liabili ties 

Tht: Uni versity leases ccnaI 11 assi.:.t :-. from varwu!-i lhird part Ic~. l'hc assets l!!a~cd tnd udcs pn nt shop 
and prmter/cop1cr equipment 1':1ymcnts arc i;cncrnll v fixed mont hly Fu111rc princ ipal 11 11 d m1cre I 

payment requ irements rd atcd to tbc U111 vc rs1ty's lease hahd 11 v nt June JO. 2024 are as fo llm\ .s 

Year EndmgJ mtt,:. .1 0, Pri ncipal lmeres1 Towl 
202.S lb6.867 7 71,_1 11..; 11:w 

:rn.:?c, 2h8 9"i7 ... . ofl1 :?7-4 r,:o 
20::n l7 I .OM6 i :.1..: 27J b20 

:!018 :!70,3(1~ I lob 271 ,71' 

:!029 9.9,. 0(, o0.0(KI 

Total I 1.37 :?33 s 18 "62 s 1.1-c.-c.59~ 

The Umvcrs11y obtams 1hc nghl to use \ endurs' mfo rrna11on lechnolog) soliwarc through various 
long,. tenn contracts Pavrm:nts ate generally fi .xcd quanerly ur annuall y Future principal and in terest 
payrnc: nt req uirements rd.itc<l to th l! Uni, ersll) ' s subscription ltab il1tv nt June JO 2024 are as 
follows 

Year Ernlinc Juno 10, Ji n , ipril Inte rest Tow l 
2025 ~ 2,SK:?.629 s 250-4·;9 s J. I JJ.Uf,K 

:?026 ~. tPlJ ,071 1:;4_0,n 1,0 11. I C;.f, 

:?0:?7 2 15CJ."\64 15,M<ll :?. J(J2.-'1t 

:?02X .1 -1...a .. fil 1 K 481 -t"'i:? 99:! 

2029 :?O:; 718 ' ~ 204.271 

Tota l s K '\c,c,.49; 5 .t::!<).t:!7 s M.'JlJ:i.9:? :! 

Sec: Nm<: 7 Capita l Assets fo r rhc tolal amount of nght-10-usc as~cts and the rdah:<l accumulated 
am1,n1zat1on 
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Note 12 - tung-Term l.iahilitic, (e~clutling net pension/OPEii assctslliahililiesl 

l.ong-tc nn l1ab11it) acll\11\ 1;il,11 ,cc I u1es CJ. JU. und 11 l fo r lhc year ended June ' O. 101-l was as 
follnws 

Bewnrung Ending Cll'rc rt 

Oalnnce Add111011s Hc<lucuons l3alancc: Poruon 
Uond.-. pj\ .iblc 

Ut"llt.'r.1I rct·c 1pb t,l,,..._1, 11111,c:1p.1l •lb~()'.\ lllK) I 4KS IJ(HI S -l(,, 9:?U.000 s H 00.000 
l 'rumort11.cd p1c-numn J1:,,,cu11111 -1.7 12.911~ Sot,.OIS J.8-H,.9-tJ 80S.O-l I 

Bonds pnvablc. 111.'I St, 117 •J()~ 2.1 I.IISS so.1r,6.1J-n -l .205.().j f 

N01c p.1vablc 11 .0311,81<1 I .:!01 ,118 lJ,IC!7.721 l.3:!-l .77-1 

Lc:t!>C.:<l lrab1ht1L'' - ctJl11pn1cm l ,-l(~l .5(HI ..J:?(i :?67.61)1 I , I 17,2) l :!66.867 

l.c.1~t:d llabd1IIL..., - SB! I 1\ .., 7 -11 -.flhS 4.5 :?U,'):?1 1.175.4'1) x.5f>u.>95 2.88:?.6:?') 

C"o,npcn.-.atc.:d ob,.t:nCc'> o.1-l-t.572 140.lU:! b.104.270 863. 13 1 

l ntal kin:.i.-1crm lmb1 l111 c~ 7').!l:?.Q74 -l.S :!7.3-l'> S 7.))7_(,(,f ~ 76.-40:!.Uo:? S, tJ.S ...1 2.4-l :? 

Long-tt.!rrn llahilny ac11 v1tv tu l u ~cc ot t:S l), 10. and 11) for thi: )Car ended Juni: 30. 1023 was as 
follow 

llcginmng 
U.il:u-.:c: 

l\111ki, p.1,~.1hk 

(ir.:nc.:r'JI n:CCl('IL'- t"t11nJ, pru'IC1f1.1! "t-lq 7:!~JIOCI 

l nun,nn.cJ 11n.-111111m J1,1;uum '.',hlt'.! .063 

H'1n,h p;1y;.1hk. 1,c1 ,c;_J:?.7.llh3 

N,111.: payahh.: 

L..:...1,1.."J lt:.1h1ht11;, • Cljllljllt ' Ill 

l.-1:a.,cJ 1iJl• ll 1t 11.::-. • SBrt 
( ,m,pcn,.111.:tl .1lhC ll1,. 1.:' , 

ll i.:h inJ;itilc JJ\ark.:i.. 

I ,11.11 hing -11.:rm l1Jhil 111 1,., 

l :?. l o'-.1 .5i l :! 
15011.~-11• 

t<511J.5f,J 

t , J 1-1 .::;,-;,.: 
17:! .J!O 

Note 13 - Emplo yc~ llcnefi t Plan, 

Plan De:tcrip1ion.f 

r\JJlnon:::i H..:LIU1,;tlOrb 

l.)~111100 

~ XY,l>t\5 

:::!..:!O~JJ)(i-C. 

I ,117X.(,7l 

154.-l llX :?<;<; ,;!JK 

I 7hJ. i.f,c 1 :?.xfi11.11~t, 

1111.0(W:I 17,1,.:11, 
I?~ Jill 

"I .!,ll33Jl5N , r, 7,l"'i.l)X 

1-.ndmg Curn.:ru 

B,1lt1n.:c Pl) nl l lll 

°'-'X.-HJ~.nno ' 1. -1!-< ) ,flt,(I 

-i 7 1'.:!WM XM ,11 h 

",) . 1 17,•)'J).: :!,J<; l ,11:°ih 

11 ,11)0,SJ,"l 1.2.113. I IN 
1,..111-1 •. (H I 2 n-1.7J4 

7,-11 ~ lln"'i ~. 75"'i .-t-1 7 

h:!,U.-;J:! X5iMJIIJ, 

\7~.~ 1: i174 ~ 7.4 3.~_..i;o 

The Un1vcrsi1y pan, ,pates 111 1be :>late ·1 ~achcrs Rcurcment System of Ohm (STRS Ohio) and the 
Ohi o Public Employees Rc11 rc111cm Sy~tcm IOl'ERSJ, s1a1ew1dc. cost-,har111g. 111 ull1plc-cmploycr 
defined bcnclit public cmployc • re11reme111 sys1cms govcmed b 1hc Ohio Re, 1scd Code (ORC) thal 
covers substa1111ally all e111ployec, oi' the U111vcrs11y Each system ha, mu ll1plc rc li re mcm plan 
option, availab le IO 11, 111emhe1, , w11 h three op11ons 111 STRS Ohio and OJ> -Rs Each system 
provides rcllr1!mcnt. survi vor. and disabil ity bc11 !.! li1s to pliln 111c111 bcrs umJ thei r h~11clicianc~ The 
sys1ems also each prm iuc pos1-c111ploymen1 hcahh ca re bendits (1ncll1d 111g Medicare l:l premi ums) 
to reti rees and hcncflc1~mcs who elect 10 recei ve: thos~ bcndits 
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Each rc tm:1m.- ut sy.s1t:m ISSlH:s a puhli cly avai!.:'.lh lc li nam:1al report th.i i includes fi narH.:tal St:J.h!mCn t~ 

and required supplementary mfo rma11on lt)r 1hc J"'nsion and r,os1-c 111ployme111 hctrlth care plan, The 
n:p<>r1 s may b~ llbtamc<l by contact mg 

State Teac hers Rctrrement System of Oh, o 
275 E Broad Stred 

Oh,o Publ rc Employees Reti rement S. stem 
277 East Town Street 

Columbus. Ohro -132 I 5 Columbus. Ohro -13115 
(888) 227-7877 [ROO) 121-7377 
ww, . ~trsoh. org ww,v opers om 

Co111ribu1ion.\· 
State relrremenl law rcqurres cont ributrons b , covered employees and 1herr employers, and Chapter 
3307 nf the Ohi o Rev ised Code (O RC) li rn lls 1he rnaxr rnum rate of conlributions. The rc11rcmcnt 
boards of1hc sys1c111s tndivrd uall y scl contrrhu11ons rates wnh rn the allowable limns The adequacy 
of employer contnbuhon ra tes 1s dctc rnu ncd annually by :.11.:tu::mal valuati on usmg the 1.:ntry agi: 
normnl cost method Under these prov1sIon~. 1.:ach Umvcrs11y·s contnhu11on 1s expected to finance 
the !.'.'Osts ofhcncfns carnl!d hy 1.!mployccs <luri ng Lhc yc.:ar, wnh an addttional amount 10 finance a 
pon ron of the unfunded accnred lr ab1l11y 

Mernhcr cunirrhutrnns "re , cl at lhc max rr mrrns authorr zcd hy lhc CJRC The plans · 102.J and 1013 
employer and mc.:mbcr tont ribuuon rates on covered payroll to each S)'Stem arr.: 

.SIH..°'f)l111, 

(>1 11:RS-.S!Jl l.'/11,c:..i l 

< )l'FltS-1.uw h 1l11u;i.:mc nl 

PL'7l:,Oh1" 

I .I II". 

l-4 ,r. 
IX \~. 

& nplvvc.:r Cont n but1o n ll:Jt~ 
l'o::-t• 

lti.:tirCJncm Ocmh 
I h:!1llhc.:..1ri: llcn1.-fi1., 

1111" • "''"• 
IJII" ., 1)1 )",. 

011-• .. 1111",t .. 

lcdt~:i.rc I\ 
,,., ... 
IIO" o 

IIH' ., 

The Univers i1y 's rcqu rred and :rclual co n1nbu11 ons 10 the plans arc 

STRS 
OPERS 

llent!(its PrtJl'itle,J 
ST HS Ohio 

For d,c years crded Jtne JO. 

2024 2023 

Pension OPEB Pens,on 
-1 ,51>5. lti::! 

5.557 1•>1 
S 4. I 'l5.~7(r S 

5 xrlR.tk,8 
$tlliMl1 'rt8 S111.15-.553 

Total 
J.J1'I' .. 

I J II" ,. 

'" 1·:•. 

OPEB 

Mcmb..:r 
Con tnhu l k)O 

l"LII~ 

·1.u:il 
JJ. Ir' . 

\OW ~ 
13 l'I'!., 

Pian b.: ncfi1s :ire cstablrshed under Chapter 3307 of lhe UR C. as amended by Subs111utc Senate Brll 
342 tn 20 I 2. gives the Rc1rrcmcn1 Board the authonty to make future ad1us1mcms 10 the member 
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L".on1nbut1un rah:. rc11remen1 age and s~ rv 11.·c n.:qu irCmt,;nls. 1m t! thi: ( '(>LA ;.1s the need o r t l ppo11u11 1ty 

arises. depending on thi:: n:1ircment sysll:m's l'unding progress 

Effective A ugu.s t I. 20 17-July I . 201 9. uny member may rctm.:: who has ( I ) fivc yc;1rs of scrv1cc 
credi t and anarned age 60: l2) 27 years of service credi t and a11 :11 11cd age 55: or (3) _,ll years or 
service cred 11 regardless of age EJfccttvc August I , 20 19- Jul • I . 2021 . any member may rcurc wtth 
reduced bcnefrts who has ( I ) five years of service cr~dit and age 60, (2) 28 years or service ncdrt 
and age 5 •. or (3) 30 years of service crcdrt regard less of age lkgrrmrng August I, 201 5. clrgrbrlrty 
requirements for an unreduced benefi t c;h;.mgi.!d The maxnnum annual rctm:ment ri llow;lncc, payable 
for lrfc, considers ·cars of crcd11ed service. fi nal average sa lary (3-5 ,·cars) and muluplyrng by a 
factor ranging. from ~-2~1> to 1.61½ 1 ,v1th O I ~o 111crcmcnta l 111crcasc. for yea rs grcah:r 1han 30-J I . 
dt!pcnd i11g on n.::: lin.::mcnt age 

/\ defined hcncfit plan or combined plan member wtth five or more years of l:n:::d1tcd s i.: 1 vice whn Is 
dl!tl!nrnncd to be d1s~1b lcd (il lni.:ss or 111 1111) ' prcvcnung 1nd1v1du::il"s ah1 li1y to perform regula r J Oh 

dulres for a l least 11 momhs) may rcccrvc a dr sabil ny hcnclit /\dd 11 ionally, d rgrblc sun·l\urs or 
members \dHJ dir.: before sen ice rcurcrncnt may qualify for monthly benefi ts. Ni.:" mcmher.s on or 
after July I. 10 I' . must have :n lca~t 10 years ur qualifyrng sci'\ rec credit 10 appl)' for drsahrlrl\· 
hcndiLs 

/\ death benefi t of S 1,000 is payablt: to the hcnef1c.1ary of i.:ach deccasl!d retired member who 
pa r11c111r11cd 111 thc plan. Death benefit coverage up to S2.000 can hi.: purchased by pa rt 11.:1pants m all 
lim.·c of the plans Various oth i..:r benefi ts ~re available 10 members· hcndic iant:s . 

STRS Ohio prn\'ldes access to hca hhcarc coverage to reun.!c~ ,,ho part1c1patcd m the Ddini:<l 
Benefi t or Combint!d Plans, and thclf dependents Coverage under the current program 111cludcs 
hosprtalr1:1110 11, physrcrans· fees, pn:scrrp11 011 drugs. and partral rcrmburscment of monthly Medrc:rrc 
Pan B premium. l'ursuant to the ORC, the Slate Teachers Retirement Board has di,crc11onal)· 
authnnty o er how much. if :rni . of lhc hc:r llhcarc cosls w,11 be absorbed bv STRS Ohro /\ II benefit 
rccIp1cn1s pay a pnrt111n n f thc healthcare cost rn the tt1nn ofn monthly premium 

O l'ERS 
Plan benefits arc cslahlrshcd under Chapter 1-15 or the ORC, as amended by Subs111u1c Sena te 13111 
3.n 111 20 12 The. rcqum.::: ments to retire depends on years of service (5 to 30 years) and from atrnIn111g 
the age of 48 to 62. depending cm ,, hen tlu: employee became a n11.:::mbcr rvtcmbl!rs n.:unng before 
~1ge 65 ,,·11h le-;~ than .. 0 year • servu::c credit receive a 1>crc:enrnge rcduct1on 111 hl..'nefit c:-..ccpt for 
publit safety and law enforcement p:t rt 1c1p;111ts Member rc t1 rc 111cnt bcm:li ts me calculated on a 
form ula that l'nns1dcrs vca rs of si..!rv1cc (5-30 vcars ). Hl!I.' t ..JX .. O:! vcars) ,md final average sa larv . us1nl! 
a foctor rangmg from i 0° ~1 to 2 5°10 - ..., • - • -

A plan 1nr.:mbcr whu becomes d1sahlcd before age 60 or at any age. Jcpendrng on when 1he mc.: mbl.'r 
entered 1hc plan. and has comph:ted 60 contnhu1111g months 1s chg1h lr.: for a d1sab1 hty hcm.:f1t 

A death bcncli t ofS 00 • S1.500 1s dctcrmmc<l hv the numhtr ofvcars nf st:rv ice cred i t of the rct Irei.: 
Bcnclit may 1ra11sfcr 10 a bendiciary upon dc.:ath w11 h I 5 ye~rs nf SL·n.tce credi ts \\ll h the plan 
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ublatncd within the l~st 2 • year, , exccp1 for law cnfurcemcni and pubhc sal.:1y pcrso11ncl who arc 
ehg,blc 11nn1cd,atcly upon c1npl uv men1 

Bcncfi l tenns provide l"or ;1nm1al t;O$t•of .. liv1ng ad.1 u ·1111cn1s to i:ach cmplovce·s rctm.:mcnt alluwam.:c 
subseq uent 10 the cmp loycc~s rcurcmcm da1c. The annual nch u!'lllTil'lll . 1f appllcahlc, ,s 3°u, or an 
amount based on th!:! avcrngc percentage increase rn the Consu mer Price lnd.;x. capped at 3°u 

Net l','llsio11 Liahillry, De(~m11.<1 rmd Pe11sio11 £,peme 
Al Ju11c 30, 2024 and 2023 , the Um crs11y rcponcd a hab1l1tv fur ns propnnmnalc ,har, ufthc ncl 
p.:ns1on hab1h1y of STRS Oh10 and Ol'ERS For June JO, 2024 , lhc net r,en,ion l1ah1ht~ \\U. 

measured as of June 30. }02:, fo r STRS Oh,o and December J I 2(1]' for 1h~ O f' ERS plun I or Jline 
'O. 2023, th~ net pension hab1 l1ty was me;isured as or June 3ll. 2022 fo r STRS Ohio and Decembe, 
3 I, 2022 for the OPERS plan Th~ 101al pe1non liab1l 11y used 10 c.1lculate the ncl pension h:1b1hl) 
was dc1ennmed by an ac1uanal valua11on as of1hosc date., The lJ 111vers11i·, propuruon nrthe nc1 
pens ion liability was ba~ed on a pr~1cct1on o f 11 s long-t l.!nn shom.! ofcontributrnns to the pension plun 
rdativc to the proJectcd comribuu <1 ns of all pamcipaung Urn vcrs1 ucs, actuaria lly dc1erm1nl.!d 

Pcr~nt Pcrccnl 
~ l (!;}SUf t lYl:lil Net Pension l.Job1 l i ty P'roport1orutc Share Change Ch1.1'gc 

Pinn Da1c 20:!-4 20:?J 1024 2023 :?013-::?4 ~022-2 

STRS Ohio June JO S::?. 35 1.J:20 S 58.169.556 (I :!-lJt)l)l)l'(I O 26 167()9;;. -Otl 1MS7 1' • ..(l ()ll)l.)K(,.11 

0 1' 1:::KS December JI -~S'~' 0~5~7~:?~S~l-
5 l l I , 408,571 

6g-47 l .97U U :!2.Sl h•• U 237 lJ;;-,,. -0 (XlR77K', II IXl:'llJJ', 

S l:?7,Ml.5:!o 

For the years ended Junt.: 30. 202--1 .Jnd 20::? .3 , th..: Urn\ .,..._ti) rccog_mzcd ixns1on cxp,msc of 
$7.329.307 and S 12.949.350. r.:spec11 v.:ly Al June ' ll 202~ and 2023 . the U111 wrs11y reponed 
def<!rred uul f1ows of resources itnd dcforred inflows of n:: ·ourccs rdat..::d LO pension:,, l'rom the 
following sources : 

D1fli:1ences bem cen c,pcc1ed J11tl ,1CtUJ.I 
c,1tt:r 1cncc: 

Ch:.111gc1!- of as u n ,;,11 0 ,b 

Net d 1!l~rcnCt het\-.a:1:n Jlf tiJC\:lcJ :md :'\L!lu.'\I 

c111111 11b-"' on pcn.•ittlll plnn 111\•cs1rnc 111s 

t 'h.i n::c!i 111 proporuon ~ul<l ch flCrcncc...; bc l\\'Ccn 

Um\ cr s1 1v co 11IJ1bu11u1L'I, ant.I prnpnrl1U1t.1ll' 

sh,11 c uf cont11 bu:11 u1:.s 

Um\·cr ·1ty contr1bLD1un., :i.u~c<1uc1il 

hJ the meJ!iUJ enl!'nl da1c 

TutJI~ 

2024 
Deferred Dclcm:d 

Chnflo"s of ln0o"s of 
Resources lle$ources 

s ::_c14t,JRM s ltH,h ltJ 

-t.3,I0.'118 l .:?..t.S :'.Sh 

12.2 10.554 I h .XlJH 

11 L1i;.J 95,1.1.-1s<i 

7 I KM,OC ,o 

li, :!u.?1>M.9KO SI 140,:!~6 
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:!O:B 
D<ferred Dct,,r«t 

Otl!flows of Inflows of 
Resources RCSOllfl:CS 

1. r· 1,S~tJ s , ()X 701 

7.7-11.()')I ~ .~1() 7-1,1 

:?:?.:!:!; ,HM I 

71(J.ll7 I :s. ,;Q.1.os::! 

7 -1 - I. ; ~ 3 

-!-1,:?ti .Um $ I ~.04 •- I :7 
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

Amt\unt n.·porti.:d a-.. tlck11cd outllCl\\ of rc::,ou1c.:c~,{dd'crr~d 1111lO\\!-. of rc~m1rcc~J rc latcd lo 
pcnswns \\ 111 b(' n.:cogn11.c.!d 111 pension cxpcn. c as follows 

Y<ar Ended Jun,; JO, 
:!0:?5 

2020 

20: 1 
2CJJ8 
:!OJ(j 

'1 h1.:1calh:r 
fota l 

,\moum 
I l ,K65 Mt!J 

1I. IM8551 
l:! 232 243 

, : 7J 1651 
IX fi')7 
Jj,.150 

S o.470 68 

In add1t1on, thi: con1nhut1on~ ~uh!lii:qucm 10 thi: mc:.i~urcment date will hi: mcltuh!d 41s a rcdt11.:1mn o f 
the ne t pcns1011 lwb!111v 111 thr.: nest vcar. 

/\'cl 0/'EB Ualilli1w'(.·ls.1·c/). Ve(erru/.1·. um/ 0/'EIJ £r1w11.<e 
,\1 June 30. 2024. the U111versi l) rcpuncd a liabllit /(as ·e1} for 11s proporuonatc share or 1he ncl 
()i>Ell hnbil1tyl(as<c1 } of 'TRS Ohio and Ol'ERS For June 30. 102~. the nc1 Ol'EB lrnhih1yl(,c5sc1) 
was meas ured :1s or June JO, 102' for STRS Oluo and December 31 . 2023 for the lll'ERS plan For 
June 30. 2023, 1he net Oi'FR l1:1b1l11v1(assc1) was meas ured as or June 30. 2021 for STRS Oh,o and 
Dcccmb<,r 3 1, 2022 ii,, the Ol'ERS ·plan The tota l Ol'Gl3 habiln_ /(asset) used 10 t·alcula1c the ncl 
OPEB habil11yl(a · . e1 I wus determined by an ac1uanal valuauon a,, of thusc dale~. c , ecpl Ol'ERS 
" h,ch used an a 1uanal valua11on dated December 'I , 2022 and 202 1. resp,.:cuvc l~ . rolled forward 
tn thi: me<LS11rt..':mco1 U:llt! hy incorporJting th!! C\:pectcd v:1lm: orhc;i lth can: cost accruuls . the i.tCl ual 
health car~ pnymr.:nts. and 1111crcst acc ruals durmg the vca r for the dclinr.:d bcnelit health care plans, 

Typ1ca ll ) . the U111 vcrs11y ·s pruponrnn of 1hc ne1 (ll'EB l,abi lny/(assc1} wou ld be based nn a 
proJcction or 11s long-term share of contnhulions 10 the OPEB plan rela11vc 10 the projected 
contnbut1on!-. of all part1c1pat1ng lJUI \ crsit1cs. ac1u,.111 1.1lly dc11.: rm1m:tl , except a!-1 nuh:d below 

For plan year ending June 30. 2023 and 2022 . STRS Oluo d,d not allocate em plo •er conlnbuuons 
tu lite Ol'EB plnn Therefore. STRS Ohm·s cak11 la11on of 1he employers· propon1ona1c share 1s 
based on total cnn1r1hu11ons l<l the plan fo r bulb pcnsmn and Ol'EB 

For plan ) car. ending December 31 . 2023 and 2022, UPERS did 1101 alluca1e cniploycr con1nbu11ons 
1(1 the Jl'EH pl;111 lhercrme. OPERS 's ealcula1,on of 1hc e111plu. ers· proporuunaic share 1.$ based 
on io1al con1r1 bu11ons 10 the plan for both pension and Ol'EB 

Measurement 

Dare 
Ne1 OPED Liabili,y (As$el) l'roponionate hare 

2024 2023 

Percent 
Change 
2021.:?..i 

Percent 

Clui.nge 

2022-23 Plan 20'14 20:?J 
SH{S Ohi o Jrnie HJ S ( ➔ 72S (.llKJ) 

Ol'ERS l>t.-ccmbi.:r q t ::! 0::?b 7i 'i J 

~ to 754 1,,, 
lh 77 11 llCJO} fl :?4 t 102" • 0 2blb8 'J•, -U UIM ~:H'• .u Ul 'N61° 0 

I 46~ 471< 0 ::?:?-l '-h) 11 o (I 2J1.J2.J•, -U U<l78hl•• . (J UOtJ~f)l')9 0 

S !5'1US2: ) 
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For the years ended June 30. W24 and 2023, the Un1 vers1tv recogm7cd a cred it to Ol' EB (revenue )/ 
e.,pense of S223 ,965 and $4.-132 ,02 1. respcc11vc ly /I t June 30 , 2024 and 2023, the Un1vcrsny 
reported deferred outflows of resou rces and deferred mflo" s of resources re lated tn Ol'EB fro m the 
fol lowing sources 

2024 1013 

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflow of Outflow of Inflows of 
Resources Resourc es: Rcsource.s Resources 

01 ffcrcnccs hcl wccn c,11cc1cd and aC"l lL1l s 7,000 s l.llO'l.463 s '18,t)(J(I s 1,383.547 

cxptncncc 
Ch,1ne,oe i; of assump 1tu1h 1.1 11.n.1 3.'>'><J,211 1,710,165 •l ,921.77S 

Nc1 d1 1fcrcncc between p roJcctctl and ac lu:tl 

c a r rnng.-; url OPEi\ Ill\ t= Sltlk.' IIIS 1, :!26 . 170 1,ll2M,,11) 1 

('i t:tllb'C!t m prnpurn un a nd d11lCrcncc :1o hct\\ccn 

Uni , cr!> lty contnbu11 n ns a nd pr o1tor1um.11 c 

i; ha fL' uf tllll l n b ut1 l lll.\ IO'J.~27 :nu,cJt,~ 8S,-177 771!-14 
l.1u\ c n,1ty Cuntn hutt o ns !i.ub SL"<ltk:nt 

to !he: mca,urcmcru date 

Tutal, s 2 5(,().)80 s 5.130.6"-I s 4 9)1 JJJ s 0.382,)09 

/lmuunts reported as deferred outn O\,s of resouree (deferred mnows of resources) related 10 Ol' EB 
wi ll be recognized U1 OP EB expense as follows 

Ycnr Ended June JO, ,\mount 

:!0:!5 , I SOQ SCI KI 

:!IJ::!(, 1597,0 ,11 ) 

:?0:!-1 7 IJ 79'1 
:! fl:!~ (72K . 1-171 
20:!'J I 18f> ,o48 I 

T hc 1ca lk1 ( :!02 .7391 

Tottt ls 12 b70.2S-l t 

In addition. 1f apphcahle. the con1nbu11 ons subsequent to the measuremenl dale will be 111tluded as 
a reducti on o f the nel OPEL! l1ah1lny11as~ett 111 lhe ne, t year 
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.·l ctuuriaf .·lssu111plio11.,· 
The total pension l1 ab1l1ty and OPEB h.ibd11y/(assct) is based on the results o l' an acluan al valua11on 
and were dcte nmncd using the fo llowrng actuaria l assump1ions for the U111 vcrsi1y·s current year 

S IRS Ohw 

Valuathm d.1tc - ( Jl 'F II June 311 ::!01) 
J\ ctuan.1I 1.:thl mcthn.J l ·ntrv ui.:c nonn.:11 

Cth l 11fl " ml.! INunc 
.\11!.11: in,:1c.1, c , , 1ndml, n!:: ::! <;o• .. - ~ <-11" 11 

1nfl:.i t1,m 

lnlla u rn, 1 'i o",. 

hw c , uoc m r;1tc ,\I 71 111" .. , n..: 1 , 111 m1.:,1n)c1U c x1h:11 ,c 

n.m1rn - l' ..: 1i-.1 11n 111d l Ml t1 H! 111 l l.1t h 111 

ln,,:,1111c nt t,1\c , 11' 7 OU""· I\Cl 111 111\'C~lmc nl c,jlClht..: 

rc lum - t WF I\ 11 u,.: l 11 .. J1m: , nt l:iu o n 

~h1r1.tl 11, · h .1, 1, l ' i.hl• ltd1r c n'K.'o l l 'uh-:!1 11 11 J'c..i ... hc1, 

I lctilth) \ 1\1Uu t.1111 !\1.,n..illlV I .1hlc. 

.1 i.l1 u , 1cd I l tr' ., h_•r m..ih: , , l'fl')..:..:1cJ 

1111\\ .11 J !,'1:0CfJllnru.11,• tt-.tni; m.11"1.tli l) 

rn1 p 11t\ cmcm , c..i l c ,\11'-:?fl:!t) Jl rc-

rJl'l'kS 
l kci;mhc1 J I ~1123 

'.? II'\ '' .. - ; IIH" .. 

(1 •111° w, 1'1C1 ,11 rnvc , uuc m ..:,p..:1i-.c. 

11~ lml11w 111ll at11111 

(, IHI'' .. , 11..: t 11l 111vc, \l1 k;'11l c,pc 11, ... · , 

1nd t1lhlll! 111tla1,, ,n 

5 'i.11"., 11 1111.11 .J SIi"., ull1 11\.1IL' 1n 211 3X 

l'n: 0 rc1 11 c111c111111,1n,1hl) r J 1c, .11c h,bcJ ,111 

I U"., 111 th,.· P11h -2Ultl ( •L·ncr.il h npl , 1\1."C 

"-l ,1r1.1l t1 't' 1.ih l c ~ ( m .1k, .in.t tc m .1lc , ) lur 

" I.l i e .inJ J ,~.11 (111\C I UIIJC II I J1 \hltllh ..1 1w.J 

1711"'. ul the Puh - .:!.11 l 11.\.1lc t, l :m ph •)l.'C 

Kett , c inc nl l 'uh - :!_11 111 I c .1chc-r, l· mpll,)1.'C ~1 1,rt.1 11 1, l.:1h lc, tnu l\.·, .rnJ 11:m .. ,k , ) I,» th\.· 

I ..i hh.: .1J1u,1cd .,.;; .. . h1r icnulc, . p r t\JCctc J l 'ut'iltc !',,1lcl\ ,lllll I ,I\\ l·nforccnk'.111 

l\tf\\ JrJ !:,"CllCIJlhll\.111\• u-.1ng llk\rla l11\ 1.h \ 11\1111\\r, 1'1i-.l•ICIIICl1k;lll rnn r1.1l11\ r .. 1h.-, ,I.I C 

1111111 11, cmcnl " ,:;al e i\11'-~0:n 111 ... 1- h ,1,,..11 l•II 11 ~ .... ,11 ti~ l'uht ,-2U l ll Rc lll L'C 

Rct11 c mc 111 I h,;i McJ l'uh<!lllll I c.ichc r-. i\ l, 11 1.tl 1h I .1hlc_, (m.1 lc, JnJ lc1n:1k,) li•r .1II 

l l1,,1hlc J A IIIIUl l,1111 t :,hlc p1111c ..:1t..: LI 

lt11w a1 J 1:,-cnc r .11! 1•11.1\l y u,1 11,s n M,rl.1111,, 

1111111 11\'C IHCl\1 ,c.1\c ~11•.2010 
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tl 1\1" 11n , 1•, ,..1- 1..:t11c 11k.:'n t m,,rt.1l11y r .11,·, 11, , 

d1,,1hktl n:11 1c1.: , ,11'1.: h ,,, c J 1•111hc l'uh N:-.-

2Ulll f )1 , .1hkll R c 111cc i\ l11r1.1lt1~ I ,1hlc, 

( m ,1lc, .1ml lcm.il c,l im .,II lll\ i-.11 111-. h ,, 

.111 111 1hc p n.:v 11 1u,I\ d c ,cnhi.:J 1.1hlc , , 1hc 

ha, c vc .,r .-. :!111 11 ,md 11 \l,1 r1.1liw r.llL' ' 1111 a 

p..1 111 ..:ul.11 c.1lcnJ,1r , ·..:.11 ,11 c Llctcrmmcd h, 

1m p1,•,c11ic111,c,1lc, (m .. d c, .. inJ knwlc, ) 11, 

.1II 111 1hc,i; t..1hlc, 
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T he fo l lowing are actui1n;:!I assumpuons for th~ Un1versuy · !-i prior yc:H 

Val UJIIOn d11te • Pens1u11 

Va lua11onda1e - OPEH 
1\rn1.1rial c u.:i l mc: 1ho1.l 

C'os1 of livrn l! 
Salilry 1r1C1eas.c::s , 111clud111g 

111fl:i 11 0 11 

l11lta11on 

Im i.:~ 11ncnt ratt uf 
re turn - Pension 

ln,•es1mcnt rate of 
1eturn - OPES 

Health cart cos1 Uend J ,tl~!!!-

Exoenence srudv date 
Mon ali ty ba 1 

STRS Oluo 

l::ntr\' a ~c 11urmal 

Num: 

7 Ot>° o. llt'I uf I IIVCSllm:nl cxpcnsl' 

incl ud111L! tn11ath.m 

7 llf)V • · 111:1 uf Im estrn~nt 1::'\;pcnsc 

OPE~ 
l.x:ccmbt::r 31 . 20}~ 

l"kccmbt.·1 31 . "2U~ I 
lnd1,1dwl l"J1lrV:tL!l' 

~75 11 o-lU7S0 o 

h 'H>° u. net o t rn, L':Hm1.:nt L'\p,n~c 

tncludt ni.t 1nll ;1 11 011 

b OlJ11 o net of rn,·c.~uncnt t.·.,pcn~c 

1ncludrn~ mtlauon 1nclud1 rH! 1nfliua,n 

Period of5 veaJS ended June jU 20.21 

Po,1-l<tnren1cn1 Pub-20 IO Tcacht:1:, 

f !i:a\ thv ;\nm11tan1 Mortal11y Table 
ad1us1ed I 10'"• for maks, proJ ec1c-cl 

l're•rcllrcmcnl mortal lly ra tr:s a11: ba!li::d on 
1111'11 of the Pub-2010 G~ncral Emplm·c~ 

~lt,11:tlity rnhle~ 1111:il c.-. anti frma lc I fc)r 

for ward genC1i!h011al ly us ing monal11y Sw1c :md Luca\ ( im crnml'nl th\ 1!l.1uns and 
Impw\·cmcm scale t\ lP-2020 Pre• 110.;111 or the Puh-:!UIO S:ifetv Employee 
Rc11n.:·mcm Pub-20 JO Tc-achc- r.._ En1p lo vcc l\ llln!\l11v rnhles I males and l'c-n1alc~) lbr the 

lAblc 11 d1m1cd '15°, fo r femal e~. pro1cctct! Public Safety and Lm EnlOrccmcnt 
fo1wa1d !,'<ncnu011allv using nx1na l1 t\' 

11npw, cmcnt scale ~IP-2020 r•os1-
Rcu remcnt D1:i.abled Puh-::!010 Teacher, 
D,,,.abkd Annum.Ill Table 11m1cc1t"d 

lforn!lrd ~'l!'ttt:ntttmalh.- u:, 111g 1110r1al ll\ 

11np10V\."IIICIII ,calc ~ 1r.::tt::! {J 

6 1 

d1, 1,~1uns Pos1-renr c111~ m mo r1al11v 1ah:;,i 

a.re based on 11511 0 of1he PubG-2010 
Rcu,cc Monatm l".1btc.; I male;:s. ,1od 

fom.tle~) for nil tll\ 1s1un) Po .. t-rcuu:mc!II 

11,,.11ll!11N 111tc:!io 1lv J1sabkd rct11c t.: \ a1c 

h11 wd on 1hc Pub~S-:WI0 Disabled Reur t.:e 
~hmal11v Tahlc~qm:sl c.::s dnd fcmalL", ) for .tll 

J1\1~tU11S F01 all ut'Lht.: p:c, u>ttih 

dc,c11b~d l:lbles 1hc b.a.st· vt:ar 1, :!UHi and 
11 :4.mal 11 • rates lo1 a pan1cular calcmfa 1 ,c;11 
illl' dctcrnuncd bv applying the Ml'-:!O::W 
murnil 11y 111,prnv1:11ic111 scaks I male-) am.J 
l~malcs ) to :ill ul'thesc tables 

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
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FOR THE YEARS E NDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

Pension l>i>coun1 l~nlc 
T he pw1cc11on or cash tlu,, ~ u~i.:d to dc.l t.: rrrn nc the d iscount ra1c assumed lhat employee 
1.:ontnbut1nm, will bl! madi: UI thl! current comnbu11on rate: ,md that employer corHnbut1ons will bt: 
ma,Jc ai coniractuall) required rn1c, for a ll plans Based on lhosc assumptions, eac h pensmn plan ·, 
tidrn.: 1ary net posI11on was proJeclcd to be a, a1 lablc to make all proJt.:ctcd f"u1urc bcncnt pt1ymen1s for 
current :1cll\1C and lniltt1vc cmployl!cs Therefore, the long-term expected rate. or return on pe!11.smn 

pl an 11Hes1mcn1s was applied 10 a ll periods n f pro;cc1cd l:,cncfi1 payments 10 dc1enm ne the 1ma l 
pcmmm lmhll ny f"hl! J1scount ta lc u~ctl to 1m.:a su r1..· the total pens ton lmb1 hty for STJ{S 0 1110 wa s 

7 00° o fo1 both the plun year!,. ended June JO. :!0~3 anJ 2022 T he.; <l 1scount rnte usc<l 10 mea~urc the 
total pcns1un liabilit) for Ul' l: l<S ""' <, 'Jil"o fu r huth the plan vcars ended December JI . 2023 and 
102}, rcspt!l'll\ cl~ 

Ol'EB l)i~co un1 !fate 
The pro1ec11011 of ca.sh 11,m used tu dctcrmrnc the d1 coun1 ra te assumed th:11 employee 
i;on tnhution, "d i hr: made at the current contribution ra te: and that ...:mploycr contnbut1ons will b~ 
made :11 eun1r:1c1ualh ,.::quired Jille, fo1 all plans Plans 1ha1 proJecl fiduciary ncl pos11 1on 10 be 
1m,ufficu.:111 tn mal..c a.II proJL!'Ct~d future benefi t payments for cu rrcnl ucu,1.: and ln i1c 11 vc. employees 
usell a blended discount rm\! bc1,,ccn lhc long-term expected ratt! of return on plan 11wcst111cn1s and 
:, 20-ycar m11n1c1p:1I bond ra1c applied 10 a ll peno<l, ofpmJcc1cd bcnef11 paymcnl, 10 dc tcrmrne 1he 
total OPl'Ll lwb1l11y/(asse1 I 

. • /1•.'.\" Uhu, U/'AH n,.n . .:ow11 Uurc - T hL: d1s1.:uunt rates used to m easure tht:: tota l OPEB assd was 

7 011"., fot 1hc plan years ended J,111e 30. _023 and 2012 Al June 30. 2023 and 2022. 1he plan 's 
fid ucial) lll!'t pos1 t1on was pro_1cc1cd to be avi11lablc to make all pro;cctcd future bcndit payments for 
current actl\ c and 111acll\'C emplo~ ees Therefore, the long-tcnn expected r:11c or rc1urn on OPEB 
plan 1111 estmcnts wa applied 10 all pc nods of proj ected bendit payments 10 dctenmne the iota! 
OPEB ILSSCt 

( Jl'J-.'I<. • ()/'I,// 01., w11111 //111~ • T he d1~cou111 rate used to measure the total Ol'EB l1 ab1h ties/(assetSJ 
w:cs 5 70°n und '22°. tor 1hc pl:111 years ended December 3 1. 2023 and 2022, re.pect1vely At 
Dc<·ember 31 , 2023 . the plan ·s fidue liH'Y ne1 pos1t1on was pro.1ccted 10 become 1ns uflic1cn110 make 
all pruJcctcd fuhm: benefit pay ments for current ac ti ve and m:.ic11 c ~mployccs Therefore. a bkn<lcd 
rate wa used. which cuns1s1cd or the long•tc.rm cxpccti.:d rah.: of rctllm on OPl~l3 phrn 111 vestmcnts 
16 OO" ul firr lhc funded be nelil pay ments and F1dc l11 y Index' s 20-Year Mu 11 1c,pal GO AA Index of 
3 77° 0 ~s or December 3 1. 2023 At December 31 , 2021. the pla n' s liduci;:t ry net pnsnion was 
p101cc1cd lO hct:omc 111:, td'f11.:1cn110 make ~,I I proJl!Ch.:d fut ure benefit payments for current acu vc and 
1na...-11 vr.: employee· ThcrdOr\!. ,1 blcn<lcd rn tc was usl!d. which cons isted of 1hc. lon~-tcnn i.:xJll,.!clcd 
rate 1,f rc1urn un (.lllEB pbn 111,cs 1mc111 (6 IJIJ',u) for the funded bc11c li1 pay menls and 1'1dcl 1t) 
Incle,, 20-Y.,ar M u111c1p;,J (;() AA lndc, of 4 05° 0 as of December 31, 2022 

The lon:Hcrm c.xpcctcJ rate ofn.:111111 tm pcns10n phm and OPEB plttn investments were determi ned 
us111g a b111 ld111g-block method 111 \\h1ch bcs1-cs111m11c rnng~s of ~~p.:cted future ,~al rn1e, of re1um 
fc~pc:ctcd n.:tur·n"i . nt:t nf plan 1nvc~1mc 111 cxr~nsc and 111fla110n) ar\! devdopi.:d for c..ich maJor asset 
class T hc:-ic nmgl:'s arc t:omhmcd to produce 1hc long•tcrm cxpcc t~d rat e ul° rewrn by wl!1ghtmg 1hc: 
expcc h!d future real I ates of n.:1ur11 hy the targl.!t asset .illocn111111 pcn . .:cntagl.' il!HJ hv adding l!xpec t~d 
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innauon OP ER. has two d11Tcrcnt pon fo l1os , ,f rnves tmcnl, a defined benefi t ponfol10 for pension 
and health care p<in rol! o for OPEB /1.s a result , there a rc d1ffc rcnl ta rget a llnca1rnns and long-1cnn 
cxpec1cd real rmcs or re turn d isclosed fo r each punfnh o T he targc1 alloca11011 and besi estimates of 
arithmetic (gcomclnc for STRS Ohio) real ra tes of' rel um ror each 111a1or asset c lass arc sum man zed 
in the foll owmg rnhlc as of the dales listed below. 

STR Olia) :i,1t of(JJ(.1/23 

l~·csun:rt 
C:nc~r, 

Dom.:sLC UIW:\ 

l1ci:nuti'l1\1I &tu•~ 

Ak.:rmtJ\ i.:, 

F1'4i.l l n::ouc 
k ~IEsL1. I,,,.· 

Ltj1i.d.h Rcil'ru.:~ 

Touls 

t.01e-Tcrm. 
'r,""1 f.-.;,.-.:1.--d Rcol 

Alk>cili:,r. R.ltc ofRctum 
!t, I)•• h 1,11"' . 

!2 t~ .. I, KIi'" .. 

l'J lt'". 7 :i ii"" .. 

, w. 

STRSOh,o 3sor <ir.;o _2 

1n\•CS\ m cnt 

Cn1c1;,"0ry 

Dom cst 1c Et~ut~ 

ln1crn al1() 11 :il Eqrnl\ 

Al! crn :11 1\ c ~ 

f 1,;,.-J l nCOIIIL' 

Real E~t .:a1 c 

Ln11..11J 11~ kL·~n ;,.•, 

1,..on.i;•Tcrm 

T aq,.'(; t E,pcctcd Real 

llocnt ion R:it c of Ret ut u 

:?I, o• .. 
:?1 11• . 
l'J II"., 

12 11•. 

I ll 11". 

! u•. 

IOII 11•. 

h l,fl "'R 

I , )Cll" R 

' 3>C" .. 
I 7 , .. " 
' ,, .. .. 
1 uu· .. 

Jr11,cs1n1:t1 

c ... ;,,~ 
F~J lrcu111: 
r>o,n;~u:: F11uu ~, 

R!-::il l.:sui: 

l'm;111: l.:t11111, 
li l.: 11Utl1ml l::.C~u,, 

Kr.I- l'1u1, 
kEJT, 
O llc1 h M·~n ~1h 

ln\•C,slmcnt 

:it cg<i r) 

fl\. cd Income 
Dnm c,1 ,c fap.111 u.:s 

Rc:il t s, .,,~· 
1' 11 \ .1\i:" l ; qllll \ 

l11 1c111.:it11111 :d f.c,.tu, 

kt\l. P :ml\ 

RHr, 
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OPERS:csor l2/3 1f23 

Pe,r;on ronx>to 
Wll:-Ttm, 

T11r»,-; .:.\pte1,ed Rul 
~tl.)n lute ofk.ctln! 

2 ◄ 1r. ~ Ki",. 

21 II"'.. -I :!i"' . 
1"' II~~ -I ◄f,• ,. 

,; w~ 
11 11° .. 

:,1,. ,. 

iu111r- . 

OP ERS :u of l l/3 11.?2 

Pc11S1on Port foho 

!lcalhC= Poni>lo 
l.o'le"Tt'nn 

i:u~I c.,-pxicd Rta.l 
Albou:>n 1bu: of Rttt111 

li 11'.. :! I(:!•. 

:!5 ,,.... ~ :!i" .. 
n tl"l .. oouo;, . 

~Ir .. 
lilHU"'. 

◄ .)X" ., 

1-lcahh Ca.re Portfolio 
Long•Tl."rm Lon!,. .. Term 

T .1.q,,,:1 C({H:c1ed Rc11 I T .1r~t expected Rc:,I 
A ltoc:m on R:uc of Rcrnrn ,\ ltoc1mo11 R.:uc of Return 

22 U'! 'M 

n:oM .. 
11 o•·., 
15 o· .. 

21 o- .. 
! "" • 
111 1". 

7iiiiir::-

.i(,11",, 

.; :?7Q .. 

7 ~1 ",. 

'ii'-! "". 

,1- . 
II 011" ;, 

:?h (t" • 

()(lo;., 

:?~ Cl" ., 

:?: u- . 
,, o~ . 
7 o•. 

:?. 5(," .. 
-i r,u• .. 
11 uo•. 
~ 'i 1· . 

J •r· .. 
I l(..a• . 

~ 711"• 

U Uil" ., 

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL SfATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

Se11 ,titidt }' ofrl,e 11e r (J t!ll.fio1t lillbilitr to c h a nge..\' in th e disc n unt rate 

T he fol111\\mg presents the nc1 pe nsion liah1hty or the U111vcrsi1y. calculated usmg the u1sc11unt rate 
lis ted below. as wdl as wh411 the Umvcrs,ty" • net pcnSHJll lmhil1ty would he 11· tt were ca lculated 
u s 11111 a disco unt rate that 1s I 00°1<, lower or I .00°1, lu ghi.:r than the current rate 

Plan 
STRS Oh,o 
Ol'ERS 

Plan 
TRS Ohio 

0 1•ERS 

1, . Dec1case 
11 t)OO • k0.50.' 

,~. Decrease 
& 110". S k7k7' 
5 1>(1• .. ___ 10_. _.,,_,1_ 

192.53(, 

2024 (S 111 thous:unls) 
Curren1 l) tSt ount lute 
H>O" • ~1 , ; I 
o 1>t~. ___ 1_•1~,0_1_1 

111 ,• 0k 

202' (S a, 1housands) 
Curr~nt Dtseount Rnm 
7 008 • ~ 'K 170 

1% lncn:aSII! 
M 00" • 2K .li .11 
1 90-,. ;o ::! :?'• 

,1; 7tH 

J•t. Increase 
IS O<ta ~ )': o.;;o 

.\'e11siri,•itF of the uet OPEB lifl b ilil) ·l(tt!iSt!t) ro changes in the discount rate 
The follow111g presents the 11c1 Ol'El3 liab1l11y/(assct) of1he U111vcrs11y . calculated us tng the d1scou111 
ra1e lts1ed bclo\\ . as well as what the Um"ers ,t~' S net O l'EB l1ah1li1y/(assc1 ) \\ Oul d he ,r ll were 
calculated us ing a discount rate that 1s 1 00°0 )0\\Cr or I 009 c, higher than the currc.:m rate 

PL'III 
STRS OhlO 
OPERS 

Plan 
STKS Oh., 

Ol'ERS 

(I 00°.. (.f,()02) 

-t 70~u ----'l'-. '-'11-'4-
(Z MXX) 

I~. Decrease 
ooo•. s ,,,_1t>·O 
-121• , ____ ,_,x_x_ 

{ 117b) 

Z02,I (S m thousands) 
Currem D~coun1 H.n1e 
7 00"'• S <• 72 K) 

20~ (S in 1hoosand l 
Cum111 0154:oun1 Rate 
700°. s 1077t1) 

(,.j 

1% Jnc:rcasc:-
8 OOiJ o (5 ;Ill ) 

() 70° g --~(-•I _(12_8~) 

('i.')Jollll 

1,. Increase 
8 00° .. ( 7 21-11 
012• . (1 -1111 

(:-< 11"'' 
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Se11.<itil'il l' 11(1!, e 11et OP£ 8 lirtbilio'/(as..-er) IU clu111,:es ill rite heulrh nm: i-ns1 lrt!lld r//le 
The follow111 g presents the net Ol' EB l1ab1l 11yl(assc1) or the Un1w rs 11y, calculated using the 
lu:ahhcarl! cost trend rah: l1stt:d bt! IO\\' , as well ,1s ,vhal the Umvc rsny"s nc l O l 1EB l1i1b1l 1ty/(assc1 I 
would be 1f1 1 wl!rc calculated using a health care cost trend rat..: 1h~H l.'i I oouu lmvt.:1 or I 00°11 h1ghc1 
than th r.: curre nt rah.'. 

2024 (Sin 1hou,:,nd ·J 
Pllln l%D«rca.sc Curren1 Trend Rall! IGI. Jncn:-~ 
Sl RS Oh., (> N U) s « 1:s1 n ,,;1} 

Cll'EKS (1.111! p u~7l i i 11.il) 

t7.l01! iu.7'-';! i 5 802 ) 

2023 (S in thousands) 
PIRll 1% Decreas~ Current Trend Rat~ 1% 111Cf1!3$C 

STRS Ohm 1) ,018) (b, 776} ( (1 .1.:;71 

Ol'~RS l. ]7-1 1.4M I ifJIJ 

! I.bl ➔) ~5. J I ll (-1888) 

Pe11sio11 p/1111 mul Ol'EB pln11 fidu ciarr ll f!t position 
Detailed mfo nnauon about the pension pl an ' s fiduciary net po, t1ton 1s ava,lnhlc in the separaldy 
iss ued STRS Ohio and Ol'ERS financial rcpon 

Assumption clwnge.r 
During Lhe 1m:asurcmcnt pi:nods ended Jun~ 30. 2023 and December 3 I , :.W:?3 . re pccttvcly. certa in 
ass umpti on changes were madl.· b. thi.: plans STRS Oh10 hea lthcare trends were updated , wh ich 
impacted the annual actu:mal va lum1on for OPEB prepared as of .l une 30, }023 The O PERS OPEB 
d1 count rn tc 111crl!asc.:d from 5 22°u lo 5 70°'o, which 1mpacll.:d tht! annunl actuarml valuati on for 
OPEB prepared ns of December JI }1)2' 

Be11efit clumge.,· 
There were no s1gniricnnt be ne fi t te rms changes for the pen.sum or OPEB plnn(s) stncc ihe prior 11\ o 
measurement dates for OPE RS Effccuve fo r 2024. STRS Ohio 1mple111ented a one-time I% cost of 
liv ing adj ustment effecti ve on the a11111 vcrsa.ry of a bend i ts rcc1p1cnt ' .:, rc11 rcmcnt date for those 
eligib le d uring lisca l year ]024 and a plan change to pru vidc unreduced rc111cmc n1 benefits 10 those 
wt1 h 34 vears o f serv ice, winch extends through lisca l year 2028 i\dd111 011ally. STRS O hio OPEA 
changci thc subsidy percentage and the base amount fo r all rcurcc Non -Med icare El1g1hlc (NMEJ 
pan1 c1panls, from :t~0'o per year in last v.,;,1r s va luati on 10 ~ 5u ci per vcar, capped nt 75° o. a. " ell as 
the un li-cc1.111g o f the ME subs1d) , the remova l oft he 6° 0 cap l'll the year over ) ca r subsidy 111crca c 
for Mcchc:11 c Eltg1 hlc tME ) pa ru c1 pams . the changes ,n dcducllblc and uff,cc v1. 11s copay: fo r 
i\etna ·s Mcd1cnrc i\d vantagc plan. and updates m the medical and PBM vendor contra ts 

Clumges since the IIU!t1Sure111e11t tlute 

There were no s1gnilicant changes srncc 1he measuremi.:nt dat~ 
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/'111·11 h/1• 111 rite l'emio11 P/1111s am/ 0 1,t:B P/1111 .< 
The Un11ws ll) rcponcd a pa) ahl ' of S 1,6-10.334 and S 1,4 95.()61) for the ou1swnd1n1, amount o f 
co 111 nh111111ns tu 1hc STRS Oh111 and OPERS pension plans and Ol' EB plans req uired for the years 
cndi.:d Jun~ JO. 2014 and .lune JO 2023. rcspcct1 vdy 

/J l'(i11ed C1111trih11tim1 l 'e11.,·io11 P/m1 
n,c 1\herna111c Rcttrcmenl Pl an (ARP)" a dclincd con tnb u11 011 pension pla n, under IRS S<:c ltun 

40 1( ;,), and established hv Ohio Amended Subs111utc House U,11 - 86 (ORC 3305 02) on March 31 . 
l'l'IX . lor pubhc 1nsrnu11on, o f l11ghc1 education ·11,c Un11crSll)' S Boa,d of Trustees adopted the 
llm\crsny s plan on Dcccmhc1 11. 19<J~ Full-tune employee, arc d 1g1blc 10 choose a prov ider m 
ltcu of "TRS Ohio or Ol'FRS, from th · IISI of nmc pro, 1ders cu rrent ly apprnvcd by the Ohio 
Dcpanmi:nt of Insurance uml \\ho IH'ld agrc.:.cmcnts w11 h the U111\-crs11y Employel! and cmplo ·er 
con1 ributt0ns equal to those req 111 rcd by STRS Uh10 and Ol'ERS arc required fo r the /\ RI'. less any 
unHHtnts requ ired 10 he rcm1 11cd 10 the .st ate n.: tm.:111cn1 system Ill wl11ch the cmployct: would 
ot l11:1\\ISt.'. haH! b1:cn enrolled 

Ellg1blc employees h:1, c 110 davs from their date of hire 10 make an 1rrcvoc.:.:ihlt.! l!k:ctrnn 10 

pantctpatc 111 the ARP Li nder 1h1 plan, employees who \\Ould have othcrm sc been required to he 
111 s ·1 RS Oh,o or ()PERS. and who ekct 10 parnc1patc 111 the /\Rf' . must contrthute the c111plc1)ce s 
, hurc of rcurcment contnbu110ns to one of nine pnvatc providers appru, cd by the Oht0 Dcpan ment 
of Insurance The lcg1s la1 1on mandatl!S that the cmplnvcr mu.st contr tbut.: un am ount to the stal l.! 

n.:11 rcmcnt system to \\ h1ch the employee would have othcrw1si; hclong~d. based on an rndepcndcm 
actuari al stud comm1ss1C1ncd hv the Ohio Rc11 remen1 Study Council and suh111111cd to the Ohio 
Dcpanmcnt Roard of Regent;; l' or STRS Ohw. that 111t1tlL11tl 1s 2 91"• for the •ca rs ended June 30. 
2024 and 20~3 For OPERS !hat ,mmunl ts 2.24°0 fo r the ca rs ended June 30. 2014 and 2023 If 
the cmplovce 11a lured nn or urtcr August 2005 . the employer cont ributes 6.00"•• The cmployc, 
also contnbutc what 11ould have been the employer' s contrtbu ttnn under S'l'RS Ohio or PERS, 
less 1hc aforc111cn11oncd pl!rtcntagc~. to the pnvat-: provu.h:r sdc.:ctcd b) tht: l!mployei: The 
U1111 crsny plan provide, these cm pl OJ ccs \ I 1th 11nmcd1a1c plan, c tmg The ARI' dl,C> not provide 
disab1lt1v benelits, ur\ t\ or hcncfn . or postre11rcmcn1 health care Bcnclits arc cmircly dependent 
on thl" ~um of conmbut1un~ ,rnd investment returns eamc-d by each pan1c1pan1 · s choice of 1nves1mcn1 
upuon, STRS Oh 111 and O l'ERS also oiler a defined con1r1hu11on pla n and a combined plan wi th 
li:111 ure of both a defi ned con1ri hu11o n plan and a defined hcncf11 plan For the year ended June JO. 
2024 and 2023 , cmplo •cc contrth111111ns to taled 1, 188, 'l2 and 1.298.()~5 . and the Un1vcrst1y 
rccogmzcd pension expense nf S 1. 120,024 and S 1.208 .59-1 , 1c:,pcc11vcly 

Note 1-l - Cont ingencies anti Jti~li. i\ l anag.cm cn l 

D11nng fiscal ye.Ir 20 18 the lJ1111crs11y formed a 19-mcmbcr R,s~ Council that c,tahltshed a R1s~ 
Mrinilgcmcnt Program that pro, 1dc, a forum and procc."iS to strntcgu.:ally 1dt: n11I \ r1s~~ thnt arc o f 
u1111 os1 nnpona ncc and dt::\dOps c,,ordmat~d and holt lie m111ga1ton plans that appruprtatdy 
addresses chose nsks The 11111 lcmentnuon of Emcrprtsc R 1sk Management prov ides the framc wC1rk 
to pmac11 vcly and con11 nuour.;I~ mnnagl! nsks in a manm:r consistent with the U111 vcrs1ty s 1n1 ss1on, 
goa ls, and cul ture 
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The University 1s a dc.lCndam in vanous lawsuns 11 1 the opinion of Uruvcrs11y managcmclll that 
disposi11on of pend mg liugation will not have a mall:rial ad\'t rsc effect on 1hc linanc1.al ·tatcmi;nts 
of the Umvcrs11y The Umvcrslly r~cc1vcs granls and contracts from ct:natn ICdcrnl . sta te. and 101.:al 
ag L:nC1t!s to fund n.:scarch nnd other ;.1c tt \'ll Ics The costs. both direct amJ im.l ircct. thi.11 have b..:cn 
char~cu It'> 1hc gr:1111 s or con1rac1s arc suhJCCl IO cxam1t1:111on J nd appr(IVal h)' 1hc gra m mg agency. h 
1s: tht: op111wn of the l Jn1 vcrs11y ·s a<l 1nims1rat1on tlu.it ~my d1sallowam:c or aUj usrnu::nt of such costs 
would not have a m.1h:tr;11 i.:ffcc:t on lhc fi11 :111c.:1al s1ati.:mcn1 s 

The Univers11_ 1s sclf- ,nsu rcd for all 111cd1c:il a11J drug employee health c:ire benefits :ind fulls 
insun.:d for di.!ntal am.I v1 .. 111n cmpJoyci..: hcalth c.:an: bcni:fits The sclt~m ·urcd plan mclmks Slop loss 
provisions 

L1al»li11c, for cs111nmcs or oulStandmg clu11ns and cl a11ns incurred hul not reponcJ under scll'­
msurancc programs have been recorded . Changes i n the sclf-msurcd heallh care habilitics included 
in accrued heallh care bendi ls payabk (al so sec Nole 8) al .J une 30 were ;is fn llo\\'s 

L1ab1l 11y 111 bcgi m1rn~ of fi -..cal \ ' L" .it 

Cunent ycaT cl :1111r,. 1ncluch ng ch.1ngcs 1ne-.11m1h:-. 

Cla1 m pav,rcnts 
Lialn lit :, 1 end nffo;c;,I '\·cm 

2024 

s I .tJO<.. I.JO 

is .1:n_(l'J$ 

I ~ <i .H.~ :! .l'l:?. I I 

1.5,10. 147 

2023 2022 
s l ,h 'q _N'1;: s I 7~'1 .h67 

lo.:?74 , 1.18 1'4 4q ,6"0 

t lh.J:l .0701 ( IIJ.C,::{1.•l .551 

s 1.605, 1-W s 1,653.XCi~ 

Health msurancc chums urc bascd upon cs11matcs of 1hc claim. liah1! 11 1cs E. tm1atc -; arc basi:d upon 
past ..:xpcncncc, medical rnfb?wn lrcnds. ~rnd current claims. outsli.lnd tng, mcludmg year i.: nd lag 
analysis DlfTc rL.'.:nci.:s between lhc. csl1matcd claims payable and .actual ch.111T'IS pau.J ari.: rcponcd ln 
the Statements of Ri.:vcnui.!s. E.\_; pc-nscs. and Changes in ct Pos111011 

The U111 vcrs 1ty 1(,; exposed to vari ous ri ~ks ofloss rclil lcd to ions. thdi of, damage to. :md dc-s1ruct1on 
of assets, errors and on11ss10ns: inJ uncs to cmplt)ycc-s. and na tural d1. rL°'tc r Thi: Unin;rsny h;1s 
Joined wnh other state-assisted univcrs1t1c~ m Oh1(1 to form an insurance pool for tht: acqu1si1ion of 
commerc,al properly and casualty insurance The Umvcrsuy pays annual premiums 10 the pool for 
i ts propcny rind casualty msurance covcra_gc based on ,ts perccnta~c of !he lotitl in .surancc v~1luc to 
the pool. f u1urc con1rtbu1ions will be ad1uslcd based upon each umvcrsuy·s loss lusmry. The 
Umvcrsity had no slgndicnnt reductions in coverage from the prior yc.:lr l nsurnm:c scnlernenls havi: 
not c;-;: ccct.h.:d 111s1mmcc coverage for ci1ch o f the past three fi scal years 

The Unlvcr ·11y pa rt u:ipatc$ in ;1 State pool or agencies ;ind un ivcrsn1cs that pays workers· 
compcnsa11on prcmmms mto the State lnsurn ncc Fund on a pay-as-you-go basis ( the Plan). wl11ch 
pays ,vorkcr-' • i.:ompc nsation bcncfi ls to hcndic1arics who have hc l!n inJ urcd on th e: Job Losses from 
asser1cd nnd unasscrtcd clrums for the: panic1 paung state agencies am.I m11vc1 s1t it!S in thi.: Plan arc 
accrued by 1hc Ohio flurcau of Wurkcrs ' Compensalton (lhe Bureau) based on es11 ma1es 1ha1 
Incorporate the past cxpcric-ncc. as we ll as olht:r considcra1ions inc-luding the na1urc of each tla 11n 
ur 11H.:1 tkn t ;ind n: h;vant 1rcnd lac1ors. Pur1u;1pa 111s m the Pl:::rn annunllv fund tht: workers· 
compcnsali(ln ltahihly based on ra1cs sci hy lhc Bureau ltl collect 1hc cash ·necJcd in s11hseque111 
fiscal yt.:ars tn pay the workers · compe11.1ia t1on d n11ns of pa rt1 C1patmg State .'.lgcnc1cs and univcrsi tu.:s 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL SrATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

Noll' IS Component l lnit 

Ymrngslo\\'n State Uni vcr!- tty Foundat1011 1s a kga ll y 'ii:parate nonprotit orga 1112a11ot1 e'l:cmpl from 
lcdcral ll1CO l11C tax and classi licd as a puhhc charity vsur 15 devoted to 1he support, expansion. 
anJ dcvclupnlCnt of cducal irm:il pn)grams ,11 Jhc U111 ers ,1y Iha! arc l1Sc 1'11l Ill lhc Sluucnl anJ 
hcnclii.:1al to th1.: Umvc rslly crn111m1ntlV. l.'.kcause lh~sc rcs1 nc11.:U rcsuurc~.s hdd bv the Fou11dation 
cun on!~• be u.sed by. or fo; the hcntlit .ofthe Umvcrsuy . tht: Foundtu ion 1s cons1d~rcd a ,.:nmpum:nt 
unit of the U111vc-rs11y 

YSUF 1s a nonprofit organ1za11un that rcpor1s un<l~r FASB standarW A. such. cenain rc\'cnul': 
rccog1111tun cr11cni.1 and prcscn1at1011 features arc d1ffen.=nt from GJ\SB rC\/CllllC rccogniuon crnena 
and prestnta11on features W11 h the t:xccp t1 on of ncccssa~ pri::scnta tmn adJuSt1m.:11ts. no 
modific:1t1ons have ht.:cn mad~ 10 YSUF "s fi nancial 111format1on 111 the U 111 vcrs1ty ' s f111:inc1al n.:purt 
for lht.:sl'. diffcn::ru:cs 

The follow111g tahks present mformatmn ilbo ut the Fmmdation ' :,; .is~ct.s mc:a:mrcU at fa ir va lut.: on ii 

rcc;urrmg basi s at June 30. 2024 and ~0~3 ,ind the valuutrnn techniques used by the F ound:111011 10 

dch.:rmtnc those fair values· 

lnn:MIIICllb 

t°!t~h a mt cash cqu1V;lh:111 ~ 

Commcrn £lock • l I S smcki. 

Commun ~lock - 1011-l I S :1h•d;, 
l\ tum:il iimds 

-"lch.,nge traded 
r..lorll..")'ma.rkcl 

F1-ccd income 
Equll)' 

T tual IIJU!tL."tl fund:-. 

J\ ltc111:1ti vc 10\ cstmc m'i 

Pnva1c t'(lu1ty 

Ct11nml1d1 \Jc ~ hedge fond !i 

·1·111:al al1r.: rna1 1 \'(' Ill\ C.\ ll llCIII !> 

TotJl 

lnvc:mn,.·nt.s measured ll NAV • 
I fcdt~ fund s 

T,11al a,'!cb 

Assets Mrnured alfa1r V.1lue on a Recumng. Bas,s al Jull(' J O. 2024 
Quoted Prices ,n Sigm fi cant O1hcr Sigfllticaru 

,\ctJve rn.lrkcts for Observable Unobscrvitblc. 
ldentiCll Asseu Inputs lnpLIIS l)alnnce at 

(l.evd I) (Level 2) (Level 3) June JO, 2024 

·105.'°lK 

10-1 .377, l ➔ H 

8. 7l iJ ,>th-l 

&J . ..121 . 02 

14.-1.15 ,037 

Ji . 120O-UJ 
-1&.876, 799 

IJ 7,R5J.J 78 

'S 2'il_JS0.1J28 

68 

S j-1 017.f,J(,C) 

18 .hl.J ,'1"0 

l .~•W.X~O 

-IO 'i,5JX 
tll•l .177. t -l R 

K 7 1-1 ~6 .J 

o] .-t :! I. <. tJ:? 

l ,l ,..l)5 ,0J 7 

.,1 111 toq 
-16 R76 79 1l 

171 ~711.-147 

IH,h.lJ .C,~O 

1.2-IOJ(~U 

Jl) M7-l .5<JIJ 



YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 ANO 2023 

Assets fvlcasurcd at Fair Value on a Recurnnu. B::ms nt June 30. 2021 

/1wcs1mcnt:. 

Cash and cas h cqlu val cnb. 

(\ munon ~lock - lJ S stud.,\ 

Common s1od . - :-.ion-US s1od. , 
r-.. hnual fund s 

E.xch.tngc traded 

~1oncy market 

F1,.cd income 

Equm 
T Ota! mutual funds 

.,.\l1erna11, e 111vcslmc nts 

1•n \ ale cqui ty 

Cmnmod1u cs hedge funds 
Tmal al1erna11,c 111,c)t1nc1tl ) 

TotJI 

lmesunents measured at 't\ \ · 

Hed£t' fonch 

Q-JOttd Prices in Signiricant Other Significant 
Acllve markets for Ol.,scrvablc Unobservable 

ldc,"ical As ets lnpu1s Inputs Balance ai 

(Lc\'CI I) (Lc\'el 2) (Level 3) June 30, 2023 

J 15,034 

Kl.537 on 
5_3 ,1,1 850 

44,2• 7.JJO 
7.067 792 

12.8:? l ,6:?~ 

41.149.708 
105.286,40,l 

l9:?AKJ.420 

J1 5bS 771 

1)5() 77.1 

S ]) fo 771 

37,:?02,X:? I 
I 215 761 

S JPl8.l82 

J 15 UJ-1 

Xlll7072 

l . 144.850 

,l,l 247 .l41J 

7.0b7 71): 

Jb ~87 \QJ 

41 . IJQ_7US 

I 1X 852 237 

!7 202 ,821 
1,215,761 

1 otal asseli J 10 7-U 903 

Net assets without donor rc.:stricuons at June 30. 2024 and 202" consist of the following 

Currc:nl opc1 <1 h01t, 

A1no urus 1.:0 11l1 1ll lh:d lU l hc U 1U\Cl!i l!V to bt: dt.shur=,cJ 

Total net a~set!. \\ 1tho111 dono1 re:i.1uct1uns 

c,g 

:?024 
"!i \6'"i .X07 _59'"i 

h.613575 
S 11:.,121 . 110 

20:?J 
S I S7. SOS,772 

6.18U7S 
~ 16)8<)()1).17 

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

i.:t assi.:h ,, 1th donPr rc~1m.:11 011,!\ a of Jun!.! 30 :uc tt\t11labh.: for the followmg purposc.!s 

SubJt'l"l lll !he h1111iJ,m1,,f, ~pl•ndmg pollcv and iJJ-JjH Op11:\llun . 

lnvt:Stn~111.s 111 pc, pctuit\' r11k:lt1d111gun!!1nal g ill 11 11lt1w11 t1!' 

~130.t.'4-l ,lJJO 11 nli I ::!•l .:!•i•t ,,i11J , ;1:. ~,r' June 10, 101-l ,md 20:?J 

l!.!:-.pccu,d, ). \\h1ch. rntcc i1pp1upr1,11cd. 1s c,pc11dablc IO suppun 

\J rl lllb Jl.'.'11\lll\!) 

SubJcCI to .1 ppr t1p11.111tm :inJ ~•,rk'1kim.nc, ,,t.:n .1 :=i11e 11icd c, cm 
occurs 

Fwl<b 3\Jtbhlc to 1l"i,l)l lhc l 1\l\l'1~11, •~ Dcpartmcnl ufPtuh1),1pln 

:md Rcl1go~ ·1l1..hc, m 1hc ..,,hobrh )lud\' ofrchgiun.111stm) 
:.ind culltuc 

Funds ,t\,ulohl..- to ,1!'1,"I 11~ I :111H:rs11, tn land acq111s111u1b 

Wnd 1cCC'l\l0 <l III k11t(l 

Othc1 

Suhtot,tl 

'iubJcCI m the p .. , .. .., a~'C ul tune - Plt:dft::, fl'Ct'l\ablt' lbr dlt' benefit or' 

ti~ Uru\t'foll\ for .:;cf,:-ilar~m~ ;ult.! other program~ or civ.l(I\\ 11..:nt.:i, 

:-.:c.•t .bi.c:~ \\ 1th dm)l)r 1c~u1ct1orb 

:?014 

S l 58.J I <J.M'J.1 

1.770J.tl 

720,115 

~5580 
l 533 0781 

S 174 .>0SolN 

20:?3 

I ,SU.l.57h 
51 l.015 
6·U,5u 

1J8 ! 140 1 

13 . 81.1!40 

Fmanc,al suppon from YSUF \las $10,902 . 1 IJ for the focal year ended June JU 202.J and 
S10.907,37.J for !he fiscal year ended June 30. 202J Fmanc,al suppon from YSUF has been 
commined for fiscal vcar 2025 m the amount ol"SI I ,.JK5,9r 

Complete iinancial s1a1cmcn1s for the Youngstown Slat..:: U111vi:rs1ty l-ou11da11on can be requested 
from The Youngs10 ,\11 Staie Um, e rsny Founda11011 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
REQUIRED S UPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedu le.< uf the Uni\'cr.<i ty's l'ro110r1iona1e Sh:trc of the Nc1 Pension Liahili l)' 
Plan cars Ended 201-1 lU 2023 

Urm1;r.;;1n', Um\ers1t\ 1'i Unl\ers1t\ 1s 

1uopc1mon of 1hc propom,m of d1c propun,on:il $ha1c of 

c~,lk:c 11, c STKS colkcme STRS the collcclnc pension 
Olm and Ol'ERS 0!110 ,nd Ol'ERS l1.'\h1ht\ {a11101111t ) :i~ i1 !'Lin f,ducLu~ nel 

ncl pc 11~1on lmlnlm IICI pcnSK.111 l hmc1 !l1h ', pcrccnla~>e of the llOStl lO lt flSa 

!asset)"" i\ h;1h1h1, (asscl) ~·n, 1:rcd c1 11pk ), L'. C l J111\cl SUy°S Cll\C ICd pcrr=L'nt:t1-<cof thc 
l' t:m Year pc1tc111 :ux :unoml\ p:1,1 II cmplo,ec pa,wll w1:it 11c1t!i10J\ h:ih,ht, 

St:1ce Tr-achrrs Rt:lin·mrnt Spt,:m (Sll(S Ohio) 

:?023 0 241Qlttt•·. s ) :? ,35 IJ 20 ;7(,81 •• , 118 q1• . XOIKl' o 
102:! 0 :?61670-. s 58 JMl .")6 11$ !>1J 5l!I 1)2 t2•. 7~ <lO'. 
2021 C"K 1650', .. •b 011 4-U, s 1s 1,n 561 91 .,1 t)". s1 so·. 
1010 0 H-ICi\ ·•• 7b l.i0 559 s 42 -H)J .JUl 179 53•, 1" SO', 
2019 0 12~71).1•, n 7I0.8Jo J1 l:!11 OX\ I<>& 59", 77 -10-. 

2018 0 ",2)9(,<~. s 71 671.389 -HTi ._9:;!h 111 n·. 17 ·' , •• 
2017 0]1111 56', 7K.42'J.168 4I1'f>7>7 Iii() 16' ■ 15 _;{)I', 

2016 111-11070",-, l lh.llCNH tJo s -11 5'.!I !17 280 &-1•. M18W, 

2015 01(., 12J.l'', 99 1128.9)-1 s 42 77-1 .-IS •J .?ii 3K~11o 71 10"11 

20 14 0 1M-1-I ·2~ .. s '}1..5 1:?. .061 -14Jl3) 1U 211 02~~ 7J 70', 

Ohi o l'ublic Emplu)'1·ts Hc1irrt1tt1H Sysfrm tOPEHS) 
2023 0 2:!815(11 , s 51J UH.2.' l s J-1 ,.Ul .hKK 133 17' I 79 J t)• , 

2022 o:n111.1•. h1l-H I tJJU s J2 '\17-1;,, fc,3 40', 7b 07', 
102 1 /J2\J H7', 1'1455.bl I . 101((.241) -18 .,,.,., 1n 01•, 
2010 0 223270-. 32.370.291 s 18 2-l k t,lt, 8-1 115', '7 21', 
2019 0144008', '7.K40 867 s JO SO I 178 11 7 83', s~ -i.i•. 
2018 0 25840)' , 70.477,168 s -1111 1).!17 171 40', 7! 00', 
2017 0 ~;«}4112•. -W.tt695l 40 -1-lh .!81 '}() r• • 71100". 
2016 0 ,2591,2•/· ~8. H4 5Sk ·w 5'>5 ,,,· 1-IK ><i•• KOllO'. 
~01; 0 2(11Jl1 "•, -1(, )16 739 ; 1) 71; l'IK 111 u•:. KU 00'. 
2014 0 2~-~2-IO' ,. '•Ll73.UK2 .w 7h•i ·ns 113 g;•~ M4 <lO' ', 

The plan year end~ on .lune 30 for STRS Ohio and December 31 for QPERS 
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YOUNGSTOWN ST ATE UNIVERSITY 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONT.) 

Schctlu les of1hc Universi ty 's Pension Contribu1ions 

Contnbunons a11cllt11..1n 111 

the ac tu .'.'lnalh dc1rrm1net! 

l 0 111f J l\JJ~ lctjU Uc..'ti 

F1SC:i l Yca1 con1nbu11011 co11t11b1111011 

Sta te Tt:irhrr.. Rtlil'l!Uli!III Sptt m (STRS Ohio) 

202-t ~ .i 19i ,:!70 S -1 , 19 " 170 

202.3 S 4. ''' ' · '62 -1 "9~_362 
1012 -1 7f1h ,J;7 S -L76h 7;7 

2021 -I 86" Ml~ S -I M(,5 815 

.!020 
1019 
co 1s 
2017 

2010 

.!OI" 

;,, '; IX -l°'K 

) .JIJ.$211 
; 19' 36() 

°' . 107 llP 

.:;, t .:;; _l -t!7 
'1UI J ~ti 

S ;,, 318 -1'\k 
;,, -10-1 :?I I 
s.1 11' 3{1{) 

°' 107 l>i\ 
S • 153-1'.!7 

S ; _; I ) 4lh 

Ohio Puhlir ~:mplO)t'l.'S Hclin:mcnt S)slcm (OPEkS) 
201-1 S .; :tOk ,1)(1:S S •. 808,0oX 

:w:r, , _;;1 , "" s ;.551 11,i 

202:? ,.3111 h-U s 5,.)1Jl ,h-l-1 

:?U.2 1 -1,M lli. •110 -IM163MO 
:!U::! (J i 171 m 5 171 18K 
!011) ..:. .1111, 106 i , JK1J,Mlt1 

.?UIK ,; 104 K7I i. 104871 
1UI] ,on t-H iu-n. 1-n 

20111 -IIJ').J li!I ➔ ,'11 1.J I )!I 

~015 -; l_)()-\1)70 .;, 01H 1176 

Conu 1h11t10 11 

d~ficicnn t'O \ L'll."J 

(txccss) i:mpltl\ c.e p:n mil 

s S 1J.lJ03 .lS.? I 

s S ,].(,Kl -1-11 
s S 1)1. :!','J i1K 

s S 3M!·)]~ ~b I 
s -I:! . j ()-1 .w, 

.n 12k on 
S -11 .71; IJ.?{1 

S -H 1111 7-17 
S -11 ,2 1 !17 

➔ 2 . 77-1 -1 , 1) 

~ 4..:,_t,'l-l ,ox 

S -H .3-10 0~ 11 

S •I )M l IJII 
S ,7 SOh 171 
S -W.:!IJho\11 

-l(J.48 1 . .?0-1 

S -11 011°' ..:.1.1 
39.1kll IIO i 

S lCJ -1 '\M ''lh 

S 40 2o I 007 

Co11tr1b\1t1om ,\S a 

llCll l;'III u( (1)\ CrcJ 

cmplo, cc pa, roll 

\:! -;7•1> 

12 20"1 
12 .i1•, 

I !~()"" 

12 '-'"• 

I:"•"• 
11-1,•. 

12-11ri. 
I:! -11• ., 
12-1;• • 

1::! ~x • .. 
I:! K::!"'., 

11 i/U"• 

u s -1 • .. 

12 x.•'• 
I ! M:?.•. 

I! -11• • 
l!1M• • 

12 h(,•• 

l :!N,•• 

( "/1<111gc., u/ he11cfi1 1cm,., STRS O h10 - E ffective for 2024 , STRS Ohm 1mplcme111ed a 011e- t11n c 
J '}o cost of l1,·1ng, ad1ustment cf1Cctivc on the annl vcrs::iry of a bl!ncfits rcc1ptt.:11t 's ri;1I rcmc11 t date 

for those cl!g1blc during fiscal year 2024 and a plan change lo provide unreduced rctIremc111 
hcnclit5 10 thnsi.: ,,11h .34 y ears of scrv1cc, wlrn.:h c.\;tcnds through fiscal year :!02.X 

Effecti ve for W23 . STRS Ohio 11nplcmentcd a une-umc ·• n cost of11vmg au_111stmcn1 clfoct,ve on 

the anniversary ofa benc.ftts rcc1picnt 's rcuri;mcnt datt! for thnst.: d1g1hlc during fi sc:,I yea r 2023 
and climma1cd ihe age 60 rcq111rcmcnt (cffeCII\ e i\ ugust I , 2026) 

There were no changes 10 benefit 1enn. affi:cung 1he OPERS plans. 

( 'llllllgt:., u/ tl.\ ,\Ulllf'IUill.\ 

STRS Ohio During the plan year i:ndeJ June "' O, :::!02 ..,. there were no changes to key USS\llnpttons 
lix STRS Oh,o 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONT.) 

During the plan car ended Junr.: 30, 1022. there were t.:h;:1ngc~ tu M.:vcra l a.'isumpuuns for STRS 
Oh,o based on an upda1cd expe rience study for the five-year period ended June 3U. 2U21 The 
prOJt:cted salary increase range changed from 2 .5°tu ~ 12 5° 11 lo 2 'i 11 o .J< 5° o Tht! inort.1l1t~ tabks 
used changed from Rl'-201~ lo PUB-1010 

During the plan year ended .lune 30. 201 1. the investment ra te of rc1urn decrca.,cd from 7 ➔ 5° o to 

700% 

During the plan year ended June }U, 10 17, there were cha nge, 10 several assumpl1ons for STKS 
Ohio The cos1-of: 1, v111g adJu.s1mcn1 dropped !'rom '.! .00~ .. 10 0 oo•,., The wage mnm,on dropped 
from 2 75u1o lO:] so~~o ThL" IJWCSllllCnl rnle of rdurn d..:crcascU Crom 7 7 '% 10 7 45°111 The inonal11 y 
1ablcs used changed from Rl'-WUO 10 RP-2014 . 

OPERS - Dunng thr.: plan years r.:ndcd December 31 . 1023 and :!022. there \\ Cft! no changes to "c~ 
assum pt1on.s 

Dunng the plan , car cn<lc<l December } I. 2021 . there wcrc changes lo several assumpuons rrn 
OPERS The discoum ra te "'"' reduced from 7 50°,o to 6 90° o J'hc wage 111fla11on dropped from 
3 2:5°,o to 1 75° o The pro_1cctcd ~alary mcrt;asc range changed fro m 3 :!5° u· IO 75°~ to 2 75° o-
10 75%. The c.~pcncncc study changed from the 5 year pcnud ended December • 1. 20 I to th e 5 
yenr penod ended December 31. 2010 The monal11y tables u, cd chani;cd from RP2014 w l'UB-
2010 

During th!! plan yc..ir ended Dcccmbt:r 3 1. 10 18. lhc d1scounl rntc was reduced from 7 50° o tn 
7 ~U 01u 

During the plan year ended December 31. 1016. there were changt!S 10 severa l ass ump1wn, l'or 
OPERS. The wage 111fla11011 dropped from }. 75% 10 } 15° o J'he proJcctcd alary increase range 
changed from ➔ 2·• •• 10 05°0 to J 25°0-10.75°, The monaht v tables used changed from RP-2000 
10 RP-201-l 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONT.) 

Sd1<·clulc, of the tl nivcrs it y', Proportio11:11c Sha rt· of the Net OPEB Liahilily (Asset) 
l'l:111 \ 'cars En,letl 20 17 to 2023 

UmH.'UU\ 0 !1o 

1uopnrt 1C111Ue ).hn1c 
L'IH\l!'f.)11\ •~ Urmc,-,11 , ' uf1 h1: \.OUcc ll\ c 

propon10n of thi: 111vt>on~ n uf 1h..: Ol' f.H 
1.011...·t.lL\~ STR, ~ollci:111 c STR!-i h:th1l11, l( il !ioS\! l ) Pbm lich1cia n net 

01110 :md O1'1:R~ 01110 .rn tl OJ>EK~ 311\0 UII I :I !> ii p m , tl lOll ll~ .:t 

n,:1 OPEB 11o.: t <Wl:B ~1t.:1cc11111g..: uf 1hc 1>crce11t:tfC of 1hc 
h:i b1l1h l( a.!lose1 1 11s l1.1h1!tt , ll ll\1\Cll llimcn,11,·'i l h ll\l!I S\\\ 0 !1, mrn l OPEB 

1' 11111 \ ~:u J ~n.:~ 111 ;\L~ .1111 m11 1l m c11!d pa, mll i..1 1\t! l t:d jJil\lOll lub1hh /t.1 ssetl 

~l!t lt" J't";arhcr'1 Hcli n::111cnt ~ s1e111 f.STl<!-i Ohio ) 
20~\ 0 ! -H l02 '"' \ I~ 71~ 000! 17.68 1 -1-ll 12 'i'i·. 1<18 j lf• 
W:!2 II ~nlb):S'}"'• lb 77h 0001 1H.23~J °'.3 8 17 11• .. 2JO 70-. 
1011 U :?!Sl 650-. (\ 'llS lKKh s l8 933 ibl I 'i ,!'i• • 17➔ 7n•. 
1020 lJ ll ➔ b-i:?•. I' IJUOOOI s -.i:? -iU-1 .--lOJ 130-l' .. u,2 to-. 
10111 U3:!79--ll •• I J J c, 0()(1) s -U . I 21t0113 l.! bl", 17--l 70-, 

201~ U .l1'i%0"', lf~ .. ;7 S .. ! J --1 1 7 j _<;Q(, 12 55•. 17b oo•-. 

1017 U ., :-:01-liti•. I~ X~I 11,IJ Jl.. l 1Jt) 7➔ 7 l l 2-,., -i1 to-. 

Ohiu l'uhlir E.mplO)l"l'S H.<·lii'l'.111t•111 S) Slr-lO (U l'EltS) 
:!O:!J t,:nHo"" ., ' 12U2u 715) • 1 .. 1 345 011 8 ➔ 5,- • 107 7{,"i. 

111~~ IJ :! 2-12➔• • $ I ,lb'478 ➔25 17..451) ; "'~" .. IJ"4 JC1•1 

2021 0.!.l:!7::?J"., s 17 :!.X11.2J l l -Hl.20.i .:?..t Y Ill 13",. I:?~ :! l ' • 
:!U~O 022 :?07 ' 0

• (1 'J.:i{i,-1-1 I 18.HS.636 to ;4°. I I 1i i7' . 
1 u 111 0 :!-1 :!.3- l 'r• H J 7U 5-4 11 40601.178 11 2 -1-lu .. J7 so- .. 
!Ulli ll 25 6 1(}Q'"' ♦ s ll 1.()0 'hS -1 1 119 . .217 Kl :W"• -l h ;_;"• 
::01., 0 !551 0-, 27 7•1l. l~J -10 .i--1 0.282 till n•. ,J 1..1.•. 

The pl~n ,c:ir ends on June ]0 for STR S Oh,o and Dc-ccmbcr ' 1 for Ol'FR. 



YOUNGSTOWN ST ATE UNIVERSITY 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONT.) 

Schedules of the University's 01'1:: H Co nt r ibutions 

Conmhuuons u1 

rclauon to the 
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STRS O hio During the pl;,n ye,ir ended .lune 30, 2023, the subsidy pcrccnt;,gc and the base 
amount for all rcl1Tee Non-Medicare Eltgihlc (NME) pa r11c 1pants. from 2 2"o per year 111 la sl year', 
valuatwn to 2 5% p~r year. capped at 75°~. as wdl a~ the unfreezing or the NME sub ·uJy. thi..: 
removal o the 6o/n cap on the ~,car nvcr year suhs,d r 10crcasc for Medicare Ehg1blc (ME} 
pan1c1pants. the changes m deductible and office v1s11s copays for Aetna's Medicare Ad\'anl:l!\e 
plan. and updates in the medical and PBM vendor con1r.ic1s 

There were nu significant changes 1n benefit terms affecting the OPERS plan 

( '/w11gcs 11/ ll ., .\ 111i 1/Jllw1., 

STRS Ohio Dunng the plan year ended June 30. 2023 . there were changes m the healthcare and 
trend assumpt10ns based on l'lllcrging claims and n.:cnvcncs expcriem:c as well as hi..!rn.:lit ch11ngc.s 
cffec11ve Jr11n1;,ry I . 2024 i'or STRS Ohio. 
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YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONT.) 

Dunne\ the plan year ended June 30. 202" , there were chani;es 111 several assumptions for STRS 
Oh1n hilSl't.l on an updat.:d c.:xpcni.:ncL! study fur the livc-yt!ar 1x:nod ended June 30. 2021 T he 
prOJt.:ctcd salary increase rnngc changed from 2.511 0-12 .5° 0 IO 2_ - 11 0- K 511 0 Th1..· monal ity tables 
used cha nged from RP-201.J In l'IJ B•_tl 10 

During the plan year cndcd June ""U. 102 1. the rnvcstment rate of"n.:1urn dc,rca.seJ from 7 45°n tn 
7 00°0 T he health c,ut: cost trr..! nd rntcs also di.!crcased from -1 l)Jnn to L) 62°0 1mt1a l and 4.000.o 
11ltnna1e for pla n yea r ended .lune 30. 2020, 10 16 20°, percent 10 30 om" 111111a l and .J 110~, ultn11. tc 
for plan year ended June 30, :!021 

()u r111g the pl;in year cndi..!d Jum.: 30. 201 K, there were changes to seve r.ii a~sumptwns for STRS 
Ohm. The health care cost trend rates decreased from 6.00% to 11 00°0 ""'"'' and -1 50" ,, ultimate 
for pla n ,ear ended June 311. :W 17. to (5 23° o) ' " 9.62~ o iniual and 4 .00" o ultnnatc for plmt ye,tr 
,:ndcd June 30, 20 IX Th'-= di scount r.ue increased from a blended rate bi.:twccn the long-term 
i.:xpcctc<l rah! of rt.:turn and a 10 .. yi.:a r 1m1111c1 pal bond ra te of --I I J unto the 111vestml:nl rak of rt:tum 
of 7 -15° o based on the cash flow unalys,s 

Ol'ERS - During the plan year ended December 31 . 2023, the health care co 1 trend 1a1c changed 
to 5 5ouo lll l ltal , 3 50°u ult1111ate Ill 20""R from 5 5U0o 1111t1 al. 3 ~0°o ultmlatt.: Ill } ll 36 In 2012 In 
;_1dd 1t1on. thi.: discount rntc was 1ncr..:a.._cd from 5 :r~ 0 () to 5 70°n and the mt1111 c1pal hond rah.· \\'35 

decreased from .J 05° • 10 3 77'" 

During tl11..; pl;m yL:ar ended f)ccc mher I_ _()12, tlu.: health care cost trend rate change In 5 50°0 
1111 11al , 3 50°11 ulmnati.: m 2036 from 5 O~'o 1mtial, 3.50°0 ult1mntc rn 20.34 rn 202 1 In addition, 
the disco unt ra te was rcduci.:d from 6 OO~·o to 5.22° ;, 

Dunng the year ended December J I , 202 1, there we re changes 10 several assump11ons for OPERS 
The cxpcnl!ni.:c study changed from the 5-ycar period ended I eccmhcr 3 1 :!O I 5 to thL'. 5-ye"r 
period ended December 3 1, 20:!0 "f"hc municipal bond rate dt:C rca~i:<l from 2 00° q w I 84° n Wage 
1nllatton decreased 3.25° 0 to J 75°0 The proJcctcd salary mcrcasc rnngc changi:d from 3.15°0-
IO 75°. 10 2 75° o• I O 75°. Healt h care cost trend rate decreased from X 50" o 11111,a l. ' 511° o ul11mate 
Ill 20'5 10 5 50°n 1n111al . 3 50°. ul11ma1c 111 203.J 

Dunng lhc phrn yc..:ar c..:m.kd Di.:ecmhcr 31 ~ JU20. liic..:rc::: WL:rc changes 10 scvi.;r;d assumptions for 
OPERS The health car.: cost trend r:ites decreased from 10 50"o in111al and J 50"o ultimate 10 
X 50°11 1111 l1 <.ll and 3 50°(1 ult1mah.: Thi.: discount ratt: was incn.:,1scd frorn J )6110 10 6 00°0 

IJur111g th!.! ph:m year ended Octcmhi.: r I . :!0 19 , there were. change~ to several assumptions li:n 
0 1' · RS The health care cost trend rate~ dec reased from 10 00°'n 11u11al and 3 25"• ult1mat~ w 
10 5011 0 tn1t1al ~md J 50°0 ultimate The discount rate was red uced fro m 3 ()()"u to 3. 16°i1 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements Performed 1n Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To Management and the Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 

We have audited. m accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amenca and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. the financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely presented 
component unit of Youngstown State University (the "University"), a component unit of the State of Ohio, as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2024 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
University's basic financial statements. and have issued our report thereon dated October 11, 2024 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered tile University's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's Internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of lhe University's internal control 

A deficiency 1n internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned funcilons. to prevent, or detect and correct. 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility lhat a matenal misstatement of the University's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected. on a timely basis A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that 1s less severe than a matenal weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies 1n internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations. during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies 1n internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However. material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with cenain provisions ol laws, regulations. contracts. 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements. However, prov1d1ng an opinion on compliance with those proV1sions was not an objective of our audit. 
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion The results of our tests d1sdosed no instances of 
noncomphance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards 

(_> PRAXIT'/ 
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To Management and the Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe lhe scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that lasting, and not to provide an opinion on lhe effectiveness of the University's internal control or on 
compliance This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considenng the University's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication 1s not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

October 11. 2024 
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Report on Compliance for Each MaJor Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required 
by the Uniform Guidance 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Youngstown State University's (the "University") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the University's maJor federal program for the year 
ended June 30, 2024 The University's ma1or federal program iS identified In the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs 

In our opinion, the University complied, 1n all material respects. with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program for the year ended June 30. 2024. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government AuditJng 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform Admm,stratwe Requirements. Cost Pnnoples. and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance") Our responsibilities under those standards and the 
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Respons1b1l1t1es for the Audit of Compliance section of our 
report 

We are required to be independent of the University and to meet our other ethical responsibilities m accordance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit We beheve that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
suffiaent and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each maior federal program. Our 
audit does not provide a legal deterrmnatlon of the University's compliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management 1s responsible for compllance wJth the requirements referred to above and for the deSJgn. 
implementation. and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws. 
statutes. regulations. rules. ana prov1s1ons of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the UmverSJty's federal 
program 
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To the Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 

Auditor's Responsibilities tor tho Audit of Compliance 

Our obJectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requtrements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the University's 
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and. therefore. 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS. Government Auditing 
Standards. and the Uniform Guidance will always detect matenal noncompliance wnen it exists. The nsk of not 
detecting matenal noncompliance resulllng from fraud 1s higher than for that resulting from errOJ. as fraud may 
involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the ovemde of internal control 
Noncomphance with the compliance requJTements referred to above 1s conSJdered matenal 1f there 1s a substantial 
likelihood that. ind1v1dually or in the aggregate. it would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on comphance about the University's compliance with the requirements of each maJor federal program as a 
whole 

In performing an audit m accordance with GAAS. Government Auditing Standards. and the Uniform Guidance. we 

• Exercise profesSJonal Judgment and maintain profesS1onal skepticism throughout the audit 

• Identify and assess the nsks of matenal noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures indude examining, on a test basis. evidence 
regarding the University's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances 

• Obtain an understanding of the University's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate m the circumstances and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expresSJng an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the University's internal control over comphance. Accordingly. no such opinion Is 
expressed 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control 
over compliance that we identified during the audit 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Our consIdera11on of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose dascnbed in the Auditor's 
Responsib1/1t1es for the Audit of Comp/lance section above and was not designed to identify all def1aencies m 
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance, and. therefore. matenal weaknesses or s1gnif1cant def1cienaes may exist that were not identified 
We did not identify any deficienaes 1n internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However. as discussed below. we did identify a defiaency in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be a significant deficiency 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees. in the normal course of performing th8lr assigned functions, to 
prevent. or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness In internal control over compliance 1s a defiaency, or a combination of 
deficiencies. in internal control over comphance sueh that there ,s a reasonable poss1bllity that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement o! a federal program will not be prevented. or detected and 
corrected. on a timely basis. A s1gn1flcant deficiency 1n intemal control over comphance 1s a aef1aency. or a 
combination of def1cienaes. in lllternal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that 1s less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to 
ment attention by those charged with governance. We consider the defIe1ency in internal control over compliance 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Finding 2024-001 to be a significant 
deficiency. 

Our audit was not deSJgned for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance Accordingly. no such op1n1on Is expressed 
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To the Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 

Government Auditing Standards requires the aud,1or to perform lim1led procedures on the UnIvers1ty's response to 
lhe inlemal o:mlrol over compliance tind1ng 1denI1fied in our audit and descnbed in the accompanying schedule of 
r,ndings and quesboned costs. The University's response was not subjected to the olher auditing procedures 
applied in the audit ol compliance. and. accordingly, we express no opinion on 11 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance ,s solely lo describe the scope of our tesling of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly. this report is not suilable for any other purpose. 

October 11. 2024 
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Youngstown State University 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the · schedule&) mdudes the federal grant 
ac11V1ty of Youngstown State University (the "Un,vers11Y-) under programs of the federal government for !he 
year ended June 30. 2024 The mforrnallon m the Schedule Is presenled m accoroance wILh the 
require,nen1s of Tille 2 U S Code ol Federal Regulations Pan 200, Uniform Admm1s1rat,ve Requirements . 
Cost Pnnc1ples, and Audit Requirements tor Federal Awards (lhe ' UnIfo1m Gurdance") Because lhe 
Schedule presents only a seiecled portion of lhe operations or the Univers11y, It 1s not mtended lo and does 
not presen1 the finanaal position changes in net posilion or cash flows of the Universi ty 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Expenchtures reported !n the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounhng. Such expenditures 
are recognized lallowmg the cost prmclples contained In Title 2 U S Code of Federal Regulahons Part 
200 Uniform Admm1srra11ve Requirements, Cosr Pnnc1ples, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
wherein cer1aIn types of expenditures are not allowable or are hmited as 10 re1mbursemen1 Nega1ive 
amounts shown on tne Schedule represent ad1ustmenls or credIls made m the norm al course of business 
10 amounts reporteo as e,cpend,tures 1n prior years The pass·lhrough entIly 1denllfy1ng numbers are 
presented where available 

The Un1vers1ty has elected not to use the 10 percent de mmrm,s Ind1rect cost ra1e to recover 1nd1rec1 cosls, 
as alloV.,ed under the Uniform Guidance and instead uses mdIree1 cost rates ranging from 8 percenl to 
26.3 percent per the respective grant agreemen1s or curreni federally nego11ated indirect cos t ra1e 

Note 3 - Loans Balances 

Federal Direc t Loan Program 

The Unrversriy pan,c,pales in lhe Federal Drrect Student Loan Program (8d 268) Ttie Unrversrty 
onginales but does not provide funding fo r lederal direct loans (FOL) The amount presented on the 
schedule of expendi tures of federal awaras represen ts the value of new FOL processed by the University 
for lhe year ended June 30, 2024 
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Youngstown State University 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued 

rnternat control over financial reponing 

Material weakness(es) 1denufied? 

S,gn,ficant defic1ency(1es) ,denuhed tnat are 
not considered 10 be material weaknesses? 

Noncomp!1ance materra1 to hnanctal 
statements noted? 

Federal Awa rds 

Internal con1rol over maJor programs 

Malenal weakness(es) 1denI1hed? 

Significant aefic1ency(1es) 1dentIf1ed that are 
noI cansIoerea to be material weaknesses? 

Any audit findmgs d1scIosed ttlat are requrrea to oe reponeo m 
accordance wi th Secuon 2 CFR 200.516(a)? 

ldent1ficat1on of major programs 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Unmod1hed 

Yes X No 

Yes X None reponec 

Yes X None reponed 

Yes X No 

x Yes None reponed 

X Yes NO 

Assistance 
Ltsttng Number Name of Feaerat Program or Cluster Op1rnon 

Vanous Sludent F1nanaal Assistance Cluster 

Dollar lhreshotd used 10 d1stmgu1sh between 
type A and Iype B programs· 

AudIIee qualified as tow-ns aud1Iee? 

Section II • Financial Statement Audit Findings 

None 

89 

Unmod1f1ea 

$750 000 

X Yes No 

Youngstown State University 

Schedule of Fi ndings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended Ju ne 30, 20 24 

Section Ill - Federal Program Audit Findings 

Relerence QuesI1oneo 
Number F,nd,n Costs 

2024-001 Assist ance Lis ting Number, Federal Agency, and Program Name - None 
84 063 84 268 U S Oepartniem of Education Student Finanoal AssIsIance 
Cluster - federal Pell Grant Program Federal Direct Stuaem Loans 

Federal Awa rd Identifi cati on Number and Yea r 

• 84 063 • P063P192025 P063P202025 P063P21 2025. P063P222025 
P063P232025 

- BA 268 - P268K222025 . P268K232025 P268K242025 

Pass -through Entity - None 

Finding Type - S1gml1cant def1c1ency 

Repeat Finding - No 

Cri teria • For the Federal Pell Grant Program, 34 CFR Sec11on 690 83(b)(2) 
requires an Inst11utIon to submII in accordance with deadline dates 
established oy the secreIary, through pubhcaI1an in the Federal Regrster, 
other repons and mformat1on tne secretary requires and shall comply wnn the 
procedures the secretary finds necessary to ens re that the repons are 
correct 

For the Federal Direct Student Loans. 34 CFR Section 685 309(b) requires 
changes in student status to oe reponea to the NSLOS wimm 30 days of the 
cnange or mduded m a StuC:ont Status Conflrmat,on Report (SSCR) sent to 
me NSLOS w1 th1n 60 days of the status cnange 

Condition - Dunng our tesung of Pell or Direct Loan borrnwers that had a 
change m enrollment reporting sIaIus, enrollment status m NSLDS was not 
accurately reponed for certain students tested 

Questioned Costs ~ There were no questioned cosIs identJf1ed 

Identi fi cation of How Questioned Costs Were Computed • There were no 
quesboned costs 1denuf1ed 

Context - Ounng our testing of Pell or Direct Loan borrowers lhat had a 
Change In enrollmenI reponmg status at !he Un1versiIy, we noIea 2 cu l of 40 
students whose enrollment status was not updated m NSLDS mcIud1ng 
Program -Level Record and Campus-Level Record 

Cause and Effect - The University did not have adequate procedures m 
place to ensure all required campus-level and program•level data was being 
reported to NSLDS v,a NSC For these students NSLDS dId not reflecl 
accurate enrollment status 

Recomm endation - We recommend the Universny implement comrnls 10 

ensure 1t1aI all campus·level oeta1l and program-level oe Ia1! are oemg 
appropnately reponed through NSC 10 NSLDS to ensure enrollment sta tus 
cnanges are reponed to NSLDS via NSC 
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Youngstown State University 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Section Ill - Federal Program Audit Findings (Continued) 

Reference 
Number Fmd1n 

2024,001 Views of Responsible Offi cia ls and Corrective Action Plan - The 
(Conl!nued) Un1versIty Registrar and Financ,al Aid 01rec1or mvesligated me Issue and 

developed additional procedures The Univers1ly Reg,strar will continue lo 
cross-check 15 currenlly enrolled students wIlh the NSC monthly enrollment 
data submissrnn The F1na11c1al Aid Director \VIII supply !he University 
Reg1s1rar with an add1tlonal 15 currently enrollee students with financial a10 10 
cross-check with the NSC monthly enrollment data subm1ss1ons Tt1e 
Financ,al Aid O1reclor will cross•check both sample lists with 
NSLDS enrollment data for accuracy 
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State of Ohio Senate Bill 6 Financial Ratio Analysis - Youngstown State University, FY 2024 

Senate Bill 6 Ratios 
Enacted in 1997, Senate Bill 6 provides a framework for state 
policymakers to annually evaluate the financial health of Ohio's public 
colleges and universities. S.B. 6 is codified in state law: 

* Ohio Revised Code §3345. 72 
* Ohio Administrative Code §126 :3-1-01. 

S.B. 6 requires the Ohio Department of Higher Education to employ a 
scoring system usi ng each state university's audited financial 
statements as the basis for three key performance ratios, calculated as 
follows: 

* Net income ratio: change in total net assets.;. total revenues. = 20% 
of composi te score 

* Viability ratio : expendable net assets.;. plant debt .= 30% of 
composite score 

* Primary reserve ratio : expendable net assets..;. total operating 
expenses+ interest on debt. = 50% of composite score 

**All calculations exclude the impact of GASB 68/75** 

YSU's 5. B. 6 ratio calculations - FY 2024 

Net Income Ratio: Weighted 

0 1 2 3 4 _ _ s__ Score Weight ~ 

<-.049 -.OS ta 0 Oto .009 ,01 10 .029 .03 to .049 =>.OS 20% 0.60 

0.023 

Calculation detail: $4,698,118/ $203,643,549 = 0.023 

Viability Ratio: Weighted 

1 2 3 4 5 Scare Weight Score 
--- - ---------------1 ----· --- ------

0 
<0 0 ta .29 .30 to.59 .60 ta .99 1.0 to 2.50 >2.50 30% 1.20 

1.166 

Calculation detail: S77,477,116/ $66,451,449 = 1.166 

Weighted Primary Reserve Ratio : 

0 4 _ __;,s __ ~ Weight ~ 
<-.10 •.10 to .049 .05 to .099 .10 to .249 .2S to .491 =>.50 4 SO% 2.00 

0.389 
Calclllatian deta/1: $77,477,116 / $198,945,431 = 0.389 

YSU Composite Score= sum total of weighted ratio scores above: 3.80 

What the ratios mean : 
"'Net income ratio: compares expenses 
and revenues to determine if a campus 
is operat ing within its resources. 

* Viability ratio : measures a campus's 
ability to manage long-term debt 
obligations. 

*Primary reserve ratio : measures a 
campus's ability to use reserves in the 
absence of future revenue. 

Key metric: Composite Score, the sum 
of weighted scores for the net income, 
viability and primary reserve ratios. 
5.0 is the highest-best score possible. 

Historical Data 
YSU's S.B. 6 composite scores have fluctuated over the last 
10 years but have remained stable since inception. 

5.0 

4.5 

4.0 

3 .5 

3.0 

2.5 

2.0 

1.5 

1.0 

0.5 

0.0 

:;, 1-------------,,-., -----
"' ~ 

3.1 -- --C: 

0 -. ., 
:, ,. u ,_ 

-

,. t 

-
- -

- -

3.4 3.4 
....:.= 3.1 --

- - - -

-
- - - -

,_ 
- -

,_ ,_ 
- - ,_ 

,_ 

Scale FY15 FV16 FY17 FY18 FV19 FV20 FV21 FY22 FV23 FV24 

Institutional Comparison 
The FY 2024 (preliminary) and FY 2023 composite scores for Ohio's state universities are shown below: 
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•A t the time chis report wos prepared, FY 2024 scores were not available for Centro/ State and Wright State. 
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,r YOUNGSTOWN 
STATE UNIVERSITY 

RESOLUTION TO RENEW AND AMEND 
THE INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 

WHEREAS, the Internal Audi t Charter (the Charter) defines the internal audit 
activity's purpose, authority, and responsibility; and 

WHEREAS, the Charter establishes the internal audit activity's fu nctional 
reporting relationship with the audit subcommittee, authorizes access to records, 
personnel , and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements, 
and defines the scope of internal audit activities; and 

WHEREAS, the professional standards of the Institute of Internal Auditors 
require the Internal Audit Charter be approved by the Board; and 

WHEREAS, the professional standards of the Institute of Internal Audi tors have 
been updated effective January 2025; and 

WHEREAS, a new version of Internal Audit Charter was prepared to align with 
the new Standards; now, therefore, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of 
Youngstown State Uni vers ity does hereby renew the Internal Audit Cha1ter, 
attached hereto. 

Board of Trustees Meeting 
December 12, 2024 
YR 2025-
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Youngstown State University 

Internal Audit Charter 

~tl~-ute of IRlernal •ooit~ 
later UAder tl::le heading "&tandanfo fer the Prefessienal Practice ef Internal nud1ting." 

Pu,po5& aRe P4i55iOR" 

~IHMepeooem-,m<l-objective ass u,ae ee •~lue 

18-lmp,o><e the ope,a~egstO"''A State Yei><efsity The missiee of iAlemal aooiHS-1~ 

and preteet er-ganizational ualue b•; JHo•viding risl, based and objeetiue assurance, adHice, and insight. It 

assists the uni.,ers ity in accemplishing its objecfr•es b•t bringing a s•,stematie and disciplined appr~ 
C"Jluate anEt irnpre!!e U~e effectP•eness of tl=le uni .. er=sity's risk manageFA.ent, central, and ga.,ernanee -
+he internal aur:iit aeti •it, is esta131ished b•, the Beattd of Trustees ("Boartl") and its respo,~sitiilities are 
deooed by the Audit Suhrnmffiittee ("SuhEO"mffiittee") of the Board as pa~ 

defined in the Audit SubeommiUee Charter. 

StaRdards fer tRe PrefessieRal PFaEtiee ef IRternal Auditing· 

~8f'J elements of The Institute af Internal Ouditars' (Ill') Int~ 
~anal Practices Frameu arll {IPPF), ineluding the Core Prinei13les for the PFOfessional Praet1ee af 
Internal n 1:1£:titing, the Coe:le ef Ethics, the lnternatienal Standares fer the Prefessional Pra ctiee af Internal 
AuditiflHhe-$tondol'dsj,..ind4~nioon-ol'-IRl<>r-Ral-Au<li~Ada~~t..tes 

pFiMi~ndameRt~ifemeRt<-1~1-p,a,~,e of ieternal ~ 

ensuring the effeeti,.eness of the internal aueit aetiHiti,•' s t1erforFF1ance . 

~ 
nutharity is grsante0 fer full, free, anEt Hnrestricted aecess ta any ;;1nd all ef ¥e1:1ngsta n ~tate's reeords, 

physical f:ilFSperties, and personnel Fele11ant ta any hrnetion 1:1nder review, I'll emplayees are expeeteEt ta 

assist the iete,eal au~it aeti 1ity '" fulllllieg its reles aell , espeesibilities. lhe ieternal •~~it aetivitv "''ill 

also Iola e fFee aAd l:IAFestrieted aceess te u~e Sullrnmmittee and the 8aard. 

Goolom<!f>l<Ht<.O--iflf<>fff!ali<>J>i>F<>'li<:le<Jk<l>-tl>e-ll>tema>hl•udit du,ieg a ,e,.ie"'' .. ,m.1).,..1,and~t 

an<I-Eonfi<lenlia~ 

The lnteFnal Awditer •viii repert fuAEtienallv ta the Subeemmittee a Ad administ ra tively ,i e, day ta day 

eperatians) te tAe l'iee President fer Fina nee & Ausiness Operatiens The Internal n uditer eellaberates 
wf.t.A..&xternal pre,.iders engaged ta assis t in tAe direetien and eperatien of the internal aYdit aeti11ity as 

determine0 by the managemen~~ 
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~u di t eh a rte r. 

Approue the ri!ik based internal aw~ 

Appre11e the internal audit budget an~AT 

Reeei"e eommunieatisn frsm the Internal AuGtitor on the internal au Sit acfr•it-y's performaAce 

relati"e te its plan and atRer matters. 

nppre e 0ecisieAs Fegarding tRe appeintmeAt and remo• al of the IAternal n wditor. 

r4al,e afifHopriate inqwines af management and the Internal Auditor to determine u•Rether 

t~ere is 1najlprepriate scape or resource limitations. 

IReepeROORGe aRd Obje•tiuity· 

lhe iRterRal aYdit aeti"itv • •ill remain free from interference by any element in the Yni ersit•, . ineludtffg 

matters ef awdit seleetien, seef)e, procedures, freqwenG,1, timing, ar report centent te p~ 
mamt-e-Aance af a necessary, indep~nd-Gbjec-t+Ye--meAt-at-at-titude-: 

mte~ditOK-will-have-no-di~tfonal-r-esponsibility er authority a••er an11 ef the act-i'i'-itfe-5 

aud~efAal.ceAl~ 
f}f-€-f}a~n-a~ther aeti••ity that may impair an internal--audtt-OF-5-jUdgmeob 

lnteFRal auditers rnill eMAibit the higAest le •el ar prefossianal ehjeeti •it, in gathering, eual~1ating, and 
communicatillg informatien ah out the aet1 it:, er preeess "1e1ng eHamiRed. Internal awditors ill mal.e a 
93l3RGee:I assos5m@Rt ef all U:1e releuant , ircumstances and Rat be 1:1nduly influeneed b~ thelF e11•n 

interests orb•, ethers iR MrmiRg judgmeAt5 

lhe iAternal audit acti it, ffla/ 13re iele EBASUlting sep ices ta assist• ith 0p130rtunities fer imf)re• mg 

ffltefnal GeAtrols or t3ro••i~nswlting seP•iee •••ould-noWmpe-de 
mdependence since manJgement reta~~~bihtir-

+he IRterRal Ouditerwill GeRAri;:1 ta Urn Subeemmittee, at least aRR1:13lly1 the eFganii!Jtienal 

1AEle13endenee ef the internal a1:1dit aeti,.ity. 

S~ope OR IRternal '\weit n 61iYities; 
~~uditiRg-eneompasses,-but-i<-not-limite<l-t~luatioo-04he 

adequacy a Rd erfocti11enes£ ef the t lni.,ersit,i' s go,.ernanee, risl· R1anaeement, ;rnd internal eentrels as 

• •ell as the qualit•1 er peffGFmance in earrying ewt assigned respensibilities to aehieue the I tni •er5ity's 

stated-goal5-arul-ebjecti"es. This ieclude-s; 

~••a luating risk expesme relat ing ta achie••ement ef the I lni1•ersitv' s strategic obieeti es, 

•"aluatieg the reliability aell ietegrity of iefor~~ 

elassif,. and repeFt such inferFAatien. 
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~nd-fegul;,tioR5 which ,ould ha• e a 51gRiflc~ni""™ty, 

~lu.>oog-tl>e-m~t;.a~iat-~istence-oko<h 
asset<, 

( ,1alua11ng the effecti eness and efi:iciene, iO~ hich reseuFces are emJ)ID r ed 
~kl.t~t~regrams ta ascertain •uhether res~•~t--w+th-estalmshed 

ebje&l1 •es and goals and , !:tether the eperations er pregFams are berng eamed out as~ 

~1en1termg and eu~lwating geuemanee processe!ii 

-Moni~h~erle•ti••eRes< o/ t~aagemeot-j)fOO<>SSe,, 

~ormiRg-t-wlllAg...,.o-a,dw.;of\1-SeM<"'5-<eli-rl--l<>g<we._,,..,,_...i.-,nanagement--and 
,ontrnl ac apprepriate for the t tni,.ersity 

Reporting perioEhcallv on the internal audit actPl'itv' s purpose, autheFI~. respensib1htv, and 
performance relatlue to its plan 
Reporting signi~Gara Fisli e11posures and cont-rol lssues, 1ncl1;,1dlng fraud risl;s, eo"eFRance issues, 

and-o~~ 
E¥aluating specific operations at the request eftl=le S\1heommtttee or management, as 
~ 

~ 
+he-ln~it<>r.-ifl->llaoos>ti-..w,ltl>--e,,te<nal-1>""'i<le<$-..,..gai~--to-assisHr>-dif<!c~ion--and 

ot>erati<»w>!-lntema~ 

~RrnJall,, ta senier maRagemcnt and the Committee a risk based-mt-emahltH:Ht 
jH,)A for re• iattt aAd approttal 

~munk-.ate-to-senief-fnanagement a nd the Comfffl~paGt-&f-fe&our~kwtatkms-on 
th&-lnternal-audil-j>l;m. 

Re 11e • and ai:tjust the internal a1:i18it plan, as ReeessafY, in response to ehanges iA the 
unlversit:',ts Fisks, opeFatioAs, programs, systems, and eontrols 

-'emmuniGate to seAier management a Rd the Committee any slgn+f+ean~~flge5-to-th-e 
iRterRal awdit plaR 

• - -EnsUFe eacl:l engagement is properl~• exee1;1ted, inau6mg the esta~~nd 
s«lpe, the assignmeRt of apJ)f<lflriate a Rd ade~ua~he-oewment<1tion 

ef • orlt pregr:ams aRd testin& reswl~s. amt the eammunieatieR of eAgagement results with 
AndiRlfS, rn&emmeRdatiens, and auditee's eorre&tt'•e a,tiGn plaRs and i~~ 

-=-------'-liA<liflfi-R<l-<-O™/e-,l,wQns-;ilfl{l.---pe,H><H<&all'\'4~ 
management--aoo the Cornmittee co,rectiue aelioRs ROI ellect•••I¥ 1rnplemeRte<i, 

o---fnsure-the-pfln< . rnk-Ompet~pplie<h;nd 

upheld, 
tnrnre mteFRal a Hht staif eelleGtP•el•t pessesses er ebtaiR5 the kRe,..ledge1 skills, aRd ~ 
,ompoteRGiu Reeded to meet t ~e requ1Fements of tl:le mtemal audit ,hartu 

o---fnsu---,g-t<<!A<ls-a;"4-<~essj"'4.,...ti<e""'1...,..,..ah>~-""'e,e<I, 
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Introduction 

Youngstown State University 

Internal Audit Charter 

This charter is prepared in accordance with the Institute of Internal Auditors' (IIA) guidance as 
described later under the heading "Global Internal Audit Standards." 

Purpose and Mission 

The purpose of the internal audit function is to strengthen Youngstown State University's ability 

to create, protect, and sustain value by providing the Audit Subcommittee of the Board of 

Trustees and management with independent, risk-based, and objective assurance, advice, 

insight, and foresight. 

The internal audit function enhances Youngstown State University's: 
• Successful achievement of its objectives. 
• Governance, risk management, and control processes. 
• Decision-making and oversight. 
• Reputation and credibility with its stakeholders. 
• Ability to serve the public interest. 

Youngstown State University's internal audit function is most effective when: 
• Internal auditing is performed by competent professionals in conformance with the IIA's 

Global Internal Audit Standards'l'M which are set in the public interest. 
• The internal audit function is independently positioned with direct accountability to the 

Audit Subcommittee. 
• Internal auditors are free from undue influence and committed to making objective 

assessments. 

The mission of Youngstown State University internal audit is to enhance and protect 

organizational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice, and insight. It 

assists the university in accomplishing its objectives by bringing a systematic and disciplined 

approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the university's risk management, 

control, and governance processes. 

Commitment to Adhering to the Global Internal Audit Standards 

Youngstown State University's internal audit function will seek to adhere to the mandatory 

elements of The Institute of Internal Auditors' International Professional Practices Framework, 

which are the Global Internal Audit Standards and Topical Requirements. 
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Mandate 

Authority 
The internal audit function's authority is created by its direct reporting relationship to the Audit 

Subcommittee. Such authority allows for unrestricted access to the Audit Subcommittee. 

The Audit Subcommittee authorizes the internal audit function to: 

• Have full unrestricted access to all functions, data, records, information, physical 

property, and personnel pertinent to carrying out internal audit responsibilities. Internal 

auditors are accountable for confidentiality and safeguarding record and information. 

• Allocate resources, set frequencies, select subjects, determine scopes of work, apply 

techniques, and issue communications to accomplish the function's objectives. 

• Obtain assistance from the necessary personnel of Youngstown State University and 

other specialized services from within or outside Youngstown State University to 

complete internal audit services. 

Independence Organizational Position, and Reporting Relationships 

Internal Audit will be positioned at a level in the organization that enables internal audit 

services and responsibilities to be performed without interference from management, thereby 

establishing the independence of the internal audit function (See "Mandate" section.) Internal 

audit will report functionally to the Audit Subcommittee and administratively (for example, day­

to-day operations) to the Vice President for Finance & Business Operations. This positioning 

provides the organizational authority and status to bring matter directly to senior management 

and escalate matters to the Audit Subcommittee, when necessary, without interference and 

supports the internal auditors' ability to maintain objectivity. 

Internal audit will confirm with the Audit Subcommittee, at least annually, the organizational 

independence of the internal audit function. If the governance structure does not support 

organizational independence, Internal Audit will document the characteristics of the 

governance structure limiting independence and any safeguards employed to achieve the 

principle of independence. Internal Audit will disclose to the Audit Subcommittee any 

interference internal audit encounters related to the scope, performance, or communication of 

internal audit work and results. The disclosure will include communicating the implications of 

such interference on the internal audit function's effectiveness and ability to fulfill its mandate. 
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Changes to Mandate or Charter 

Circumstances may justify a follow-up discussion between Internal Audit, the Audit 

Subcommittee, and senior management on the internal audit mandate or other aspects of the 

internal audit charter. Such circumstances may include but are not limited to: 

• A significant change in the Global Internal Audit Standards. 

• A significant reorganization within the organization. 

• Significant changes in Internal Audit, Audit Subcommittee, and/or senior management. 

• Significant changes to the organization's strategies, objectives, risk profile, or the 

environment in which the organization operates. 

• New laws or regulations that may affect the nature and/or scope of internal audit 

services. 

Audit Subcommittee Oversight 

To establish, maintain, and ensure that Youngstown State University's internal audit function 

has sufficient authority to fulfill its duties, the Audit Subcommittee will: 

• Discuss with Internal Audit and senior management the appropriate authority, role, 

responsibilities, scope, and services (assurance or advisory) of the internal audit 

function. 

• Ensure Internal Audit has unrestricted access to and communicates and interacts 

directly with the Audit Subcommittee, including private meetings without senior 

management present in accordance with Ohio public meeting laws. 

• Discuss with Internal Audit and senior management other topics that should be included 

in the internal audit charter. 

• Participate in discussions with Internal Audit and senior management about the 

"essential conditions/ described in the Global Internal Audit Standards, which establish 

the foundation that enables an effective internal audit function. 

• Approve the internal audit function's charter, which includes the internal audit mandate 

and the scope and types of internal audit services. 

• Review the internal audit charter periodically with Internal Audit to consider changes 

affecting the organization, such as changes in type , severity, and interdependencies of 

risks to the organization: and approve the internal audit charter periodically. 

• Approve risk-based internal audit plan 

• Provide input to the internal audit function's human resources administration and 

budgets. 

• Receive communications from Internal Audit about the internal audit including its 

performance relative to its plan. 

Internal Audit Charter 
Date Last Reviewed 12-2024 

Page3 of8 

• Make appropriate inquiries of senior management and Internal Audit to determine 

whether scope or resource limitations are inappropriate. 

The Office of Internal Audit is established by the Board of Trustees and its responsibilities are 

defined by the Audit Subcommittee as part of its oversight functions as defined in the Audit 

Subcommittee's charter. 

IA's responsibilities are guided by the Audit Subcommittee as part of its oversight function to 

promote and protect the Integrity of Youngstown State University. 

Internal Audit Roles and Responsibilities 

Ethics and Professionalism 

Internal Audit will ensure that internal auditors: 

• Seek to adhere to the Global Internal Audit Standards, including the principles of Ethics 

and Professionalism: integrity, objectivity, competency, due professional care, and 

confidentiality. 

• Understand, respect, meet, and contribute to the legitimate and ethical expectations of 

the organization and be able to recognize conduct that is contrary to those 

expectations. 

• Encourage and promote an ethics-based culture in the organization. 

• Report organizational behavior that is inconsistent with the organization's ethical 

expectations, as described in applicable policies and procedures. 

Objectivity 

Internal Audit will ensure that the Internal Audit function remains free from all conditions that 

threaten the ability of internal auditors to carry out their responsibilities in an unbiased 

manner, including matter of engagement selection, scope, procedures, frequency, timing, and 

communication. If Internal Audit determines that objectivity may be impaired in fact or 

appearance, the details of the impairment will be disclosed to the appropriate parties. 

Internal Audit will maintain an unbiased mental attitude that allows them to perform 

engagements objectively such that they believe in their work product, do not compromise 

quality, and do not subordinate their judgement on audit matters to others, either in fact or 

appearance. 
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Internal Audit will have no direct operational responsibility or authority over any of the 

activities they review. Accordingly, Internal Audit will not implement internal controls, develop 

procedures, install systems, or engage in other activities that may impair their judgement, 

including: 

• Assessing specific operations for which they had responsibility within the previous year. 

• Performing operational duties for Youngstown State University or its affiliates. 

• Initiating or approving transaction external to the internal audit function. 

• Directing the activities of any Youngstown State University employee that is not 

employed by the internal audit function, except to the extent that such employees have 

been appropriately assigned to the internal audit teams or to assist internal auditors. 

Internal Audit will: 

• Disclose impairments of independence or objectivity, in fact or appearance, to 

appropriate parties and at least annually to the Audit Subcommittee, management. or 

others. 

• Exhibit professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating, and communicating 

information 

• Make balanced assessments of all available and relevant facts and circumstances. 

• Take necessary precautions to avoid conflicts of interest, bias, and undue influence. 

Managing the Internal Audit Function 

The Internal Auditor along with outside services provided by shared services agreement with 

Kent State University has the responsibility to: 

• At least annually, develop a risk-based internal audit plan that considers the input of the 

Audit Subcommittee and senior management. Discuss the plan with the Audit 

Subcommittee and senior management and submit that plan to the Audit 

Subcommittee for review and approval. 

• Communicate the impact of resource limitations on the internal audit plan to the Audit 

Subcommittee and senior management. 

• Review and adjust the internal audit plan, as necessary, in response to changes in 

Youngstown State University's business, risks, operations, programs, systems, and 

controls. 

• Communicate with the Audit Subcommittee and senior management if there are 

significant interim changes to the internal audit plan. 

• Ensure internal audit engagements are performed, documented, and communicated in 

accordance with the Global Internal Audit Standards. 
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• Follow up on engagement findings and confirm the implementation of 

recommendations or action plans and communicate the results of internal audit services 

to the Audit Subcommittee and senior management periodically and for each 

engagement as appropriate. 

• Ensure the internal audit function collectively possesses or obtains knowledge, skills, 

and other competencies and qualifications needed to meet the requirements of the 

Global Internal Audit Standards and fulfill the internal audit mandate. 

• Identify and consider trends and emerging issues that could impact Youngstown State 

University and communicate to the Audit Subcommittee and senior management as 

appropriate. 

• Consider emerging trends and successful practices in internal auditing. 

• Establish and ensure adherence to methodologies designed to guide the internal audit 

function. 

• Ensure adherence to Youngstown State University's relevant policies and procedures 

unless such policies and procedures conflict with the internal audit charter or the Global 

Internal Audit Standards. Any such conflicts will be resolved or documented and 

communicated to the Audit Subcommittee and senior management. 

• Coordinate activities and consider relying upon the work of other internal and external 

providers of assurance and advisory services. If Internal Audit cannot achieve the 

appropriate level of coordination, the issue must be communicated to senior 

management and if necessary escalated to the Audit Subcommittee. 

Communication with the Audit Subcommittee and Senior Management 
Internal Audit will report periodically to the Audit Subcommittee and senior management 

regarding: 

• The internal audit function's mandate. 

• The internal audit plan and performance relative to its plan 

• Internal audit budget. 

• Significant revisions to the internal audit plan and budget. 

• Potential impairments to independence, including relevant disclosures as applicable. 

• Significant risk exposures and control issues, including fraud risks, governance issues, 

and other areas of focus for the Audit Subcommittee that could interfere with the 

achievement of Youngstown State University's strategic objectives. 

• Results of assurance and advisory services. 

• Resource requirements. 
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• Management's responses to risk that the internal audit function determines may be 

unacceptable or acceptable of a risk that is beyond Youngstown State University's risk 

appetite. 

Scope and Types of Internal Audit Services 

The scope of internal audit services covers the entire breadth of the organization, including all 

of Youngstown State University's activities, assets, and personnel. The scope of internal audit 

activities also encompasses, but is not limited to, the objective examination of evidence to 

provide independent assurance and advisory services to the Audit Subcommittee and 

management on the adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management, and 

control processes for Youngstown State University. 

The nature and scope of the advisory services may be agreed with the party requesting the 

service, provided the internal audit function does not assume management responsibility. 

Opportunities for improving the efficiency of governance, risk management, and control 

processes may be identified during advisory engagements. These opportunities will be 

communicated to the appropriate level of management. 

Internal audit services may include: 

• Evaluating whether risks relating to achievement of Youngstown State University's 

strategic objectives are appropriately identified and managed. 

• Evaluating whether the actions of Youngstown State University's officers, directors, 

management, employees, and contractors or other relevant parties comply with 

Youngstown State University's policies, procedures, and applicable laws, regulations, 

and governance standards. 

• Evaluating whether the results of operations and programs are consistent with 

established goals and objectives 

• Evaluating whether operations and programs are being carried out effectively, 

efficiently, ethically, and equitably. 

• Evaluating whether established processes and systems enable compliance with the 

policies, procedures, laws, and regulations that could significantly impact Youngstown 

State University. 

• Evaluating whether the integrity of information and the means used to identify, 

measure, analyze, classify, and report such information is reliable. 

• Evaluating whether resources and assets are acquired economically, used efficiently, 

and sustainably, and protected adequately. 

• Evaluating management's system of internal controls to determine their presence, 

adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency and when needed, recommending improvements 
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to the system of internal controls to address identified exposure to risk and 

performance deficiencies in practices and procedures. 

• Reporting significant risk exposures, internal control issues and fraud risk. 

• Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of the organization's risk management 

system. 

• Reviewing specific operations at the request of the Audit Subcommittee or management 

as appropriate. 

Approved this __ day of ___ , 2024 

Michelle Dilullo 

Internal Auditor 

Chair of the Audit Subcommittee 

Neal McNally 

Vice President for Finance & Business Operations 
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T YOUNGSTOWN 
STATE UNIVERSITY 

RESOLUTION TO RENEW AND AMEND 
THE AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE CHARTER 

WHEREAS, the Audit Subcommittee Charter (the Charter) defines the 
subcommittee·s purpose, authority, and responsibility; and 

WHEREAS, the Charter establi shes the subcommittee' s relationshi p with the 
Finance and Facilities Committee of the Board of Trustees, authorizes access to 
records, personnel, and physical properties relevant to the perfo rmance of 
oversight responsibilities. and defines the structure of the subcomm ittee; and 

WHEREAS, the Charter is reviewed and approved by the audit subcommittee at 
least every third year as pa1t of its oversight of the subcommittee functions; and 

WHEREAS, periodic review of Audit Subcommittee Charter was perfo rmed 111 

conjunction with the recently updated Office of Internal Audit Charter, 

WHEREAS, the Charter was updated to align with Youngstown State Uni versity 
Board of Trustees' by-laws, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of 
Youngstown State Uni versity does hereby renew the Audit Subcommittee 
Chatter, attached hereto. 

Board of Trustees Meeting 
December 12, 2024 
YR 2025-



Youngstown State U111versi1y 

Audit Subcomm11tcc Chancr 

/'1111,ose 

The 1m111my f1111 c1ion of 1hc A udit Subcommi11cc 1s 10 assist the Board of Tnis1ecs i n ful fi lling its 
oversight responsibilities for the institution's acco11n11ng :md li11a11ci.il reponing processes and audits 
by monitoring· 

• the mtcgrity of the University's financiril statements. 
• 1hc 111dcpc11dcncc. qualifications. and pcrfonnancc of its external and i111emal auditors. 
• 1hc Umvcrsit)'s sys1cm ofintcmal controls. and 
• the U11ivers11y's compliance w ith laws. rcgula11ons and codes of conduct. 

Subject to Stale Auditor's role and rcqu1re111cnts. the A11d11 S11bco11111111tec will be rcspons1blc for 1hc 
appomtmcnt. compcnsauon. rc1c111ion. ovcrs1gh1 and cval11a11011 of the University's external and 
111tcrnal auditors The A udll SubcommlllCI! shall 111;11111.1111 an cffcc1ivc. open avenue of 
co11111n1111ca11011 among the external auditors. 111tcmal a11d11ors. scmor management and 1he Board of 
Trnstces 

T he Subco111mi11ce's f1111c1ion is one of oversighl. and as such it l'ccognizes that management is 
responsible for preparing the financial s1a1emen1s and that 1hc extcmal audi1ors arc responsible for 
auch1111g those financial srntcmc111s. 

The S11bco111mi11cc has the a111honty 10 rc1a111 legal. acco1111t111g and other advisors to assis1 111 the 
pcrfon11a11cc of 11s rcsponsibi l i11es The U111vcrsuy shall compc11sa1c 1he independent auditors and 
advisors cm1>loyed by the A udit Subcommlllee and provide for assocuued ad1111nistra11ve cx1>enscs 

Struc111re 
Tite Audi1 Subcommlltec 1s a subcomrmuce of the F111a11ce & Fac1h11cs Committee of the Board of 
Tmstccs of Youngstown State University. Bo;ud members arc appo111ted by the Govcmor of1hc State 
of Ohio The Board will seek to ensure financial expertise 0 11 1hc A udit S11bcommi11ce 1hro11gh 
appo1111ments and trmmng. Funher. na m~mbt!r ef tl~ud1l-Si1beemmi1tee mny cencurre111ly !it!F\' t! 

01t-1lte-lnw,si111et1t+emt1tif!i!e 

ll'/eeti11gs 
171c Audi t Subcommittee shall meet at least quarterly and at nny other convenient date on an as­

needed basis. The A udit Subcommittee may ask members of management or others 10 ,mend A udit 

S11bcomm111cc meetings and provide pertine111 111fonna11on when needed. The Audit Subcommit1ct: 

shall meet periodically with management. external auditors and 1hc rndcpendent Internal Auditor 

Date Last Rcv1cwcd ___ 12-2024 __ 

12-2015 Audit Subcomm11tce Chancr 

Youngstown State University 

Audit Subcomminec Chaner 

F1111ctio11.1· 1111d Responsibilitie,· 

Internal Control 
I. Review w ith management, lntcmal Audit and external auditors the: adequacy and effecttvcncss 

of the Umvcrsuy's policies for assessing and manag111g n sk 
2. Exam me internal and external auditors· findings of wcaknessc:s and recommendations for the 

unprovcmcnt of 1111crnal control s. Monitor management's response to and implementation of 
internal control recommendations. 

Financial Reporting 
I. Review annual financial statements prior to public release and discuss such statements with 

management and the independent auditors 
2. Discuss any changes 111 accounting principles. significant Judgmi:nt areas and si gnificant or 

complex 1rnnsact1ons (mclud111g any off-balance shcct structures) that occurred. Consider 
management's handling of"proposcd audit adjustments identilied by the independent auditors. 

3. Consult wi th auditors and accounting personnel on the 111tcgnty of the internal and external 
financia l reporti ng process. Determine i f key reporting objectives arc being met. 

lntl cpcntlcnt Auditors 
I Serve as the autho111y to which the independent auditors rcpon 
2 Review, at li:ast annually, all relationships between till.: independent auditors and the 

University and assess the mdepcndcnt auditors· independence 
3 Review the audit scope and approach of the rndcpendcnt auditors· exam1na11ons and direct the 

auditors to areas that. 111 the Audit Subcomm1th:c·s op1111on. require more attention. Audit 
engagement lcncrs arc to be addressed to the Audit Subcomm111cc rather than to management 

4 Discuss with the 111dcpcndent auditors any significant findings. difficulucs. disagreements 
with management, restrictions on scope of the audit. or l11111ta11ons o n infonnation or 
personnel encountered while pcrfonning the audi t 

5. Pre-approve all significant audit and penn111ed non-audit services and related recs 10 be 
performed by the Univcrsity·s independent auditors The Chairperson of the Audit 
Subcomminec shall have the authority to review and approve all such proposals and shall 
repon back to the full Subcommince at each meeting. 

Internal Auditors 
I . Review and examine thc obJectivity, effectiveness and n:sourccs of the intcmal audit function 
2 Concur 111 the appointment or replacement of the provider of 111tcrnal audits services 
3. Ri:v11:w thi: rntemal audit plan for the current year and review thi: nsk assessment procedures 

used to 1clen11fy proJects 111cluded in the plan 
4. Rcvit:w the internal audit chaner and m;mdatc 
5 Review the results of 111ternal audit activities and track the progress of the 111tcrnal audit plan 
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Other 

Youngstown State University 
Audit Subcommittee Charter 

I. Ensure that appropriate code(s) of conduct/ethics are fonnalized in wntmg. Review 
management's monitoring of compliance therewith, including changes or waivers to the 
code(s). 

2. Review legal and regulatory matters that may have a material impact on the financial 
statements and the related compliance policies and procedures. 

3. Ensure that procedures exist for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints regarding 
accounting, internal controls or auditing matters, including procedures for the confidential, 
anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or 
auditing matters. Periodically review summary reports of such complaints. 

4. Review and assess, at least every three years, the Audit Subcommittee's charter and 
performance, and submit changes to the charter for approval of the Board. 

5. Recommend to the Board policies for hiring employees or fonner employees of the 
independent auditor. 

6. Perform other oversight functions as requested by the Board of Trustees. 
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Purpose 

The primary ftmction of the Audit Subcommittee is to assist the Board of Trustees in fulfilling its 
oversight responsibilities for the institution's accounting and financial reporting processes and audits 
by monitoring: 

• the integrity of the University's financial statements. 
• the independence. qualifications. and perfonnance of its external and internal auditors. 
• the University's system of internal controls. and 
• the University's compliance with laws. regulations and codes of conduct. 

Subject to State Auditor's role and requirements. the Audit Subcommittee will be responsible for the 
appointment. compensation. retention. oversight and evaluation of the University's external and 
internal auditors. The Audit Subcomminee shall maintain an effective. open avenue of 
communication among the external auditors. internal auditors. senior management and the Board of 
Trustees. 

The Subcommittee's function is one of oversight. and as such it recob'llizes that management is 
responsible for preparing the financial statements and that the external auditors are responsible for 
auditing those financial statements. 

The Subcommittee has the authority to retain legal. accounting and other advisors to assist in the 
perfonnance of its responsibilities. The University shall compensate the independent auditors and 
advisors employed by the Audit Subcommittee and provide for associated administrative expenses. 

Structure 
The Audit Subcommittee is a subcommittee of the Finance & Facilities Committee of the Board of 
Trustees of Youngstown State University. Board members are appointed by the Governor of the State 
of Ohio. The Board will seek to ensure financial expenise on the Audit Subcommittee through 
appointments and training. 

Meetings 
The Audit Subcommittee shall meet at least quanerly and at any other convenient date on an as­
needed basis. The Audit Subcommittee may ask members of management or others 10 altend Audit 
Subcommiltee meetings and provide peninent infonnation when needed. The Audit Subcommittee 
shall meet periodically with management. external auditors and the independent Internal Auditor. 
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Functio11s anti Responsibilities 

Internal Control 
I. Review with management, Internal Audit and external auditors the adequacy and effectiveness 

of the University's policies for assessing and managing risk. 
2. Examine internal and external auditors' findings of weaknesses and recommendations for the 

improvement of internal controls. Monitor management's response to and implementation of 
internal control recommendations. 

Financial Reporting 
I. Review annual financial statements prior to public release and discuss such statements with 

management and the independent auditors. 
2. Discuss any changes in accounting principles. significant judgment areas and si!,'llificant or 

complex transactions (including any off-balance sheet structures) that occurred. Consider 
management's handling of proposed audit adjustments identified by the independent auditors. 

3. Consult with auditors and accounting personnel on the integrity of the internal and external 
financial reponing process. Determine if key reporting objectives are being met. 

Independent Auditors 
I. Serve as the authority to which the independent auditors repon. 
2. Review. at least annually. all relationships between the independent auditors and the 

University and assess the independent auditors· independence. 
3. Review the audit scope and approach of the independent auditors' examinations and direct the 

auditors to areas that, in the Audit Subcommittee's opinion. require more attention. Audit 
engagement letters are to be addressed to the Audit Subcommittee rather than to management. 

4. Discuss with the independent auditors any significant findings, difficulties, disagreements 
with management. restrictions on scope of the audit, or limitations on information or 
personnel encountered while performing the audit. 

5. Pre-approve all significant audit and permitted non-audit services and related fees to be 
performed by the University's independent auditors. The Chairperson of the Audit 
Subcommittee shall have the authority to review and approve all such proposals and shall 
repon back to the full Subcommittee at each meeting. 

Internal Auditors 
I. Review and examine the objectivity, effectiveness and resources of the internal audit function. 
2. Concur in the appointment or replacement of the provider of internal audits services. 
3. Review the internal audit plan for the current year and review the risk assessment procedures 

used to identify projects included in the plan. 
4. Review the internal audit charter and mandate. 
5. Review the results of internal audit activities and track the progress of the internal audit plan. 
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I. Ensure that appropriate code(s) of conduct/ethics are formalized in wntmg. Review 
management's monitoring of compliance therewith. including changes or waivers to the 
code(s). 

2. Review legal and regulatory matters that may have a material impact on the financial 
statements and the related compliance policies and procedures. 

3. Ensure that procedures exist for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints regarding 
accounting, internal controls or auditing matters, including procedures for the confidential. 
anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or 
auditing matters. Periodically review summary repons of such complaints. 

4. Review and assess. at least every three years, the Audit Subcommittee's charter and 
performance, and submit changes to the charter for approval of the Board. 

5. Recommend to the Board policies for hiring employees or former employees of the 
independent auditor. 

6. Perform other oversight functions as requested by the Board of Trustees. 
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